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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEBNWED N

Overall Performance

For the year ended 30 April 2013, the Group generated turnover of
approximately HK$34.2 million (2012: approximately HK$27.7 million) with
a loss for the year of approximately HK$8.6 million (2012: approximately
HK$41.2 million). The reduction in loss for the year was mainly due to the
strengthening of our Property segment which saw an increase in rental
income and an increase in the unrealised fair value gain on investment
properties. Our Securities segment has been operatingto target risk-adjusted
returns, which contributed a net realised and unrealised gain in securities
investments during this year as compared with a loss for the previous year.
Our Food & Beverage segment has been gradually and partially scaling
down its traditional products, resulting in an improvement in its gross
profit margin. Our Financial Services segment has seen more competition
and we have seen exploring different market strategies in order to seek to
sustain steady income. Meanwhile, in our Technology & Media segment,
we have been continuing to explore and develop investment opportunities
to broaden its income. Our Corporate Treasury Management segment is
engaged in managing of treasury activities, and has been actively pursuing
efficient allocation of the financial resources within the Group.

Business Review
Financial Services

During this year, the revenue of our financial services segment reflected no
significant change as compared to last year.

Securities

Our securities segment recorded a net realised and unrealised gain on
trading of securities investments of approximately HK$1.6 million (2012:
loss of approximately HK$11.3 million), which contributed a profit for
our securities segment of approximately HK$2.0 million (2012: loss of
approximately HK$11.9 million) for the year ended 30 April 2013.

Property

The revenue of the Group’s property segment was approximately HK$3.9
million (2012: approximately HK$2.1 million). The business segment
contributed a profit of approximately HK$17.3 million (2012: profit
of approximately HK$5.0 million) to the Group. Excluding the gain on
unrealised fair value, the recurring profit of the property segment would
have been approximately HK$3.5 million (2012: approximately HK$1.4
million).
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Technology & Media

Our technology & media segment recorded revenue of approximately
HK$0.1 million (2012: approximately HK$0.3 million) with a segment loss
for the year of approximately HK$1.5 million (2012: loss of approximately
HK$0.8 million).

Food & Beverage

During the vyear, revenue for our food & beverage segment was
approximately HK$27.7 million (2012: approximately HK$34.6 million).
Excluding the gain of approximately HK$3.1 million for the disposal of
property in 2012, our segment loss would have been approximately HK$5.1
million (2012: loss of approximately HK$4.4 million).

Corporate Treasury Management

Our corporate treasury management segment recorded revenue of
approximately HK$6.8 million (2012: approximately HK$4.1 million) with
a segment profit for the year of approximately HK$0.1 million (2012: profit
of approximately HK$0.3 million).

Seasonal/Cyclical Factors

The sales volume during festive periods is normally higher than the sales
volume in the slack periods of the year for food & beverage operations.

Financial Review
Liquidity and Financial Resources

The Group maintained cash and cash equivalents as at 30 April 2013
amounting to approximately HK$87.4 million (2012: approximately
HK$125.6 million). The Group’s current ratio as at 30 April 2013 was 2.0
(2012: 2.9). The total equity of the Group amounted to approximately
HK$299.6 million (2012: approximately HK$308.2 million) as at 30 April
2013.

Gearing

The gearing ratio, as a ratio of bank borrowings and finance lease payable
to total equity, was 0.13 as at 30 April 2013 (2012: 0.13).
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Exchange Rate Exposure

As at 30 April 2013, the Group’s cash and cash equivalents amounted to
approximately HK$87.4 million, the majority of which was in Hong Kong
dollars. Since the majority of the Group’s transactions, monetary assets and
liabilities is denominated in Hong Kong dollars, United States dollars and
Renminbi, with relatively stable exchange rates of Renminbi to Hong Kong
dollars and Hong Kong’s linked exchange rate between United States dollar
and Hong Kong dollar, the Group has minimal exposure to exchange rate
fluctuations.

Treasury Policies

The Group generally finances its ordinary operations with internally
generated resources and bank borrowings. The interest rates of borrowings,
if applicable, are generally charged by reference to prevailing market rates.

Commitments
The Group had no capital commitments during the year (2012: nil).
Future Prospects

The Group expects that macroeconomic uncertainties, the weak global
economy and the slowdown in the PRC's economic growth will result in
lower levels of economic activity. To respond to, and effectively capture,
market opportunities that may emerge from these uncertainties, the Group
will aim to closely analyse macroeconomic trends and policy changes,
identify critical risks and challenges, and monitor the development and
execution of business strategies. The Group will also closely monitor and
review the business operations and financial position of the Group for
the purpose of formulating business plans and strategies for the future
business development of the Group.

Employment and Remuneration Policy

As at 30 April 2013, the Group had 144 (2012: 158) employees in Hong Kong
and the PRC. The Group has not experienced any significant problems with
its employees or disruptions due to labour disputes nor has it experienced
difficulties in the recruitment and retention of experienced staff. The Group
remunerates its employees based on industry practices. Its staff benefits,
welfare, share options and statutory contributions, if any, are made in
accordance with individual performance and prevailing labour laws of its
operating entities.
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Executive Directors

Mr Vong Tat leong, David, aged 51, has been a director of the Company
since 2005 and serves as the Chief Executive Officer of the Company. Mr
Vong has acquired and run public companies, and made and advised
on cross-border mergers and acquisitions, involving capital markets and
private equity, for over 20 years. He was formerly Vice Chairman of the
Board of Directors of CITIC 21CN Company Limited, a company listed
on the Stock Exchange, from 2003-2004. Before that, he was Director
and Deputy Chief Executive of i100 Limited, a company listed on the
Stock Exchange, since he co-founded the i100 Group in 2000 with an
international consortium whose key participants included management
and leading institutional investors. Prior to that, he was Chief Executive
at Pollon Infrastructure Corporation, an infrastructure investment holding
company focused on power and telecom assets in the PRC, since 1997. Mr
Vong is a graduate of Yale Law School and The London School of Economics
and Political Science.

Mr Xu Siping, aged 55, has been a director of the Company since 2005
and held a series of senior policy positions for about 18 years at the PRC's
State Economic and Trade Commission and the National Development
and Reform Commission (formerly the State Planning Commission), from
1983-2000, bhefore retiring from public service in the central government.
Mr Xu is a graduate of Dalian University of Technology.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr Fung Ka Keung, David, aged 50, has been an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company since 2005, is Director of Finance at
Golden Concord Holdings Limited and an Executive Director of Asia Energy
Logistics Group Limited, a company listed on the Stock Exchange. He is
a member of the Company’s Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee
and Nomination Committee. Mr Fung graduated from Leicester University.

Dr Lam Lee G,, aged 54, has been an Independent Non-executive Director
of the Company since 2005. He holds a Bachelor of Science in Mathematics
and Sciences, a Master of Science in Systems Science, and a Master of
Business Administration, all from the University of Ottawa in Canada, a
Post-graduate Diploma in Public Administration from Carleton University
in Canada, a Post-graduate Diploma in English and Hong Kong Law and
a Bachelor of Law (Hons) from Manchester Metropolitan University in the
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U.K., a Postgraduate Certificate in Laws from the City University of Hong
Kong, a Master of Laws from the University of Wolverhampton in the U.K.,
a Certificate in Professional Accountancy from the Chinese University of
Hong Kong SCS, and a Doctor of Philosophy from the University of Hong
Kong. Dr. Lam has international experience in general management,
management consulting, corporate governance, investment banking and
fund management across the telecommunications/media/technology
(TMT), consumer/healthcare, infrastructure/real estates and financial
services sectors. He is Chairman — Indochina, Myanmar and Thailand (and
formerly Chairman — Hong Kong), and Senior Adviser — Asia, of Macquarie
Capital. Actively participating in community service, Dr. Lam has served as
a part-time member of the Central Policy Unit of the Government of the
Hong Kong Special Administrative Region for two terms and as a member
of the Legal Aid Services Council of Hong Kong, and is a member of the
Jilin Province Committee (and formerly a specially-invited member of the
Zhejiang Province Committee) of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference (CPPCC), a member of the New Business Committee of the
Financial Services Development Council (FSDC), a member of the Derivatives
Market Consultative Panel of Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited
(HKEx), a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Bankers, a board member
of the East-West Center Foundation, a member of the World Presidents’
Organization (WPO) and the Chief Executives Organization (CEO), a fellow
of the Hong Kong Institute of Directors and the Hong Kong Institute of
Arbitrators, an accredited mediator of the Centre for Effective Dispute
Resolution (CEDR), a member of the General Council and the Corporate
Governance Committee of the Chamber of Hong Kong Listed Companies,
a vice president of the Hong Kong Real Property Federation, a founding
board member and the Honorary Treasurer of the Hong Kong-Vietnam
Chamber of Commerce, a board member of the Australian Chamber of
Commerce in Hong Kong and Macau, Chairman of Monte Jade Science
and Technology Association of Hong Kong, and a visiting professor (in the
subjects of corporate governance and investment banking) at the School of
Economics & Management of Tsinghua University in Beijing. He is Chairman
of the Company’s Audit Committee and Remuneration Committee, and a
member of the Company’s Nomination Committee.

Ms Wong Man Ngar, Edna, aged 47, has been an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company since 2005, is Senior Consultant at
UBM Asia, a Director of Xact Limited, and was formerly Regional Marketing
Manager at American Express, and Management Consultant at The Mitchell
Madison Group in New York. She is a graduate of Columbia Business School
and is a member of the Company’s Audit Committee.
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The directors have pleasure to present their report and the audited financial
statements of Vongroup Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) for the year ended 30 April 2013.

Principal Activities

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The principal
activities of the Group comprise financial services businesses, securities
businesses, property businesses, technology & media businesses and food
& beverage businesses. Details of the principal subsidiaries are set out in
note 17 to the financial statements.

Segment Information

An analysis of the Group’s segment revenue, results, assets and liabilities for
the year ended 30 April 2013 is set out in note 4 to the financial statements.

Results and Dividends

The Group’s loss for the year ended 30 April 2013 and the state of affairs
of the Company and of the Group at that date are set out in the financial
statements on pages 22 to 25. The directors of the Company (the “Directors”)
do not recommend payment of any dividends in respect of the year.

Summary of Financial Information

A summary of the published consolidated financial results and assets and
liabilities of the Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from
the published audited financial statements, is set out on page 146. This
summary does not form part of the audited financial statements.

Property, Plant and Equipment, Lease Premium for
Land and Investment Properties

Details of movementsin the property, plant and equipment, lease premium
for land and investment properties of the Group during the year are set out
in notes 13 to 15 to the financial statements, respectively. Further details of
the Group’s properties are set out on pages 147 and 148.
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Share Capital and Share Options

Details of movements in the Company’s issued share capital and share
options during the year, together with the reasons therefore, are set out in
notes 34 and 35 to the financial statements, respectively.

Pre-Emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s articles
of association or the laws of the Cayman Islands, being the jurisdiction in
which the Company was incorporated, which would oblige the Company to
offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.

Purchases, Sale or Redemption of Securities

Neither of the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year ended 30
April 2013.

Reserves

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group during
the year are set out in note 36 to the financial statements.

Distributable Reserves

As at 30 April 2013, the Company’s reserves available for distribution,
calculated in accordance with the Companies Law (2004 Revision) of
the Cayman Islands, amounted to approximately HK$250.0 million.
This includes the Company’s share premium account, in the amount
of approximately HK$540.6 million as at 30 April 2013, which may be
distributed provided that immediately following the date on which the
dividend is proposed to be distributed, the Company will be in a position
to pay off its debts as and when they fall due in the ordinary course of
business. In addition, the Company’s capital redemption reserve in the
amount of approximately HK$0.26 million may be distributed in the form
of fully paid bonus shares.

Major Customers and Suppliers

The revenue attributable to the five largest customers of the Group
accounted for less than 30% of the total Group’s revenue for the year.
Purchases from the five largest suppliers of the Group accounted for less
than 30% of the total Group’s purchases for the year.
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Commitments

The Group had no capital commitment during the year (2012: nil).

Exchange Rates Exposure

Details of the exchange rate exposure are set out in note 41 to the financial
statements.

Directors
The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors:
Mr Vong Tat leong, David (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr Xu Siping

Independent non-executive Directors:
Mr Fung Ka Keung, David

Dr Lam Lee G.

Ms Wong Man Ngar, Edna

In accordance with article 87 of the Company’s articles of association, Mr
Vong Tat leong, David and Mr Fung Ka Keung, David, will retire by rotation
and, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting.

Independence Confirmation

The Company has received from each of the independent non-executive
Directors a confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”). The Board of Directors is satisfied with
the independence of each of the independent non-executive Directors.

Directors’ Interests in Contracts

Apart from the transactions disclosed in note 39 to the financial statements,
no Director had a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any
contract of significance to the business of the Group to which the Company,
or any of its holding companies, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a
party during the year.
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Directors’ Service Contracts

Mr Vong Tat leong, David has an employment agreement with a subsidiary
of the Group commencing on 3 September 2005, which will continue
thereafter unless and until terminated by either party giving not less than
one month’s notice in writing or until terminated by mutual consent.

Mr Xu Siping has an employment agreement with a subsidiary of the Group
commencing on 3 September 2005, which will continue thereafter unless
and until terminated by either party giving not less than one month’s
notice in writing or until terminated by mutual consent.

Other emoluments are determined by the Company’s board of Directors
with reference to the Directors” duties, responsibilities and performance
and the results of the Group.

Save as disclosed above, no Director proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with the
Company which is not determinable by the Company within one year
without payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

Director’s and Chief Executive’s Interests in Shares,
Underlying Shares and Debentures

As at 30 April 2013, the interests and short positions of the Director and chief
executive of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and debentures
of the Company or its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFQ”)), as recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of
the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”),
were set out as follows:
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Interests in the Shares of the Company

The Company/
Name of

RE R ARG 2 i

Appropriate
percentage of

Name of Director associated company Capacity Interest in shares shareholding
EEpR AAF/ HMEATEE  5H gk o BRSERAE DL
Mr Vong Tat leong, The Company Held through a 3,962,000,000 67.61%

David (Note) PiN/NE]

BEHELE (W)

controlled
corporation

ordinary shares
of HK$0.001 each

FEFTIEHEIE  3,962,000,0000%
=a R TE1E0.001
BT TR

Note: The interest of Mr Vong is held by Vongroup Holdings Limited, of which he is the
ultimate beneficial owner.

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 April 2013, none of the Directors had
registered an interest in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of
the Company or any of its associated corporations that was required to be
recorded pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

Directors’ Rights to Acquire Shares or Debentures

Save as disclosed in the share option scheme disclosures in note 35 to the
financial statements, at no time during the year were rights to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the
Company granted to any Director or their respective spouse or minor
children, or were any such rights exercised by them or was the Company,
or any of its holding companies, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party
to any arrangement to enable the Directors to acquire such rights in any
other body corporate.

Substantial Shareholder’s Interest in Shares and
Underlying Shares

As at 30 April 2013, the following interests of 5% or more of the issued
share capital of the Company were recorded in the register of interests
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.
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Percentage of
the Company’s
issued share

Interest in capital
Name of shareholders shares {EARATEEIT
BEERE HR B 10 2 BARZ2BEDL
Mr Vong Tat leong, David (Note)
=ELEE (Hi2) 3,962,000,000 67.61%
Vongroup Holdings Limited (Note)
=N EEERAERAR (Mat) 3,962,000,000 67.61%

Note: The relationship between Vongroup Holdings Limited and Mr Vong is disclosed under
“Director’s and Chief Executive’s Interests in Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures”

above.

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 April 2013, no person other than the
Directors of the Company, whose interests are set out in the section
“Director’s and Chief Executive’s Interests in Shares, Underlying Shares and
Debentures” had registered an interest in the shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company that was required to be recorded under
Section 336 of the SFO.

Share Option Scheme

The Company adopted a new share option scheme on 30 September 2011
(the “New Scheme”). Pursuant to the New Scheme, the Directors of the
Company, at their discretion, may grant options to Directors, officers and
employees (whether full time or part-time) of the Company or a subsidiary
and any other groups or classes of suppliers, customers, sub-contractors
or agents of the Group from time to time determined by the Directors as
having contributed or may contribute to the development and growth of
the Group. No share options were outstanding nor granted during the year
ended 30 April 2013.

Connected Transactions
Certain related party transactions entered by the Group during the year

ended 30 April 2013, which also constitute connected transactions under
the Listing Rules, are disclosed in note 39 to the financial statements.
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Corporate Governance

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate
governance and has complied with the Code on Corporate Governance
Practices as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. Further information
on the Company’s corporate governance practices is set out in the Corporate
Governance Report.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the Company’s issued share
capital was held by the public as at the date of this report.

Auditor

A resolution for re-appointment of CCIF CPA Limited as the auditor of the
Company for the ensuing year is to be proposed at the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Vong Tat leong, David
Executive Director

Hong Kong
25 July 2013
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
ERERARE

The Company is firmly committed to maintaining and improving the
quality of corporate governance so to ensure better transparency of
the Company, protection of shareholders’ and stakeholders’ rights and
enhance shareholder value.

Corporate Governance

The Company’s corporate governance practices and the applicable
corporate governance rules are based on the principles and code provisions
of the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as contained in Appendix
14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) which came into full effect on
1 April 2012.

During the year, the Company has complied with the code provisions of
the CG Code, except for the deviation from code provisions A.2.1, A.4.1 and
A.6.7 of the CG Code as described below.

Under code provision A.2.1, the role of chairman and chief executive officer
(“CEQ”) should be performed by different individuals. Since September
2005, Mr Vong Tat leong, David, who is a director and CEO of the Company,
has also carried out the responsibilities of the chairman of the Company.
The Board considers the present structure is more suitable to the Company
for it can provide strong and consistent leadership and allow for more
efficient formulation and implementation of the Company’s development
strategies.

Under code provision A.4.1 of the CG Code, non-executive Directors should
be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election. The non-executive
Directors of the Company, including the independent non-executive
Directors, are not appointed for a specific term but are subject to retirement
by rotation and re-election at the annual general meetings of the Company
at least once every three years as specified in the Bye-laws of the Company.
As such, the Board considers that sufficient measures have been taken
to ensure that the Company’s corporate governance practices are no less
exacting than those in the CG Code.

Under code provision A.6.7, independent non-executive directors shall
attend general meetings and develop a balanced understanding of
the views of shareholders. There are three independent non-executive
Directors of the Company and they were unable to attend the 2012 annual
general meeting of the Company held on 24 September 2012 due to their
engagement in their own commitments.

Induction and Continuing Development for Directors

The directors are encouraged to attend external seminars and training
programmes at the Company’s expense to update themselves with legal
and regulatory developments, and the business and market changes to
facilitate the discharge of their responsibilities. Continuing briefings
and professional development to directors will be arranged whenever
necessary.
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Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 of
the Listing Rules as the code of conduct regarding securities transactions
of the directors of the Company (the “Directors”). Having made specific
enquiry of all Directors, the Company confirms that all Directors have
complied with the required standards set out in the Model Code during the
year ended 30 April 2013.

Board of Directors
Composition

As at 30 April 2013, the Board of Directors (the “Board”) comprises five
members: two executive Directors, namely, Mr Vong Tat leong, David (Chief
Executive Officer) and Mr Xu Siping; and three independent non- executive
Directors, namely, Mr Fung Ka Keung, David, who has the professional and
accounting qualifications required by the Listing Rules, Dr Lam Lee G. and
Ms Wong Man Ngar, Edna.

The biographical details of the Board members are set out on pages 6 and
7 of this Annual Report.

Roles and Functions

The function of the Board is to formulate corporate strategy and business
development. The Board meets regularly to discuss operational issues
and valuate the financial performance of the Group. The Board will
consider and approve acquisition and disposal, remuneration policy,
appointment and retirement of directors, connected transactions, placing
and repurchase of shares and dividend policy of the Group in pursuit of its
strategic goals, if required. The chairmanship of the Board of the Company
is elected at each Board meeting. Control and day to day operation of the
Company is delegated to the Chief Executive Officer and the management
of the Company.

Board Meetings and Attendance Record

The Board held 6 Board meetings during the year ended 30 April 2013 and
additional Board meetings would be held when necessary. The Directors
who cannot attend in person might participate through other electronic
means of communications. Due notice and relevant materials for the
meeting were given to all Directors prior to the meetings in accordance
with the Company’s articles of association and the CG Code. Details of
individual attendance of Directors are set out in the table below:

Members of the Board Attended/Held
Mr VONG Tat leong, David 6/6
Mr XU Siping 6/6
Mr FUNG Ka Keung, David 5/6
Dr LAM Lee G. 6/6
Ms WONG Man Ngar, Edna 5/6
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Relationship Among Members of the Board

There is no relationship among members of the Board in respect of
financial, business, family or other material/relevant relationship.

Independent Non-executive Directors

The Company has received from each of its independent non-executive
Director an annual confirmation of his/her independence pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules and the Company considers the independent non-
executive Directors to be independent.

According to the code provision A.4.1 of the CG Code, the non-executive
Directors should be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election.
All Directors are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at
the annual general meeting of the Company in accordance with the
provisions of the Company’s articles of association, and the terms of their
appointment will be reviewed when they are due for re-election. As such,
the Board considers that sufficient measures are in place to ensure that the
Company’s corporate governance practices are no less exacting than those
set out in the CG Code.

Board Committees

The Board has established four board committees to strengthen its
functions and corporate governance practices, namely, Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee, Executive Committee and Nomination
Committee. The Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and
Nomination Committee perform their specific roles in accordance with
their respective written terms of reference. The Executive Committee assists
the Group in corporate strategy, business development and operations.

Audit Committee

The Company’s Audit Committee is composed of three independent
non-executive Directors, currently, Dr Lam Lee G. (Chairman of the Audit
Committee), Mr Fung Ka Keung, David and Ms Wong Man Ngar, Edna. The
Audit Committee members performed their duties within written terms of
reference formulated by the Company in accordance with the requirements
of the Listing Rules.

The Audit Committee is responsible for considering all relationships
between the Company and the auditing firm (including the provision of
non-audit services), monitoring the integrity of the Company’s financial
statements, any issues arising from the audit and any other auditors
may wish to raise and review of the Company’s internal control and risk
management.
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The Audit Committee held two meetings during the year with an attendance
rate of 100%. In the meetings, the Audit Committee reviewed the financial
statements for the year ended 30 April 2012 and for the six months ended
31 October 2012, considered and approved the audit work of the auditors
and reviewed the business and financial performance of the Company and
the internal control system and risk management.

The Group’s results for the year ended 30 April 2013 have been reviewed by
the Company’s Audit Committee.

Remuneration Committee

The Company’s Remuneration Committee is composed of two independent
non-executive Directors, Dr Lam Lee G. (Chairman of the Remuneration
Committee) and Mr Fung Ka Keung, David, and one executive Director, Mr
Vong Tat leong, David. The Remuneration Committee members performed
their duties within written terms of reference formulated by the Company
in accordance with the requirements of the Listing Rules.

The Remuneration Committee is responsible of developing remuneration
policies and in overseeing remuneration packages of the Directors whether
the emoluments offered are appropriate to the duties and performance
of the respective individuals concerned. It is the Company’s policy to offer
remuneration packages which are competitive and sufficient to retain
such individuals and no Director is involved in decision of his/her own
remuneration.

The Remuneration Committee held one meeting during the year with an
attendance rate of 100%. In the meeting, the Remuneration Committee
reviewed and approved the remuneration of Directors according to their
respective responsibilities, expertise and performance.

Nomination Committee

The Company’s Nomination Committee is composed of two independent
non-executive Directors, Dr Lam Lee G and Mr Fung Ka Keung, David
and one executive Director, Mr Vong Tat leong, David (Chairman of the
Nomination Committee). The Nomination Committee members performed
their duties with written terms of reference formulated by the Company in
accordance with the requirements of the Listing Rules.

The Nomination Committee is responsible to review the structure, size
and composition (including the skills, knowledge and experience) of the
Board, identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board members
and select or make recommendations to the Board on the selection of
individuals nominated for directorships. The Nomination Committee
also responsible to assess the independence of the INEDs and to make
recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-appointment of
directors and succession planning for directors, in particular the Chairman
and the Chief Executive.

The Nomination Committee held one meeting during the year with an
attendance rate of 100%.
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Auditor’s Remuneration

The amount of audit fee payable to CCIF CPA Limited for the year ended 30
April 2013 was HK$700,000.

Internal Controls

The Board has overall responsibility for the system of internal controls of
the Company and for reviewing its effectiveness. The Board is committed to
implementing an effective and sound internal control system to safeguard
the interest of shareholders and the Group’s assets. The Board has delegated
to the management the implementation of the system of internal controls
and reviewing of all relevant financial, operational, compliance controls
and risk management functions within an established framework.

Directors’ Responsibility Statement

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the financial
statements for the year under review. The Directors ensure the preparation
of the financial statements of the Group are in accordance with statutory
requirements and suitable accounting policies.

The statement of the Auditor of the Company about their reporting
responsibilities on the financial statements of the Group is set out in the
Independent Auditor’s Report of this Annual Report.

Communication with Shareholders

The Company communicates with its shareholders through different
channels, including annual general meetings, special general meetings,
annual and interim reports, notices of general meetings and circulars
sent to shareholders by post, announcements on the website of the Stock
Exchange and the Company’s website.

Registered shareholders are notified by post of the shareholders’ meetings.
Any registered shareholder is entitled to attend and vote at the annual and
special general meetings, provided that his/her/its shares have been fully
paid up and recorded in the register of members of the Company.

Shareholders or investors can make enquiries or proposals to the Company
by putting their enquiries or proposals to the Company through the contact
details listed in our Company’s website.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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CCIF
CCIF CPA LIMITED
R R ERIEIEIEFAARAT
9/F Leighton Centre
77 Leighton Road
Causeway Bay Hong Kong
B8 RS ISEET 7R
TS0

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF VONGROUP LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Vongroup Limited
(“the Company”) and its subsidiaries (together “the Group”) set out on pages
22 to 145, which comprise the consolidated and company statements of
financial position as at 30 April 2013, and the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity
and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

Directors’ responsibility for the consolidated financial
statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statementsthat giveatrueand fairview inaccordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit. This report is made solely to you, as a body,
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
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We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true
and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well
as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 30 April
2013, and of the Group’s loss and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been
properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

CCIF CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 25 July 2013

Kwok Cheuk Yuen
Practising Certificate Number P02412
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
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For the year ended 30 April 2013 HZ —ZT—=FP A =+HIFFE !
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2013 2012
—E-= —T-F
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5T FET FHET
Turnover 2 5 34,216 27,650
Other revenue H Yz 5 1,706 1,215
Other gains Hip AR 5 960 22,850
Cost of inventories consumed KOBRETR B A 21(b) (9,728) (13,972)
Cost of forfeited collaterals sold & E WL UHE TR &
Z BN 21(b) - (254)
Staff costs E\I}ﬂZK (19,097) (18,910)
Operating lease rentals LEHNHE (5,210) (5,020)
Depreciation and amortisation e REH (2,159) (1,799)
Other expenses HMMAX (22,940) (54,104)
Change in fair value of investment properties R EWEZ AFEEZ 15 13,725 3,636
Loss from operations REEE 6 (8,527) (38,708)
Finance costs IR DN 7 (549) (510)
Share of loss of a e HREFIEEEE
jointly-controlled entity - (1,933)
Loss before taxation RRE AT 18 (9,076) (41,151)
Income tax FriS#i 8(a) 475 (69)
Loss for the year attributable to RAREE AEML
owners of the Company REEER (8,601) (41,220)
Other comprehensive income Hitt 2= mE W=
Exchange differences arising on MEGINETSEE
translation of foreign operations, Z[R%ﬁﬁ
with no income tax effect (RETFTEMEE) (1) 498
Share of reserve movements of JEfh R %lJ, i)
jointly-controlled entity fREE - 37
(1) 535
Total comprehensive expense for the year RATEE AEN
attributable to owners of the Company FAETHEBAZERE (8,602) (40,685)
HK$ HK$
BT BIT
Loss per share BRERE
— Basic and diluted — EARR#E 12 (0.0015) (0.0070)
The notes on pages 29 to 145 form an integral part of these financial 25298 = 21458 2 MFHBRK It S B HRE 2 —
statements. 2B o



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSl'ﬂON

e MR FR y / |
Asat30April 2013 KN-F—=FMHA="+H It < T, /! ;
o, /S o P
2013 2012
—E—=F —F—=
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
MieE TExT FHETT
Non-current assets EREBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - WEK&E 13 17,093 18,742
Lease premium for land TS 14 1,392 1,426
Investment properties KREWE 15 182,751 119,541
Goodwill Fﬁéﬁ 16 4,631 6,212
Interest in a jointly-controlled entity RERES B 2 s 18 - —
Deposits paid for acquisition TEEYE HWEK
of property, plant and equipment B RIKEE
and investment properties SENPR & 19 274 255
Available-for-sale investments A HERE 20 16,882 16,882
223,023 163,058
Current assets RENEE
Lease premium for land TS 14 34 34
Inventories FE 21 6,979 7,711
Forfeited collateral held for sale SRS WK IR M 21 493 280
Accounts receivable JE AR X 22 273 471
Moneylending loan receivables FEWEE K 23 4,784 23,026
Deposits, prepayments and other e  FENEZL
receivables H fth UK BR 3K 24 24,700 17,531
Amount due from a jointly-controlled entity fEU§I£ [R5 %I S 2 T8 25 - 234
Equity investments at fair value through AT EAEZRY R
profit or loss ZBAHRE 26 26,877 30,043
Derivative financial instrument PTEMBITA 27 - 16,159
Tax recoverable CIEER R 8(c) 22 -
Cash and cash equivalents Re kRS EEIEE 28 87,431 125,647
151,593 221,136
Current liabilities REIEE
Accounts payable FETBR IR 29 1,704 1,195 =
Accruals and deposits received FEETRIE K B Wik & 30 13,072 11,968 |
Tax payables AT 8(c) 22,101 22,101 =
Finance lease payable — current portion e R E R 4 FRIE E
— BIHAER 31 125 118 2
Bank borrowings RITEE 32 37,904 39,794 ?
:
74,906 75,176 8
w
Net current assets REEERE 76,687 145,960
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2013 2012
—E—= —_EF—=

Note HK$’000 HK$'000

hg=a FET THT

Total assets less current liabilities BEERRHERE 299,710 309,018
Non-current liabilities ¥RBERE

Finance lease payable — long-term portion FET b & FH 49 50 IE

—KHE D 31 70 185

Deferred tax liabilities BEHIBEA G 33 — 591

70 776

NET ASSETS EEZFEE 299,640 308,242
CAPITAL AND RESERVES B #E

Share capital A& 2 34 5,860 5,860

Reserves i 36 293,780 302,382

TOTAL EQUITY HEER 299,640 308,242

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 25 July WR-ZE—=F+A-t+hAESE=SH ERKE

2013. TEZEAD ©
On behalf of the board RERESS
VONG TAT IEONG DAVID XU SIPING

Director Director

EFE EBFE

The notes on pages 29 to 145 form an integral part of these financial 9B EFEN458 2 TR I S Rk 2 —
statements. 2B ©
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

&

B R & N ;
Asat 30April 2013 R=E—=FMA=1+H !’ f iy - 7 il
| . - s B <l
2013 2012
—E—= —_E—=
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
MIaE FHET TFABTT
Non-current assets FERBEE
Investments in subsidiaries KRB AR ZIKE 17 - =
Current assets REEE
Deposits, prepayments and e - IR
other receivables T E i e Uk BR 53R 24 21 9,200
Amounts due from subsidiaries FE UL FT /B A R 5RIE 17 241,551 242,149
Cash and cash equivalents Re kRS EEIEE 28 17,022 13,584
258,594 264,933
Current liabilities REIEE
Accruals and deposits received EEtIE kB Wit 30 2,723 3,024
Net current assets REEEFRE 255,871 261,909
NET ASSETS EEFE 255,871 261,909
CAPITAL AND RESERVES IR A R et 4
Share capital f& s 34 5,860 5,860
Reserves (s 36 250,011 256,049
TOTAL EQUITY mER 255,871 261,909
Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 25 July R-ZT—=F+A-t+HAE==SHENLK
2013. REFA -
On behalf of the board REEZE
=
A
VONG TAT IEONG DAVID XU SIPING =
. . ES
Director Director A
EF EFE Gl
i3
The notes on pages 29 to 145 form an integral part of these financial — ZE29E £ 51458 2 MicH B ML F I B3Rz 2 — ?f
statements. BB © g




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
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GARREDR (> /
For the year ended 30 April 2013 BZ T —=FW A=+ HILFE I f Q?h}“"h /'/t r
(apital  Statutory  Exchange
Share Share redemption surplus  translation Accumulated
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve losses Total
kA& EE
ke ROEE RERE BHEE EXRE ZEEB @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TATL TATL THET TAL TEL FHEL TATL
At 1 May 2011 RZZ—%1A-H 5,860 533,020 26 255 1151 (191621) 348927
Loss for the year KEEER - - - - - (41,220 (41,220)
Exchange adjustment R AR = = - = 498 = 498
Share of reserve movementsof (G T FIHEHIE B
jointly controlled entity Rz - - - - 37 = 37
Total comprehensive expense FRE2ERYAHE
for the year - - - 535 (41,220) (40,685)
Transfer = - - - 15 - (15) =
At 30 April 2012 and RZE——FEA=1A
1 May 2012 FRZE-—FHA—H 5,860 533,020 262 270 1,686 (232,856 308,242
Loss for the year KEEER - - - - = (8,601) (8,601)
Exchange adjustment R - - - = () = (1)
Total comprehensive expense ERRERX 8%
for the year - - - - (1) (8,601) (8,602)
AL 30 April 2013 R-E-=#MA=+A 5860 533,020 262 270 1685 (41457 299640
1458 2 BRI S B HRER s —

The notes on pages 29 to 145 form an integral part of these financial 2298 %
&b

statements.



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS ™%

GERERER
For the year ended 30 April 2013 HZE T —= = EBHEFE f ‘%‘qu:a /_ 7
2013 2012
= —E——F
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
Bt s FEx FHET
Operating activities R
Loss before taxation BRI AIEE (9,076) (41,157)
Adjustments for: MEERE
Share of loss of a FEGERESI B
jointly-controlled entity B - 1,933
Bank interest income RITHFEUA 5 (132) (330)
Finance costs E?T ﬂ‘%ﬁizﬁ 7 549 510
Dividend income from listed securities 2 BRBWA 5,6 (760) (672)
Gain from deregistration of a HT Gl
jointly-controlled entity BUBRE 2 Yaas 5,6 (470) -
Fair value gain on derivative financial PTEMBIAZ A FE
instrument Sy 5 - (16,159)
Other interest income H M F S WA 5 (803) -
Impairment loss on available-for-sale AHEERE 2
investments HERE 6 - 19,382
Impairment loss on goodwill HERESE 16 1,581 2,776
Depreciation of property, mE - BER
plant and equipment JBITE 13 2,125 1,766
Amortisation of lease premium for land sk 5| 14 34 33
Impairment loss on other receivables HhEWAR R Z
B e 24 - 220
Change in fair value of investment properties By
NE(EE 15 (13,725) (3,636)
Net (gain)/loss on disposal of investment ﬁ’é&é{%%z
properties (lezs) / B51EF 58 56 (490) 182
Written back of accruals W 3 PE 5T SR IE 5 - (3,600)
Net gain on disposal of property, HENE © BE R
plant and equipment Bz W FE 56 - (3,097)
(21,167) (41,837)
Changes in working capital ﬁ@ﬁﬁﬂi@
Decrease in inventories FERD 732 1,967
Increase in forfeited collateral held for sale %%?ﬁxx”ﬂﬁﬁﬁ LN (213) (63)
Decrease in accounts receivable FEMER ORI 198 18
Decrease/(increase) in moneylending U REERRD
loan receivables (3%0) 18,242 (8,371)
Increase in deposits, e AR REA
prepayments and other receivables JE U8 BR K38 N (6,346) (3,051)
Decrease in amount due from a FEM AL [RI%
jointly-controlled entity ‘é&ﬁaﬁmﬁﬂ” 234 33
Decrease in equity investments at BAFENERNIRZ
fair value through profit or loss BHRERD 3,166 16,640
Decrease in derivative financial instrument @TEHMRI,E: VR 16,159 =
Increase in accounts payable f1ﬁﬁE K1 0 509 217
Increase/(decrease) in accruals and AT RIB R E YIRS
deposits received #n,/ Crd) 1,104 (12,436) %I
JA
Cash generated from/(used in) operations EEELE (FTR) B 12,618 (46,883) i
PRC enterprise income tax paid BB EAMEH 8(c) (22) (47) 5
PRC enterprise income tax refunded BRERBDEMEH 8(c) 18 = ]
Hong Kong profits tax paid ENEBNEH 8(c) (134) (22) /_%
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from REELBELEZHE F
operating activities RA (R B 12,480 (46,952) 5l
o
w




/
/o y
2013 2012
—E—=fF —T——F
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
Bt s FEx FHET
Investing activities REEE
Bank interest received BUERTTHIE 5 132 330
Dividend received from listed securities B FTEAER A 5 760 672
Acquisition of investment properties BEREYE (7,845) (17,218)
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment BEYX - BEKEE (476) (14,432)
Increase in deposits paid in HEEYZE  BEX
respect of acquisition of property, RBE T 2SN
plant and equipment 19 (19) (98)
Proceeds from deregistration of a HEEESI B
jointly-controlled entity BUR M 2 Fri8 k18 470 =
Net proceeds from disposal HERBEMEMSG
of investment properties FRIBFRE 10,830 15,988
Net proceeds from disposal of property, HEME - BEK
plant and equipment B2 TS FRIBFRE - 7,104
Acquisition of available-for-sale investments BEAHHERE - (14,430)
Acquisition of subsidiaries, BEWBAR -
net of cash acquired MBRBEAZRE 37 (52,000) (15,100)
Net cash outflow from investing activities RETHELEZRSE
R ERE (48,148) (37,184)
Financing activities MEED
Other interest paid HE A8 7 (534) (508)
Interest element of finance lease rentals paid BEff@EHe 2 FBHy 7 (15) 2)
Proceeds from new bank borrowings HIRTTIE B R E - 15,193
Repayment of bank borrowings ERRITEE (1,890) (3,196)
Repayment of finance lease payable EREN R ETRA A (108) -
Net cash (outflow)/inflow from MEFTBDELZRE
financing activities (Rd),/ FABE (2,547) 11,487
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents HeRBELEHEER
B R EE (38,215) (72,649)
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes HNEK [ SR ) 7 RO (1) 1,098
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year F¥Z2HRERELEEER 125,647 197,198
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year EEZRERRLEEER 28 87,431 125,647

The notes on pages 29 to 145 form an integral part of these financial 55298 Z= 551458 ~ M sE a1t B & RE 2 —
statements. R4S o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS =, _
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For the year ended 30 April 2013 BIZ —T—=4#MWA=tEILFE |

! r } o,
1. Corporate information 1. ARIEHR

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an exempted
company with limited liability under the Companies Law of the
Cayman Islands. The address of its registered office is Cricket Square,
Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111. The address
of its principal place of business is 17A, EGL Tower, 83 Hung To Road,
Kwun Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong. The Company’s shares are listed
on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”).

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 17.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, at 30 April 2013,
Vongroup Holdings Limited, a company incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands, which owns 67.61% of the issued share capital of the
Company, is the parent and ultimate holding company and Mr. Vong
Tat leong, David is the ultimate controlling party of the Company.

2. Significant accounting policies

(a) Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”), which collective term includes all applicable individual
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”), accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. These
financial statements also comply with the applicable disclosure
provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”). A summary of the significant
accounting policies adopted by the Group is set out below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs which
are first effective or available for early adoption for the current
accounting period of the Group and the Company. Note 3 provides
information on any changes in accounting policies resulting from
initial application of these developments to the extent that they
are relevant to the Group for the current and prior accounting
periods reflected in these financial statements.
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2. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(b) Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 30 April
2013 comprise the Company and its subsidiaries (together referred
to as the “Group”) and the Group’s interest in a jointly-controlled
entity.

Items included in the financial statements of each entity in the
Group are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (the “functional
currency”). These financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$”), rounded to the nearest thousand except for
per share data. Hong Kong dollar is the Company’s functional and
the Group’s presentation currency.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the financial
statements is the historical cost basis, except for the investment
properties and equity investments at fair value through profit or
loss that have been measured at fair value.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires management to make judgments, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical experience
and various other factors believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making
the judgments about carrying values of assets and liabilities not
readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ
from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision
affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future
periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

Judgments made by management in the application of HKFRSs
that have significant effect on the financial statements and major
sources of estimation uncertainty are discussed in note 40.
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2. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

() HIELAIRHFZRER

(c) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. Control exists
when the Group has the power to govern the financial and
operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from
its activities. In assessing control, potential voting rights that
presently are exercisable are taken into account.

Aninvestment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the consolidated
financial statements from the date that control commences
until the date that control ceases. Intra-group balances and
transactions and any unrealised profits arising from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated
financial statements. Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains
but only to the extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a subsidiary not
attributable directly or indirectly to the Company, and in respect
of which the Group has not agreed any additional terms with the
holders of those interests which would result in the Group as a
whole having a contractual obligation in respect of those interests
that meets the definition of a financial liability.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position within equity, separately from
equity attributable to the owners of the Company. Non-controlling
interests in the results of the Group are presented on the face
of the consolidated statement of comprehensive income as an
allocation of the total profit or loss and total comprehensive
income for the year between non-controlling interests and
the owners of the Company. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance.
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2. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(c) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

(Continued)

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that do not result
in a loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions,
whereby adjustments are made to the amounts of controlling
and non-controlling interests within consolidated equity to reflect
the change in relative interests, but no adjustments are made to
goodwill and no gain or loss is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is accounted for as
a disposal of the entire interest in that subsidiary, with a resulting
gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss. Any interest
retained in that former subsidiary at the date when control is
lost is recognised at fair value and this amount is regarded as
the fair value on initial recognition of a financial asset or, when
appropriate, the cost on initial recognition of an investment in an
associate or a jointly controlled entity.

In the Company’s statements of financial position, an investment
in a subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment losses (see note
2(i)(i)), unless the investment is classified as held for sale (or
included in a disposal group that is classified as held for sale).

(d) Business combinations

Business combinations on or after 1 May 2010

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred in a business combination
is measured at fair value, which is calculated as the sum of the
acquisition-date fair values of the assets transferred by the Group,
liabilities incurred by the Group to the former owners of the
acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange
for control of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally
recognised in profit or loss as incurred.
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2. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(d) Business combinations (Continued)

Business combinations on or after 1 May 2010 (Continued)

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the

liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair values, except that:

a deferred tax asset or liability arising from the assets
acquired and liabilities assumed in a business combination
and the potential tax effects of temporary differences and
carryforwards of an acquiree that exist at the acquisition
date or arise as a result of the acquisition are recognised and
measured in accordance with HKAS 12 Income Taxes;

assets or liabilities relating to employee benefit arrangements
are recognised and measured in accordance with HKAS 19
Employee Benefits;

liabilities or equity instruments relating to share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree or share-based
payment arrangements of the Group entered into to replace
share-based payment arrangements of the acquiree are
measured in accordance with HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment
at the acquisition date; and

assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for sale
in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale
and Discontinued Operations are measured in accordance
with that Standard.
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2. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(d) Business combinations (Continued)

Business combinations on or after 1 May 2010 (Continued)

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests in the
acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held equity
interest in the acquiree (if any) over the net of the acquisition-date
amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities
assumed. If, after re-assessment, the net of the acquisition-date
amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
assumed exceeds the sum of the consideration transferred, the
amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree and the
fair value of the acquirer’s previously held interest in the acquiree
(if any), the excess is recognised immediately in profit or loss as a
bargain purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests and
entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the entity’s net
assets in the event of liquidation may be initially measured either
at fair value or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate
share of the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable
net assets. The choice of measurement basis is made on a
transaction-by-transaction basis. Other types of non-controlling
interests are measured at their fair value or, when applicable, on
the basis specified in another HKFRSs.

Where the consideration transferred by the Group in a
business combination includes assets or liabilities resulting
from a contingent consideration arrangement, the contingent
consideration is measured at its acquisition-date fair value and
included as part of the consideration transferred in a business
combination. Changes in the fair value of the contingent
consideration that qualify as measurement period adjustments
are adjusted retrospectively, with the corresponding adjustments
against goodwill. Measurement period adjustments are
adjustments that arise from additional information obtained
during the “measurement period” (which cannot exceed one year
from the acquisition date) about facts and circumstances that
existed at the acquisition date.
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2. FESFHEE (&)

2. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(d) EHEG (&)

(d) Business combinations (Continued)

Business combinations on or after 1 May 2010 (Continued)

The subsequent accounting for changes in the fair value of the
contingent consideration that do not qualify as measurement
period adjustments depends on how the contingent consideration
is classified. Contingent consideration that is classified as
equity is not remeasured at subsequent reporting dates and its
subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity. Contingent
consideration that is classified as an asset or a liability is
remeasured at subsequent reporting dates in accordance with
HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement, or
HKAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets, as
appropriate, with the corresponding gain or loss being recognised
in profit or loss.

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the Group’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree is remeasured to
fair value at the acquisition date (i.e. the date when the Group
obtains control) and the resulting gain or loss, if any, is recognised
in profit or loss. Amounts arising from interests in the acquiree
prior to the acquisition date that have previously been recognised
in other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss
where such treatment would be appropriate if that interest were
disposed of.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is incomplete
by the end of the reporting period in which the combination
occurs, the Group reports provisional amounts for the items for
which the accounting is incomplete. Those provisional amounts
are adjusted during the measurement period (see above), or
additional assets or liabilities are recognised, to reflect new
information obtained about facts and circumstances that existed
at the acquisition date that, if known, would have affected the
amounts recognised at that date.
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2. FESFHEER (&)

2. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(d) EHEGF ()

(d) Business combinations (Continued)
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Business combinations prior 1 May 2010

Acquisition of businesses was accounted for using the purchase
method. The cost of the acquisition was measured at the
aggregate of the fair values, at the date of exchange, of assets
given, liabilities incurred or assumed, and equity instruments
issued by the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree, plus
any costs directly attributable to the business combination. The
acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
that met the relevant conditions for recognition were generally
recognised at their fair value at the acquisition date.

Goodwill arising on acquisition was recognised as an asset and
initially measured at cost, being the excess of the cost of the
acquisition over the Group’s interest in the recognised amounts
of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
recognised. If, after assessment, the Group’s interest in the
recognised amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities
and contingent liabilities exceeded the cost of the acquisition, the
excess was recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The non-controlling interest in the acquiree was initially
measured at the non-controlling interest’s proportionate share of
the recognised amounts of the assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities of the acquiree.

Contingent consideration was recognised, if and only if, the
contingent consideration was probable and could be measured
reliably. Subsequent adjustments to contingent consideration
were recognised against the cost of the acquisition.

Business combinations achieved in stages were accounted for
as separate steps. Goodwill was determined at each step. Any
additional acquisition did not affect the previously recognised
goodwill.
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2. FESFHEE (&)

2. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(e) Jointly-controlled entities (e) REZHERE

A jointly-controlled entity is an entity which operates under a
contractual arrangement between the Group or Company and
other parties, where the contractual arrangement establishes that
the Group or Company and one or more of the other parties share
joint control over the economic activity of the entity.

An investment in a jointly-controlled entity is accounted for in
the consolidated financial statements under the equity method,
unless it is classified as held for sale (or included in a disposal
group that is classified as held for sale). Under the equity
method, the investment is initially recorded at cost, adjusted
for any excess of the Group’s share of the acquisition-date fair
values of the investee’s identifiable net assets over the cost of the
investment (if any). Thereafter, the investment is adjusted for the
post acquisition change in the Group’s share of the investee’s net
assets and any impairment loss relating to the investment (see
notes 2(i)(i)). Any acquisition-date excess over cost, the Group’s
share of the post-acquisition, post-tax results of the investees and
any impairment losses for the year are recognised in the profit or
loss, whereas the Group’s share of the post-acquisition post-tax
items of the investees’ other comprehensive income is recognised
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its interest in the
jointly-controlled entity, the Group’s interest is reduced to nil and
recognition of further losses is discontinued except to the extent
that the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or
made payments on behalf of the investee. For this purpose, the
Group’s interest is the carrying amount of the investment under
the equity method together with the Group’s long-term interests
that in substance form part of the Group’s net investment in the
jointly controlled entity.
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2. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(e) Jointly-controlled entities (Continued)

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions between
the Group and its jointly-controlled entities are eliminated to
the extent of the Group’s interest in the investee, except where
unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred, in which case they are recognised immediately in
profit or loss.

When the Group ceases to have joint control over a jointly
controlled entity, it is accounted for as a disposal of the entire
interest in that investee, with a resulting gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained in that former
investee at the date when joint control is lost is recognised at
fair value and this amount is regarded as the fair value on initial
recognition of a financial asset or, when appropriate, the cost on
initial recognition of an investment in an associate.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at
cost as established at the date of acquisition of the business less
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated
to each of the Group’s cash-generating units, or groups of
cash-generating units, that is expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination.

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is
tested for impairment annually, or more frequently whenever
there is indication that the unit may be impaired. If some or all
of the goodwill allocated to a cash-generating unit was acquired
in a business combination during the current annual period, that
unit shall be tested for impairment before the end of the current
annual period. If the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit is less than the carrying amount of the unit, the impairment
loss is allocated first to reduce the carryingamount of any goodwill
allocated to the unit and then to the other assets of the unit on a
pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of each asset in the
unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised directly in
profit or loss. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not
reversed in subsequent periods.
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2. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(

(g)

Goodwill (Continued)

On disposal of a cash generating unit during the year, any
attributable amount of goodwill is included in the calculation of
the profit or loss on disposal.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost less any accumulated
depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses (see note 2(i)((ii)):

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of property,
plant and equipment, less their estimated residual value, if any,
using the straight line method over their estimated useful lives
as follows:

— leasehold land classified as held under finance leases is
depreciated over the unexpired term of lease;

— buildings situated on leasehold land are depreciated over the
shorter of the unexpired term of lease and their estimated
useful lives, being no more than 50 years after the date of
completion;

— other property, plant and equipment are depreciated on
a straight-line method over their estimated useful lives as

follows:

— Leasehold improvements 20% or over the
remaining term of
the lease, if shorter

—  Furniture, fixtures 10% — 20%

and equipment

20%

33'/%

—  Motor vehicles
—  Utensils and supplies

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of the item is allocated on a
reasonable basis between the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Both the useful life of an asset and its residual value,
if any, are reviewed annually.
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2. EREHBE (B)

2. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(g) Property, plant and equipment (Continued) g V¥ BERZFE (&)
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(h)

Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable
to the acquisition of the items. Cost may also include transfers
from equity of any gains/losses on qualifying cash flow hedges
of foreign currency purchases of property, plant and equipment.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carryingamount of the replaced part is derecognised.
All other repairs and maintenance are recognised in profit or loss
during the financial period in which they are incurred.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than
its estimated recoverable amount.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an
item of property, plant and equipment are determined as the
difference between the net proceeds on disposal and the carrying
amount of the item and are recognised in profit or loss on the
date of retirement or disposal.

Investment properties

Investment properties are land and/or buildings which are owned
or held under a leasehold interest (see note 2(v)) to earn rental
income and/or for capital appreciation. These include land held
fora currently undetermined future use and property that is being
constructed or developed for future use as investment property.

Investment properties are stated in the statement of financial
position at fair value, unless they are still in the course of
construction or development at the end of the reporting period
and their fair value cannot be reliably determined at that time.
Any gain or loss arising from a change in fair value or from the
retirement or disposal of an investment property is recognised
in profit or loss. Rental income from investment properties is
accounted for as described in note 2(I)(iv).
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2. Significant accounting policies (Continued) 2. FESFHBEX (&
(h) Investment properties (Continued) (h) REYH (&)
When the Group holds a property interest under an operating WERNSENSEHERF Y EER
lease to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation, the ABRBBES WA R, KAEAREE -
interest is classified and accounted for as an investment property AR RENEEESERA
on a property-by-property basis. Any such property interest which RRIEEMS - DEARKREMHEZF
has been classified as an investment property is accounted for as MEBAYERER 2 ARG EUARE
if it were held under a finance lease (see note 2(v)), and the same MLFH z w1 (RKIEE2v) - M
accounting policies are applied to that interest as are applied to HERAz 2B EAmERLD T
other investment properties leased under finance leases. Lease Tz B E AR o AR
payments are accounted for as described in note 2(v). BtEE2(v)Prat 75 SRR ©
(i) Impairment of assets (i) BEBE
(i) Impairment of investments in equity securities and other () RAEEZELFRERAMBEKIRN
receivables JR1E
Investments in equity securities and other current and 12 X 7N B ok B8R Ak A 1 AR B B 4
non-current receivables that are stated at cost or amortised DERAHIBERS ZRAFES
cost or are classified as available-for-sale securities are & To 7 Bh B2 IE 7t B FE U BR
reviewed at the end of each reporting period to determine RERSMERARETRT - A
whether there is objective evidence of impairment. Objective HEBEESFEEREBRESE &
evidence of impairment includes observable data that comes BREEERREASEZEERI
to the attention of the Group about one or more of the TZ—HBXkZBEEEEHZAE
following loss events: RYIE -
— significant financial difficulty of the debtor; — EBAERMBEE
— abreach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in — EREH - RN RF]
interest or principal payments; B ARSI
— it becoming probable that the debtor will enter — BEBATEEEBEENA
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation:; B T5EA
— significant changes in the technological, market, — Hfly M5 KEIOEER %I
economic or legal environment that have an adverse BEEHEBAB TN E %
effect on the debtor; and ZERER & §
R
N N R N
— asignificant or prolonged decline in the fair value of an — RERAIAZREBEZRAFE G
investment in an equity instrument below its cost. BRE R EMERH KA o P
o
K
w
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2. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(i) Impairment of assets (Continued)

U

Impairment of investments in equity securities and other
receivables (Continued)

If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss is determined
and recognised as follows:

—  For investments in subsidiaries and jointly-controlled
entity (including those recognised using the equity
method (see note 2(e)), the impairment loss is measured
by comparing the recoverable amount of the investment
with its carrying amount in accordance with note 2(i)
(ii). The impairment loss is reversed if there has been a
favourable change in the estimates used to determine
the recoverable amount in accordance with note 2(i)(ii).

— For unquoted equity securities carried at cost,
impairment loss is measured as the difference between
the carrying amount of the financial asset and the
estimated future cash flows, discounted at the current
market rate of return for a similar financial asset where
the effect of discounting is material. Impairment losses
for equity securities carried at cost are not reversed.

—  For accounts receivables and other current receivables
and other financial assets carried at amortised cost,
impairment loss is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows, discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e. the effective
interest rate computed at initial recognition of these
assets), where the effect of discounting is material. This
assessment is made collectively where these financial
assets share similar risk characteristics, such as similar
past due status, and have not been individually assessed
as impaired. Future cash flows for financial assets which
are assessed for impairment collectively are based
on historical loss experience for assets with credit risk
characteristics similar to the collective group.
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(1)

RAEHIRE R A M ERA
JR1E (&)

WEETAZEER - ERRE
ERAR A T EE R ER -

— BRMERRRARESE
B (BRRRaEERE (R
Bf&E20)) < ®EME @ 1R
1 BN EE2(0)(6i) - BB BRIy B
BERE 2 A E R EE
REEETHEEMAE - R
1R B EE2(1) (i) AR EE TE AT R
Bl &R AT EEER T E
B - BB ERERIE -

— BERAEINRZIE LT
ARFEHME - BEEEZM
BEE 2 REEEREBUUM
BEEZRITMSEREKE
(R ZEBEAN) b
A2 ARRBSRE 2 Z AT
B o WRAEIRZ BRAE
7 BEREDTED

— BRI BR 2 U BR
R R B AR ) FE W BR SR
5OREBBRREEZERE
BEZMBEERANERAF
X (At FEEN S ERER
BB 2EBRME) BE3R (10
MRZEEBEXN) Atz
AREBEREREZZRE
B -MZREVHEEERRE
Uz B PlmBELle
BEAE I R W R BB AT
REE RIEZEEE Y
e HRAET - KFRETR
B2 M BEEZARARR
TR E TR % T
BEABBUEERRER
BEZBEBRBRE -



'-I{?}-f .'._':-

2. TESFHEER (&

2. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(i) BEBE (&)

(i) Impairment of assets (Continued)

() KAEBZRERE M ERFRAZ

(i) Impairment of investments in equity securities and other

receivables (Continued)

If in a subsequent period the amount of an impairment
loss decreases and the decrease can be linked objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment loss was
recognised, the impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss. A reversal of an impairment loss shall
not result in the asset’s carrying amount exceeding that
which would have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised in prior years.

—  For available-for-sale securities, the cumulative loss
that has been recognised in the fair value reserve
is reclassified to profit or loss. The amount of the
cumulative loss that is recognised in profit or loss is
the difference between the acquisition cost (net of any
principal repayment and amortisation) and current fair
value, less any impairment loss on that asset previously
recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment losses recognised in profit or loss in respect
of available-for-sale equity securities are not reversed
through profit or loss. Any subsequent increase in
the fair value of such assets is recognised in other
comprehensive income.

Impairment losses are written off against the corresponding
assets directly, except for impairment losses recognised
in respect of moneylending loan receivables, accounts
receivable and other receivables, whose recovery is
considered doubtful but not remote. In this case, the
impairment losses for doubtful debts are recorded using
an allowance account. When the Group is satisfied that
recovery is remote, the amount considered irrecoverable
is written off against accounts receivable directly and any
amounts held in the allowance account relating to that debt
are reversed. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
charged to the allowance account are reversed against the
allowance account. Other changes in the allowance account
and subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off
directly are recognised in profit or loss.
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2. EREHBE (B)

2. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(i) BEBE (&)

(i) Impairment of assets (Continued)

(i) EAhEEZBIE

(i) Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are reviewed at REE e R G ERERRRN A
B RINAE R RIRATEE T5E
EBGLBBAEZTR  SGAT
R REREE (BERERIN)
EETNBEERERD

the end of each reporting period to identify indications that
the following assets may be impaired or, except in the case
of goodwill, an impairment loss previously recognised no
longer exists or may have decreased:

<
(=)
S
(']
-
(=]
=
-
=
=
=
o
o
.
>
5
>
o
S
~
%)
S
)
=3
N
(=)
=
w

property, plant and equipment;

deposits paid for acquisition of property, plant and
equipment and investment properties;

lease premium for land; and

goodwill.

Ifany such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable amount is
estimated. In addition, for goodwill, the recoverable amount
is estimated annually whether or not there is any indication
of impairment.

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the higher of
its fair value less costs to sell and its value in use. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of
time value of money and the risks specific to the asset.
Where an asset does not generate cash inflows largely
independent of those from other assets, the recoverable
amount is determined for the smallest group of assets
that generates cash inflows independently (i.e. a
cash-generating unit).
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2. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(i) Impairment of assets (Continued)

(ii) Impairment of other assets (Continued)

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss
whenever the carrying amount of an asset, or the
cash-generating unit to which it belongs, exceeds its
recoverable amount. Impairment losses recognised in
respect of cash-generating units are allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated
to the cash-generating unit (or group of units) and then,
to reduce the carrying amount of the other assets in the
unit (or group of units) on a pro rata basis, except that
the carrying value of an asset will not be reduced below
its individual fair value less costs to sell, or value in use,
if determinable.

Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than goodwill, an impairment
loss is reversed if there has been a favourable change
in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount. An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is
not reversed.

A reversal of impairment losses is limited to the asset’s
carrying amount that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised in prior years.
Reversals of impairment losses are credited to profit or
loss in the year in which the reversals are recognised.
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(i) BEBE (&)

(i) BtEEZHEE (&)
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2. EREHBE (B)

2. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(i) BEHBE (&)

(i) Impairment of assets (Continued)
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(iii) Interim financial reporting and impairment

Under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, the Group is required
to prepare an interim financial report in compliance with
HKAS 34, Interim Financial Reporting, in respect of the first
six months of the financial year. At the end of the interim
period, the Group applies the same impairment testing,
recognition, and reversal criteria as it would at the end of
the financial year.

Impairment losses recognised in an interim period in respect
of goodwill, available-for-sale equity securities and unquoted
equity securities carried at cost are not reversed in a
subsequent period. This is the case even if no loss, or a smaller
loss, would have been recognised had the impairment been
assessed only at the end of the financial year to which the
interim period relates. Consequently, if the fair value of an
available-for-sale equity security increases in the remainder
of the annual period, or in any other period subsequently,
the increase is recognised in other comprehensive income
and not profit or loss.

(j) Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or
amount when the Company or Group has a legal or constructive
obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is probable that
an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made. Where the time
value of money is material, provisions are stated at the present
value of the expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future events are
also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote.

(iif) FRII & KRR E

BEMAERIMBERARES L
MRARE  AEEAREREL
ST EREMR R P BERE R
HEMRMBFERENEAZFH
M¥mE - RPHER AKHE
ERANMREEEERER
MRIBERR - R KRB EAER -

ErHPRRREREE - AKX
ARBI R 2 AT B RE 25 M OF
iR AE 2B EBBRERR
HE SRR - BEENZT B
PHEEE MR FRERERE
H 2 BB RT (4 FE % AR S iR Bk
BAOER - IR RER 2R
EERIMAGEE - FAit - fid]
HEHERAZTSFZAFERH
T E B R A ] H & B 45
o BIA BB AN A Ath 2 W
mIEB P R -

) RERAABE

HWADEEZ EHEMERARR AR KA
SEAHRRSNBERIRENRE
AEREREREERE - AFRE
BRI eS| BUS BN IR T - X
FROBM IR H e TR FEMAE - R
RUIE B EERZBES T IARER
EERZBREEEIBEKN AR
BEARBHABRBBEEZAXZ
BEI

EREEESE@EREEMER
- BB RER AT 215
AT BERAEFARERIAAE
B JF 8 B B F a1 H 2 AT BE 14 1
1K BUIYERIGS - AIBEREZ BE (B
FERDZAEE -HAZERKRE
HehREmEE) TRESHARA
& - FRIFE BN IR 2 A REtE
K - BRI o



'-I{?}-f .'._':-

2. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(k) Financial assets

The Group classified its financial assets into the following
categories: available-for-sale financial assets, financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss and loans and receivables. The
classification depends on the nature and purpose of the financial
assets and is determined at the time of initial recognition. All
regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised
and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the time frame established by regulation

or convention in the marketplace.

(i) Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are
either designated as available-for-sale or are not classified as
(a) loans and receivables, (b) held-to-maturity investments or

(c) financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.

Available-for-sale financial assets are initially recognised at
fair value plus transaction costs. At the end of each reporting
period the fair value is remeasured, with any resultant gain
or loss being recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated separately in equity in the fair value reserve,
except foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from
changes in the amortised cost of monetary items such as
debt securities which are recognised directly in profit or loss.
Dividend income from these investments is recognised in
profit or loss in accordance with the policy set out in note 2(1)
and, where these investments are interest-bearing, interest
calculated using the effective interest method is recognised
in profit or loss as set out in note 2(1). When these investments
are derecognised or impaired, the cumulative gain or loss is

reclassified from equity to profit or loss.

Investments in equity securities that do not have a quoted
market price in an active market and whose fair value
cannot be reliably measured and derivatives that are
linked to and must be settled by delivery of such unquoted
equity instruments are measured at cost less any identified

impairment losses at the end of each reporting period.

Investments are recognised/derecognised on the date the
Group and/or the Company commits to purchase/sell the

investments or when they expire.
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2. Significant accounting policies (Continued)
(k) Financial assets (Continued)
(i)  Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets are classified as financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss when the financial asset is either held
for trading or it is designated as at fair value through profit
or loss. Any attributable transaction costs are recognised in
profit or loss as incurred.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

— it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
selling it in the near term; or

— on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group manages
together and has a recent actual pattern of short-term
profit-taking; or

— itisa derivative that is not designated and effective as a
hedging instrument.

A financial asset other than a financial asset held for trading
may be designated as at fair value through profit or loss upon
initial recognition if:

— such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency that would
otherwise arise; or

— the financial asset forms part of a group of financial
assets or financial liabilities or both, which is managed
and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis,
in accordance with the Group’s documented risk
management or investment strategy, and information
about the grouping is provided internally on that basis; or

— it forms part of a contract containing one or more
embedded derivatives, and HKAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement permits
the entire combined contract (asset or liability) to be
designated as at fair value through profit or loss.
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2. Significant accounting policies (Continued) 2. FESFHBX (B)
(k) Financial assets (Continued) (k) BIBEE (2)
(i) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (Continued) (i) HEL-FEKEBZIRS IEEE
(%)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are stated at BATEIERIEZMBEEE
fair value, with any gains or losses arising on remeasurement BATEYE MEFTFEESE
recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised ZEABEBEEREZPER - R
in profit or loss does not include any interest or dividends BaERZ RERERFETE
earned on these investments as these are recognised in 1EZ F18 B AL A7 B 3k iR
accordance with the policies set out in note 2(l)(ii) and (v). B BN ZEMNESHREIR

sm
iy

R B wE2()(1) K (v) P B 2 BK 5K B

Fair value is determined in the manner described in note 41.

%73 o NEERM 4P 5 A B

I’E o
Derivative financial instruments PIESBEITA
Derivatives, including termination right, are initially PTHETA (BIERIEE) THRZIT
recognised at fair value at the date when derivative contracts ATHENEFTHBHZATEY
are entered into and are subsequently remeasured to their IR - HBARHRERERN
fair value at the end of the reporting period. The resulting ATEEAFE REMFHZK
gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss immediately unless =N EEARRNIERER - %
the derivative is designated and effective as a hedging METIAWEERARNEHRIA
instrument, in which case the timing of the recognition in BRON - RULIERT - RIEERTER
profit or loss depends on the nature of the hedge relationship. Fr /B G TR 2 NE M E ©

(iii) Loans and receivables (iif) B RIEHE

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets BERREWHKIEREEESKA T
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in EENRBZITENFEE -
an active market. Loans and receivables (including accounts BEERMS EWERE - BN
receivable, moneylending loan receivables, cash and cash FEWHIE (BEEWERR - &
equivalent, and other receivables as described in note 42) HﬂZEﬁZ EER - BeMREEEE
are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest DA R 9 aE42F di 2 A E UK
method, less any impairment. m) RAE R B R AR iR

EXZK/WHEJ/WEEJrE °

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective FEWA T A BERF RER
interest rate, except for short-term receivables when the MEEE BHERA SR 2 B HE K
recognition of interest would be considered. FRIABIBRAN ©
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2. FESFHEER (&)

2. Significant accounting policies (Continued)
(k) FIHBEE (&)

(k) Financial assets (Continued)

(iv) Derecognition (iv) #XIEHERR
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The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.
If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group continues to recognise the asset
to the extent of its continuing involvement and recognises
an associated liability. If the Group retains substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial
asset, the Group continues to recognise the financial asset
and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the
proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
sum of the consideration received and receivable and the
cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is
recognised in profit or loss.

On derecognition of a financial asset other than in its
entirety, the Group allocates the previous carrying amount
of the financial asset between the part it continues to
recognise, and the part it no longer recognises on the
basis of the relative fair values of those parts on the date
of the transfer. The difference between the carrying amount
allocated to the part that is no longer recognised and the
sum of the consideration received for the part no longer
recognised and any cumulative gain or loss allocated to it
that had been recognised in other comprehensive income is
recognised in profit or loss. A cumulative gain or loss that had
been recognised in other comprehensive income is allocated
between the part that continues to be recognised and the
part that is no longer recognised on the basis of the relative
fair values of those parts.
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2. Significant accounting policies (Continued) 2. FESFHBEX (&
(I Revenue recognition () Yas B
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration Wi e Wk ERREZ R FER
received or receivables. Provided it is probable that the economic = MALEFNSBIRERALREER
benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue and costs, if NoE W R (M8 A) gEr] S
applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue is recognised in FrER - WATREBERER @ F1510
profit or loss as follows: K
(i) Revenue from food & beverage businesses () BEEREZ W
Revenue from food & beverage businesses is recognised BERER 2 W=NE RBERR M
when catering services have been provided to customers. PER RIS IERR ©
(i) Interest income (i) FLEKA
Interest income (including financial services income) for FrEtE2mIT A ZFIBRA (B
all interest-bearing financial instruments is recognised in ERVE ARISWA) SRR BB M E0E
profit or loss on an accruals basis using the effective interest RIS B AEERIERTER o
method.
The effective interest method is a method of calculating ERMNEEDNHECREECHE
the amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating SHAK S [ 3% A [ BA o B A1) 2 K
the interest income over the relevant period. The effective AT E - BEMEDZeHT
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated BBt EHBEFTERREX
future cash payments or receipts through the expected life A (B E R R B S AR
of the financial instrument or, when appropriate, a shorter HEemMEERETE) T2
period to the net carrying amount of the financial asset. LR FTEERFERE  AE
When calculating the effective interest rate, the Group BEEEZEESMTE s —&41E
estimates cash flows considering all contractual terms of K (FIAnER AR « 3RS AR LLER
the financial instrument (for example, prepayment, call and ) BN EERARREEEEEM
similar options) but does not consider future credit losses. FFIRERE c FFEAEBIER N
The calculation includes all fees and points paid or received AT BRI R 2
between parties to the contract that are an integral part of —EARFEEE  KHMA
the effective interest rate, transaction costs and all other REMAA & B ITE
premiums or discounts. B
5
=5
(iii) Sales of forfeited collateral (iti) # Y i 2 §
§
Sales of forfeited collateral are recognised on the transfer of HOSWH IR miE S EE RS 3
risks and rewards of ownership, which generally coincides 2R R B3R (B FE] —RR R AR IR é
with the time when the forfeited collateral is delivered and HA R R A S R *i,f
the title has passed to customers. Z AR BT UARERR o 2
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2. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

() Revenue recognition (Continued)

(iv) Rental income from operating leases

(v)

(vi)

Rental income receivable under operating leases is recognised
in profit or loss in equal instalments over the periods covered
by the lease term, except where an alternative basis is more
representative of the pattern of benefits to be derived
from the use of the leased asset. Lease incentives granted
are recognised in profit or loss as an integral part of the
aggregate net lease payments receivable. Contingent rentals
are recognised as income in the accounting period in which
they are earned.

Dividends

Dividend income from unlisted investments is recognised
when the shareholder’s right to receive payment is
established. Dividend income from listed investments is
recognised when the share price of the investment goes
ex-dividend.

Revenue from technology & media business
Revenue from technology & media business is recognised

when the service rendered have been performed to
customers.

(vii) Revenue from trading of securities

Net gains/losses on financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss and those held for trading in respect of trading of
securities include realised gains/losses which are recognised
on trade date basis when the relevant contract notes are
exchanged; and unrealised fair value gains/losses which are
recognised in the period in which they arise.
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2. TESFHEER (&

2. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(m) Trade and other receivables (m) W B 5k R B b FE W AR 54

(n)

(0)

(p)

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at fair value
and thereafter stated at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less allowance for impairment of doubtful debts, except
where the receivables are interest-free loans made to related
parties without any fixed repayment terms or the effect of
discounting would be immaterial. In such cases, the receivables
are stated at cost less allowance for impairment of doubtful debts
(see note 2(i)).

Moneylending loan receivables

Moneylending loan receivables are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method. A typical moneylending loan has a
term of not more than one year. If the loan is not repaid, the
loan principal becomes the cost of the forfeited collateral, which
is held for sale.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair value and
thereafter stated at amortised cost unless the effect of discounting
would be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of
the reporting period. Exchange gains and losses are recognised
in profit or loss, except those arising from foreign currency
borrowings used to hedge a net investment in a foreign operation
which are recognised in other comprehensive income.
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2. FESFHEER (&)

2. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

() SAEERE (E)

(p) Translation of foreign currencies (Continued)
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Non-monetary assets and liabilities measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates. Non-monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies stated at
fair value are translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the dates the fair value was determined.

The results of foreign operations are translated into Hong Kong
dollars at the exchange rates approximating the foreign exchange
rates ruling at the dates of the transactions. Statement of financial
position items, including goodwill on consolidation of foreign
operations acquired on or after 1 May 2005, are translated into
Hong Kong dollars at the closing foreign exchange rates ruling at
the end of the reporting period. The resulting exchange differences
are recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
separately in equity in the exchange translation reserve. Goodwill
arising on consolidation of a foreign operation acquired before 1
May 2005 is translated at the foreign exchange rate that applied
at the date of acquisition of the foreign operation.

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of the Group’s
entire interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss
of control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation, or
a disposal involving loss of joint control over a jointly-controlled
entity that includes a foreign operation), all of the exchange
differences accumulated in equity in respect of that operation
attributable to the owners of the Company are reclassified to
profit or loss.

In the case of a partial disposal of a subsidiary that does not result
in the Group losing control over the subsidiary, the proportionate
share of accumulated exchange differences are re-attributed
to non-controlling interests and are not recognised in profit
or loss. For all other partial disposals (i.e. partial disposals of a
jointly-controlled entity that do not result in the Group losing joint
control), the proportionate share of the accumulated exchange
differences is reclassified to profit or loss.
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2. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(q) Defined contribution retirement scheme

(r)

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“the
MPF scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance for employees employed under the
jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance and not
previously covered by the defined benefit retirement plan. The MPF
scheme is a defined contribution retirement plan administered
by independent trustees. Under the MPF scheme, the employer
and its employees are each required to make contributions to the
plan at 5% of the employees’ relevant income, subject to a cap of
monthly relevant income of HK$25,000 (HK$20,000 prior to June
2012). Contributions to the plan vest immediately.

The Group’s PRC operations participate in defined contribution
retirement plans managed by the local municipal government
in the locations in which it operates. The PRC operations are
required to contribute to a state-sponsored retirement plan for
all its PRC employees at certain percentages of the basic salaries
predetermined by the local governments. The relevant authority
of the local municipal government in the PRC is responsible
for the retirement benefit obligations payable to the Group’s
retired employees. The Group has no obligation for payment
of retirement benefits beyond the annual contribution. The
contribution payable is charged as an expense to profit or loss as
and when incurred.

Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable
value.

Cost is calculated using the first-in, first-out basis and comprises
all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs incurred
in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business less the estimated costs of completion and the
estimated costs necessary to make the sale.
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2. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(r)

(s)

(t)

Inventories (Continued)
When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in which
the related revenue is recognised. The amount of any write-down
of inventories to net realisable value and all losses of inventories
are recognised as an expense in the period the write-down
or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of any write-down
of inventories is recognised as a reduction in the amount of
inventories recognised as an expense in the period in which the
reversal occurs.

Forfeited collateral held for sale

Forfeited collateral held forsale consists of forfeited collateral, from
moneylending loans not repaid. The forfeited collateral is stated
at the lower of the amount initially recognised (moneylending
loan principal) and net realisable value. Net realisable value is the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the
estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary
to make the sale. The cost of forfeited collateral held for sale,
computed on the specific identification basis, is recorded as a cost
of revenue at the time of sale.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand,
demand deposits with banks and other financial institutions,
and short-term, highly liquid investments readily convertible
into known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, having been within three
months of maturity at acquisition. Bank overdrafts that the
repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Group’s
cash management are also included as a component of cash and
cash equivalents for the purpose of the consolidated statement
of cash flows.
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2. TESFHEER (&

2. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(u) FFE#

(u) Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and movements in
deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current tax and movements in
deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised in profit or loss
except to the extent that they relate to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case the
relevant amounts of tax are recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for
the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the
end of the reporting period, and any adjustment to tax payable in
respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible and
taxable temporary differences respectively, being the differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial
reporting purposes and their tax bases. Deferred tax assets also
arise from unused tax losses and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax liabilities,
and all deferred tax assets to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profits will be available against which the asset
can be utilised, are recognised. Future taxable profits that may
support the recognition of deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences include those that will arise
from the reversal of existing taxable temporary differences,
provided those differences relate to the same taxation authority
and the same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse either
in the same period as the expected reversal of the deductible
temporary difference or in periods into which a tax loss arising
from the deferred tax asset can be carried back or forward. The
same criteria are adopted when determining whether existing
taxable temporary differences support the recognition of deferred
tax assets arising from unused tax losses and credits, that is, those
differences are taken into account if they relate to the same
taxation authority and the same taxable entity, and are expected
to reverse in a period, or periods, in which the tax loss or credit
can be utilised.
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2. FESFHEER (&)

2. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(u) Income tax (Continued) (u) FiE® (&)
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The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax assets and
liabilities are those temporary differences arising from goodwill
not deductible for tax purposes, the initial recognition of assets
or liabilities that affect neither accounting nor taxable profit
(provided they are not part of a business combination), and
temporary differences relating to investments in subsidiaries
to the extent that, in the case of taxable differences, the Group
controls the timing of the reversal and it is probable that the
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future, or in the
case of deductible differences, unless it is probable that they will
reverse in the future.

Where investment properties are carried at their fair value in
accordance with the accounting policy set out in note 2(h), the
amount of deferred tax recognised is measured using the tax
rates that would apply on sale of those assets at their carrying
value at the reporting date unless the property is depreciable and
is held within a business model whose objective is to consume
substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in the
property over time, rather than through sale. In all other cases,
the amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based on
the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying
amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period. Deferred
tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at the end
of each reporting period and is reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow the related tax benefit to be utilised. Any such reduction
is reversed to the extent that it becomes probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available.
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2. TESFHEER (&

2. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(u) Frs# (&)

(u) Income tax (Continued)

(v)

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution of
dividends are recognised when the liability to pay the related
dividends is recognised.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and movements
therein, are presented separately from each other and are not
offset. Current tax assets are offset against current tax liabilities,
and deferred tax assets against deferred tax liabilities, if the
Company or the Group has the legally enforceable right to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the following
additional conditions are met:

— in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the Company
or the Group intends either to settle on a net basis, or to
realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously; or

— in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they relate
to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on
either:

— the same taxable entity; or

— different taxable entities, which, in each future period
in which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities
or assets are expected to be settled or recovered,
intend to realise the current tax assets and settle the
current tax liabilities on a net basis or realise and settle
simultaneously.

Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of
transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group determines that
the arrangement conveys a right to use a specific asset or assets
for an agreed period of time in return for a payment or a series of
payments. Such a determination is made based on an evaluation
of the substance of the arrangement and is regardless of whether
the arrangement takes the legal form of a lease.
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2. Significant accounting policies (Continued)
(v) Leased assets (Continued)
(i) Classification of assets leased to the Group

Assets held by the Group under leases which transfer to the
Group substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
are classified as being held under finance leases. Leases
which do not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the Group are classified as operating leases,
with the following exceptions:

— Property held under operating leases that would
otherwise meet the definition of an investment
property is classified as an investment property on
a property-by-property basis and, if classified as
investment property, is accounted for as if held under a
finance lease (see note 2 (v)(ii)); and

— land held for own use under an operating lease, the
fair value of which cannot be measured separately
from the fair value of a building situated thereon at the
inception of the lease, is accounted for as being held
under a finance lease, unless the building is also clearly
held under an operating lease. For these purposes, the
inception of the lease is the time that the lease was
first entered into by the Group, or taken over from the
previous lessee.
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2. TESFHEER (&
v) HEZE (&
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2. Significant accounting policies (Continued)
(v) Leased assets (Continued)

(i) Assets acquired under finance leases

(iii)

Where the Group acquires the use of assets under finance
leases, the amounts representing the fair value of the leased
asset, or, if lower, the present value of the minimum lease
payments, of such assets are included in property, plant and
equipment and the corresponding liabilities, net of finance
charges, are recorded as obligations under finance leases.
Depreciation is provided at rates which write off the cost of
the assets over the term of the relevant lease or, where it is
likely the Company or Group will obtain ownership of the
asset, the life of the asset, as set out in note 2(g). Impairment
losses are accounted for in accordance with the accounting
policy as set out in note 2(i). Finance charges implicit in the
lease payments are charged to profit or loss over the period
of the leases so as to produce an approximately constant
periodic rate of charge on the remaining balance of the
obligations for each accounting period.

Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets under operating leases,
payments made under the leases are charged to profit or loss
in equal instalments over the accounting periods covered
by the lease term, except where an alternative basis is more
representative of the pattern of benefits to be derived from
the leased asset. Lease incentives received are recognised in
profit or loss as an integral part of the aggregate net lease
payments made. Contingent rentals are charged as expenses
in the accounting period in which they are incurred.

The cost of acquiring land held under an operating lease is
amortised on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease
term.

(w) Employee benefits

(1)

Short term employee benefits and contributions to defined
contribution retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, contributions
to defined contribution retirement plans and the cost of
non-monetary benefits are accrued in the year in which
the associated services are rendered by employees. Where
payment or settlement is deferred and the effect would be
material, these amounts are stated at their present values.
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2. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

(w) Employee benefits (Continued)

(1)

(i)

Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to employees is
recognised as an employee cost with a corresponding
increase in capital reserve within equity. The fair value is
measured at grant date taking into account the terms and
conditions upon which the options were granted. Where the
employees have to meet vesting conditions before becoming
unconditionally entitled to the share options, the total
estimated fair value of the share options is spread over the
vesting period, taking into account the probability that the
share options will vest.

During the vesting period, the number of share options
expected to vest is reviewed. Any resulting adjustment to the
cumulative fair value recognised in prior years is charged/
credited to the profit or loss for the year under review, unless
the original employee expenses qualify for recognition as an
asset, with a corresponding adjustment to the capital reserve.
On vesting date, the amount recognised as an expense is
adjusted to reflect the actual number of share options that
vest (with a corresponding adjustment to the capital reserve)
except where forfeiture is only due to not achieving vesting
conditions that relate to the market price of the Company’s
shares. The equity amount is recognised in the capital reserve
until either the option is exercised (when it is transferred to
the share premium account) or the option expires (when it is
released directly to accumulated losses).

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised when, and only
when, the Group demonstrably commits itself to terminate
employment or to provide benefits as a result of voluntary
redundancy by having a detailed formal plan which is
without realistic possibility of withdrawal.
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2. Significant accounting policies (Continued)
(x) Related parties

(a) A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is related
to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of the
Group or the Group’s parent.

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

(i) The entity and the Group are members of the same
group (which means that each parent, subsidiary and
fellow subsidiary is related to the others).

(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or an associate or joint venture of a member of a
group of which the other entity is a member).

(iii) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity.

(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group.

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a).

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced by,
that person in their dealings with the entity.
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2. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

)

(2)

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the financial statements, are identified from the
financial information provided regularly to the chief operating
decision maker, being senior executive management of the
Company, for the purposes of allocating resources to, and
assessing the performance of, the Group’s various lines of business
and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated for
financial reporting purposes unless the segments have similar
economic characteristics and are similar in respect of the nature
of products and services, the nature of production processes, the
type or class of customers, the methods used to distribute the
products or provide the services, and the nature of the regulatory
environment. Operating segments which are not individually
material may be aggregated if they share a majority of these
criteria.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of an asset which necessarily takes a
substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale
are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. Other borrowing
costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost of a
qualifying asset commences when expenditure for the asset is
being incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred and activities
that are necessary to prepare the asset for its intended use or sale
are in progress. Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended or
ceases when substantially all the activities necessary to prepare
the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are interrupted
or complete.

2. EREHBE (B)

(y)

(z)

T EHE

RENBRUBHRERRARES DHER
B2e® DEhlaER2EERRE
(AIRRBIRMITHEERAR) EHE
RERERAARESARE RIS
BEIR - WrHAEERR 2 HHER -

AR EAR 2 EEH BTGB HRE
AmTatt - BIFAEH AR
R - 3 B AR 2 ESRIE
BIH  EETHEE  BPREL
81 HHERIREBRB A S
o AREERFIE o ERFEX
2 @ESEMEE A BIRIA
PSR

EERKE

HEARBA BESLEEE (B
A—BAERZERT AT R R
HIHE) Pl B Z BB A TIERZ
FEEZWMAMARTIAEARL  Hftp
fEERAERES 2 RN -

BRABEREBEXA—BDOZBEK
AEBEELMAX - EERAELEM
FEEERABRTERENHEMLHTLZ
ERTIEETHRRABEREL - £&
REREERARERGLIHEL
AZBRBYERBIIEP EHTK
B - EERANESEERFLEEARML -



&

2. Significant accounting policies (Continued) 2. FESFHBEX (&
(aa)Interest-bearing borrowings (aa)st EEE
Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair STEERENVSRATFEREER S
value less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial AR - RUIPHERE  sTEEE
recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated at amortised THIRBESER ARSI AR - MR ®
cost with any difference between the amount initially recognised FHEEREEMEB EMNERER
and redemption value being recognised in profit or loss over the B EEZEE GER A FERF)
period of the borrowings, together with any interest and fees BRER) 2 BERERAER o

payable, using the effective interest method.

3. Application of new and revised Hong Kong 3. ERAHIIRKEIIEBMBEREE

Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) Bl ([ERMBHREER ]

In the current year, the Group has applied the following new and RAFE - AEEERNE S SR AZAT

revised HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. R TN YIFTR] RS R BB 2ER o

HKFRS 1 Amendments Amendments to HKFRS 1 First-time ERMERS IBET BB &R RS
Adoption of Hong Kong BAF IR BT REREREENE
Financial Reporting Standards — AR — BRERAR
Severe Hyperinflation and REUCHE B IR E 2 [E
Removal of Fixed Dates for =kl
First-time Adopters

HKFRS 7 Amendments Amendments to HKFRS 7 BB BRE 1BET BB A RS
Financial Instruments: ERERZIER] THREHKIA : BE -
Disclosures — Transfers of RIS EE

Financial Assets

The application of the amendments to HKFRSs in the current year REERATEVBRE LR ZETLE
has had no material effect on the Group’s financial performance and HAEEAEERIGBEFEZMBREA
positions for the current and prior years and/or on the disclosures set ERAR RZEHBEREAH 2 REE
out in these financial statements. FHERBAZE -
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4. Segment information

Operating segments are identified on the basis of internal reports
which provide information about components of the Group. This
information is reported to and reviewed by the chief operating decision
maker (“CODM”), senior executive management, for the purposes of
resource allocation and performance assessment.

The Group manages its businesses by divisions, which are organised
by a mixture of both business lines (products and services) and
geography. In a manner consistent with the way in which information
are reported internally to the Company’s CODM for the purposes of
resources allocation and performance assessment, the Group has
presented the segment information by the following reportable
segments. These segments are managed separately. No operating
segments have been aggregated.

1. Financial services: Consumer finance, moneylending,
other financial/business services
and related activities

2. Securities: Securities and related activities

3. Property: Real property and related activities

4. Technology & Media: Technology & media and

related activities

5. Food & Beverage: Catering services, other food &
beverage businesses and
related activities
6. Corporate treasury ~ Management of treasury activities
management: of the Group and related activities

The Group has changed its internal reporting structure during the
year ended 30 April 2013. Accordingly, the comparative segment
information has been restated to reflect the current reporting
structure.

(a) Segment revenue, results, assets and liabilities

For the purpose of assessing segment performance and allocating
resources between segments, the Group’s CODM monitors
the revenue, results, assets and liabilities attributable to each
reportable segment on the following bases:

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable segments
with reference to sales or financing activities generated by those
segments and the expenses incurred by those segments or which
otherwise arise from the depreciation or amortisation of assets
attributable to those segments.

Segment assets principally comprise all tangible assets and
intangible assets directly attributable to each segment. Segment
liabilities include accounts payable, accruals and deposits received
and tax payables attributable to each segment and finance lease
payable and borrowings managed directly by the segments.
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4. Segment information (Continued) 4. DEER (&
(a) Segment revenue, results, assets and liabilities (a) B EWz - ¥4 ZERERE
(Continued) (%)
Segment revenues and results DWW R EE
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results TRIZATHFDBEONAEE 2
from operations by reportable segments. T RIS AR o
Segment revenue/(loss) Segment profit/(loss)

fEWE S (BE) DR, (FE)
Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended
30/4/2013 30/4/2012  30/4/2013 30/4/2012
BZE BHE BZ H=
—_E—= —T——F —T—= —E——4F
MA=+H WA=+H m™A=+H WA=+H
IHEFE IEFE LEFEE IEFE
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000

FET TAT FAET TR

Financial services © Bl AR 75 956 1,935 (1,431) (2,226)

Securities 75 2 1,576 (11,312) 1,963 (11,939)

Property ES 3,915 2,118 17,260 5,024

Technology & Media iy J R 115 312 (1,494) (805)

Food & Beverage* B 27,654 34,597 (5,146) (1,303)

Corporate treasury management D381 &8 6,753 4124 88 267

Elimination 45 (6,753) (4,124) - —

Total st 34,216 27,650 11,240 (10,982)

Unallocated items: ROBLIERE ¢

Other revenue Hi Uzt 1,273 19,759

Administrative and other TR EAh

operating expenses R F S (21,040) (49,418)

Finance costs ZUp AN (549) (510) 5
%

Loss before taxation MR F RIS 18 (9,076) (41,151) §

Income tax St 475 (69) X
7

Loss for the year AR (8,601)  (41,220) &
=
w

* Included share of loss of a jointly-controlled entity. o BIERE(h RS EEES o
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4. Segment information (Continued)

(a) Segment revenue, results, assets and liabilities

(Continued)
Segment revenues and results (Continued)

Segment revenue from financial services, property, technology &
media and food & beverage represents revenue generated from
external customers. Segment revenue from securities represents
revenue/(loss) generated from trading of listed securities. Segment
revenue from corporate treasury management represents
revenue generated from deposits in financial institutions and
funds financing to companies within the Group. Funds financing
activities between segments are carried out at mutually agreed
terms.

The accounting policies of the operating segments are same as the
Group’s accounting policies. Other revenue, administrative and
other operating expenses and finance costs of the Group that are
not allocated to individual segments are classified as unallocated
items. This is the measure reported to the CODM for the purposes
of resource allocation and assessment of segment performance.
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4. Segment information (Continued) PEER (&)
(a) Segment revenue, results, assets and liabilities (a) B EWz - ¥4 ZERERE
(Continued) (&)
Segment assets and liabilities STHEEEREE
2013 2012
=== —EE—=—%E
HK$’000 HK$’000
TExT TETT
Segment assets PEEE
Financial services & R AR TS 24,684 38,513
Securities e 36,414 39,579
Property S 190,513 136,931
Technology & Media R B 15 e 16,774 18,052
Food & Beverage * B 13,664 16,736
Corporate treasury management EIEER 52,783 84,929
Total segment assets VOB E 334,832 334,740
Unallocated property, plant and equipment RO EEWIZE - = NMEE 15,936 17,209
Unallocated available-for-sales investments &% Big o] fit H £ 154 1,532 1,532
Unallocated cash and cash equivalents ROEEHE NIREEEHIER 958 972
Unallocated derivative financial instrument &2 EHTER T A - 16,159
Unallocated other receivables** 7R 75 B L fih & Y BR e+ 16,962 =
Unallocated corporate assets RO HEEE 4,396 13,582
Consolidated assets HREEBE 374,616 384,194
Segment liabilities STEEE
Financial services & Bt AR 7% 708 778
Securities B A - =
Property L3 39,234 40,309
Technology & Media i K gt 88 29 33
Food & Beverage Z 30,909 30,097
Corporate treasury management EIEER - = =
;E'
Total segment liabilities =R 70,880 71,217 i
Unallocated liabilities ﬂiﬁ@&iéﬁ 4,096 4,735 g
RN
) o NP C
Consolidated liabilities e aE 74,976 75,952 é
R
N
* Included interest in a jointly-controlled entity. * o BRERHREGIERE 2 g
**  Unallocated other receivables that represented the termination right arising ** R B H Ath FEUCR R B AR LE A R K BE
from termination of available-for-sale investment in Tian Da Energy Holdings FEBRERARZ AIHHEREMES

Limited. ZHRIEHE
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4. Segment information (Continued) 4. DPEER (&)
(a) Segment revenue, results, assets and liabilities (a) 7z - ¥4 ZEREE

(Continued) (#&

For the purposes of monitoring segment performance and MEESBRERRSERASEEEIR

allocating resources between segments: ms :

— segment assets exclude certain property, plant and — PHEBEESBEREEHEEZ
equipment, available-for-sale investments, certain cash and ETYE  BEREZE - AT#H
cash equivalents, derivative financial instrument and other ERE ETHEKAESEEE
unallocated corporate assets that are managed on a group B TERBITE  ARHEMK
basis. DEEEFEEE °

— segment liabilities exclude accruals and deposits received - DHBEITEERE—HEHEEY
and other unallocated corporate liabilities that are managed EEtRIBREKIZE REMAR D
on a group basis. [I== =V

Other segment information (included in the measure of segment E 7 BHER (G A 78w F e EE

profit or loss or regularly provided to the CODM) B EHIE R T BACE R RE )

Additions to Depreciation and
non-current assets amortisation
BEFRBEE EREH

Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended
30/4/2013 30/4/2012  30/4/2013 30/4/2012
8= HE Bz Bz
—B—=F —T——HF —_T—= —=F=2—=
MAE=+H WA=+H WA=+AH WA=1+H
LFE IEFE IHFE IEFE
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAET FET FET

Segment assets PEEE

Financial services & R AR TS 20 = 7 102
s Securities EE2 - - - -
3 Property /) E 59,825 32,355 - -
= Technology & Media i K iR A8 - — 14 36
% Food & Beverage BER 398 565 714 509
< Corporate treasury management DB EE IR - - - =
§ Unallocated ROBEEEE 77 16,237 1,424 1,152
-
g Total x 60,320 49,157 2,159 1,799
N
=
v
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4. Segment information (Continued)

(b) Geographical information

(c)

The Group’s operations are carried out in Hong Kong and PRC.
Financial services, technology & media businesses and food
& beverage operations are carried out in Hong Kong and PRC.
Property businesses and securities businesses are carried out
mainly in Hong Kong.

The following is an analysis of geographical location of (i) the
Group’s revenue/(loss) and (ii) the Group’s non-current assets as
specified below. The geographical location of Group’s revenue
refers to the location at which the services were provided or
the goods delivered. The Group’s non-current assets include
property, plant and equipment, investment properties, lease
premium for land, deposits paid for acquisition of property,
plant and equipment and investment properties, goodwill and
interest in a jointly-controlled entity. The geographical locations
of property, plant and equipment, investment properties, lease
premium for land and deposits paid for acquisition of property,
plant and equipment and investment properties are based on
the physical location of the asset under consideration. In the
case of goodwill, it is based on the location of the operation to
which these intangibles are allocated. In the case of interests in a
jointly-controlled entity, it is based on the location of operations
of such jointly- controlled entity.

4. DEEHR (&
(b) HiFEH

AEBZEENBTERTEET - &
BOARTS ~ BT IR RFARERE
EBIIRBRRTBETT - WERHR
BHFEBETBNEBET -

AT R T XA AER 2 e,/ (8
B) MiAREIERDEEAEM
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HREZEHER 2 EE - WE  BER
R REDE - £l UEH
BEME BELERE WEVEMR
NSz aEHIEAREEARS Z
BEFREME - IEEME - JIIE%
EFERWVEERDIEMEIZEEHEM
E o MR ARENERZERTS
AR KRER EREEEBMEL
HoFh o

Revenue/(loss) Segment non-current assets

Wi/ (FR) PEFRBEE
Year ended Year ended At At
30/4/2013 30/4/2012 30/4/2013 30/4/2012

BE BE

—8-=§f —T—_F R i
MA=+H WA=+H =B-=% =—T—_F
LFE 5% @WmA=+A @©mA=tH
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TER TET TER THT
Hong Kong (place of domicile) BE (1) 6,796 (7,369) 188,113 126,225
PRC H 27,420 35,019 18,028 19,951
Total “a=t 34,216 27,650 206,141 146,176

Information about major customers

The Group has a very wide customer base, no single customer
contributed more than 10% of the Group’s revenue for each of the
years ended 30 April 2012 and 2013.
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5. Turnover, other revenue and other net income

The Group is principally engaged in financial services businesses,
securities businesses, property businesses, technology & media
businesses and food & beverage businesses.

Turnover represents income from financial services businesses,
securities businesses, property businesses, technology & media
businesses and food & beverage businesses received or receivable
during the year.

The Group’s turnover, other revenue and other gains for the year arose
from the following activities:

5. &R Hitlm Rk Al AFRE

AEBTERFESRRGER - E5F
% MERD - BT RRBERBARER
ES

LERBEAFEESRRGEER - BH5E
1 MEFRT - Bt RIREE R F A RERK
FEIEWES AT E 2 WA

AREBAFERE 2 LXK - Bt R HEAM
BNTTREBATEIEED

Group
AEE
2013 2012
—E—=fF —_F—=
HK$’000 HK$'000
FB T THT
Turnover B
Income from food & beverage businesses BERETS 2 WA 27,654 34,597
Income from technology & media businesses  Fifiy 2 G A2 5 7% 2 W A 115 312
Net gain/(loss) on equity investments at BAFENERSERECES
fair value through profit or loss wEzZWE (EB) FE 1,576 (11,312)
Financial services income & BARFS UL A 956 1,649
Sale of forfeited collateral oS 8 U 3 G - 286
Gross rental income from investment KEKEYE 2 BHEE
properties WA 3,915 2,118
34,216 27,650
Other revenue Hipur s
Bank interest income RITH BULA 132 330
Other interest income EAn A S WA 803 =
Total interest income on financial assets IHR A THELAIBZRYER
not at fair value through profit or loss 2B R 2 R BUA 935 330
Dividend income from listed securities Em@EH s KEWA 760 672
Sundry income HIFI A 11 213
1,706 1,215
Other gains HhZ
Fair value gain on derivative PTEMB TR A ERE
financial instrument - 16,159
Gain from deregistration of a HEEHIEBEUE ]2
jointly-controlled entity W e 470 =
Net gain on disposal of property, HEWE  BMERREZ
plant and equipment Wz ) FE - 3,091
Net gain on disposal of investment properties &R EYE 2 WS FE 490 -
Written back of accruals HSH FE AT R - 3,600
960 22,850




6. Loss from operations

The Group’s loss from operations is arrived at after charging/(crediting): AEBLE BB LSRR GIA) T
I8
2013 2012
—E2—= —F—-
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Cost of inventories consumed (note 21(b)) KOHFEFE A (FizE21(b)) 9,728 13,972
Cost of forfeited collaterals sold (note 21(b)) 4% B 4 R U IR IR G 2 B AN
(Ft5E21(b)) - 254
9,728 14,226
Staff costs (including directors’ BINAN (BEESEME
emoluments — note 9): — Bd539) ¢
Wages and salaries ITERHS 19,008 18,844
Retirement benefits scheme contributions BIRES T2 89 66
19,097 18,910
Auditor’s remuneration* Z AN & * 727 712
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 472 - &= LREREITE 2,125 1,766
Amortisation of lease premium for land + b FH S 3 34 33
Net gain on disposal of property, HEYE  BMENEEZ
plant and equipment WA - (3,091)
Net (gain)/loss* on disposal HEREMEZ
of investment properties Wzs) EERFEE (490) 182
Exchange loss, net* bE W B iR H R 61 410
Operating lease rentals — minimum LEHE NS
lease payments — IR 5,210 5,020
Rental income from investment properties REYE S WAREE
less direct outgoings of HK$79,000 179,000/ 7T
(2012: HK$102,000) (ZZE——1%F : 102,000/ 7T) (3,836) (2,016)
Dividend income from listed securities EmFEHZRBWA (760) (672)
Gain from deregistration of HEZEH B BEUEE M2
a jointly-controlled entity Weas (470) -
Impairment loss on other receivable (note 24)*  E {th & Ug BE ORI (B B3 18
(FfrsE24) * - 220
Impairment loss on goodwill* REREEE" 1,581 2,776
Impairment loss on available-for-sale AHHERE 2 RIEEE"
investments*® - 19,382
Fair value gain on derivative financial PTAEBIT A2 AT ERKZ
instrument - (16,159)

*  This item is included in other expenses.

*  JIAH

ERFARMAX °
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8.

Finance costs 7. BARERRA
Group
AEE
2013 2012
—E2—= ===
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET THT
Interest on bank borrowings not BARSFANREEE 2
wholly repayable within 5 years IRITEEF S 534 508
Interest on finance lease BEMAR E 15 2
Total interest expense on financial liabilities FEIR AT EAIBERFIERZ
not at fair value through profit or loss B AN B E 549 510

The analysis shows the finance costs of bank borrowings, including
term loans which contain a repayment on demand clause, in
accordance with the agreed scheduled repayments dates set out in
the loan agreements. For the year ended 30 April 2013 and 2012, the
interest on bank borrowings which contain a repayment on demand
clause amounted to HK$534,000 and HK$508,000 respectively.

Income tax

(a) Income tax in the consolidated statement of

BRADIIARITERE ZHBRA - BFERIE
SN BEzEHEBEE A RREAIRERE
REERGXZEHER - RBE—ZT—=FK
“E-_FUA=THIFE HEERE
RER G Z RITEERE 2 B £534,000/8 7T
52508,000/8 7T, ©

8. FIBH
(a) HEDEWZE TR 2 EH

comprehensive income represents: .
Group
AEE
2013 2012
—=E—= —E-CF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET THT
Current tax BVEAFR I8
PRC Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT”) FRE AT ER
(MBI 22 47
(Over)/Under-provision in prior year BEFE (BRERE),
Hong Kong Profits Tax BETEEANEH 112 22
PRC EIT P RATISH (18) -
94 22
Deferred tax ERETE IR
Reversal of temporary differences RO ERF =58 (591) -
Income tax (credit)/charge for the year REE (Gt A),// Ik
BIEEL (475) 69
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8. Income tax (Continued) 8. FifsH (&
(a) Income tax in the consolidated statement of (a) HEZEEH Kz ZHE
comprehensive income represents: (Continued) g (&)
No provision for profits tax in the Cayman Islands, British Virgin REERFRANELHSHS - &8
Islands (“BVI”) and Hong Kong has been made as the Group has BB ([RBEXEE]) REH
no assessable income for the year in these jurisdictions (2012: Nil). BREE ] FE R B UL A+ B b I F E 5%
ZaEER 2 EHELRE (=22
——F |-
The provision for PRC enterprise income tax is calculated at the AR 1 2 RS B TR R R B AR B P S
standard rate of 25% on the estimated assessable income for the TR Bl SR AR TS € 2 IR 4E R0 2R 25%
year as determined in accordance with the relevant income tax BEN 2 T R AGT E B o
rules and regulations of the PRC.
(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and (b) BiIE B FEZ
accounting profit at applicable tax rates: EitmfZH ik -
2013 2012
—E—= —=F=——4F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Loss before taxation BrFiRTE 18 (9,076) (41,151)
Notional tax on loss before taxation, BB A B IS e AR
calculated at the rate applicable to Nm Al 2 X & - bR
profits in the tax jurisdictions concerned MAlEBEz Z&HIEE (1,908) (6,888)
Tax effect of non-taxable income BERTBAZ BB E (6,880) (14,190)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses RAHRA S 2 B2 6,421 11,531
Tax effect of unused tax losses RERAREAREEIEZ
not recognised TR 2 1,842 9,594
Tax effect of utilisation of FAARABARBEEE
unused tax losses B2 (44) -
Under-provision in prior year BEFERETE 94 22
Actual tax (credit)/expense BEFHE (GTA),/ X H (475) 69
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8. Income tax (Continued) 8. Fii8Bi (&)
(c) Income tax in the consolidated statement of (O REEH BN TR ZHEHE
financial position represents:
Group
AEE
2013 2012
—E—=F —E—_F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET THT
At beginning of the year =) 22,101 21,414
Provision for the year REZ AR
— PRCEIT — HBEMEH 22 47
Tax paid BRI - -
— PRCEIT — REEMEH (22) (47)
— Hong Kong Profits Tax — BAENEH (134) (22)
(156) (69)
Tax refunded BiREIE
— PRCEIT — BB EMRET 18 -
Under/(over-provision) BEFERETR
in prior year (EBRERE)
— PRCEIT — RBEMRET (18) -
— Hong Kong Profits Tax — EBFER 112 22
94 2
Exchange adjustment [ 5, 5 X - 687
At end of the year FEJK 22,079 22,101
Analysis of income tax: FRST AT -
Tax recoverable AT E R IR (22) -
Tax payable FEFRIE 22,101 22,101
22,079 22,101




9. Directors’ and five highest paid individuals’ 9. EERANFMES AL ZHMH
remuneration
(a) The details of emoluments of every director are (a) BEFMEFESTUT -

shown below:

Year ended 30 April 2013
BE-Z-ZHNA=+ALFE
Basic salaries,
allowances  Retirement

and other benefits

benefits scheme

HA&#HS > contributions
Fees EHR EiRE Total
Name of Director EENE e Hi @ F FTEIfR H
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

FET TERT TERT FERT

Executive directors HITES
Vong Tat leong, David BiEG (1THER)

(Chief Executive Officer) 5,400 600 - 6,000
Xu Siping RETF 500 - - 500
Independent non-executive BYEHTES

directors
Fung Ka Keung, David ot 100 - - 100
Lam Lee G. PR 150 - - 150
Wong Man Ngar, Edna TXH 100 - - 100

6,250 600 - 6,850
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9. Directors’ and five highest paid individuals’ 9. EERANFMES AL ZHMH
remuneration (Continued) (#%&)
(a) The details of emoluments of every director are (a) ZEBM2HEITRUT
shown below: (Continued) (&)

Year ended 30 April 2012
BE_T-_FMA=THILFE

Basic salaries,

allowances Retirement
and other benefits
benefits scheme
EA#HS - contributions
Fees R BRe Total
Name of Director EENS ik Hitn a7 BELS st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAET TAT TAT FET
Executive directors HITES
Vong Tat leong, David =iES (1THER)

(Chief Executive Officer) 5,400 600 - 6,000
Xu Siping RETE 500 - - 500
Independent non-executive BAFHTES

directors
Fung Ka Keung, David 55208 100 = = 100
Lam Lee G. ER 150 - = 150
Wong Man Ngar, Edna T 100 - - 100

6,250 600 - 6,850
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9. Directors’ and five highest paid individuals’ 9
remuneration (Continued)

(b) of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the
Group, two (2012: one) were directors of the Company whose
emoluments are included in the disclosures in note 9(a) above.
The emoluments of the remaining three (2012: four) individuals

. EERAUHFHERS AL 2HMN
(&)

b) XEBRAUFHESALTA ME
TE-—F: —F) RARRESE
H &R EakisoQ)iEE - 8 T=%
ZEZF:OR) AL ZBEeFE

were as follows: R

2013 2012
=== —_Eg—=

HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHBTT
Salaries and other benefits e hEAMmET 2,194 2,846
Retirement benefits scheme contributions BRIRE T2 34 24
2,228 2,870

The number of the three (2012: four) highest paid individuals
whose remuneration fall within the following bands are as follows:

FHNFTNER =2 (ZF—=
FOR) FHRSALABWET

2013 2012
—=E—= —E——F
Nil — HK$1,000,000 221,000,000/ 7T 3 4

During the year, no emoluments were paid to the five highest
paid individuals (including directors and other employees) as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation
for loss of office.

RAFER  WERBLHFHERS A
T (BRESFREMEE) SATEAEM
E 0 EBMARKEBEHINAR 2 B
KAERREREG(E
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10. Loss for the year attributable to owners of the 10. X ARFEBABEERFEEEE
Company
The consolidated loss for the year attributable to owners of the AR R BHRREIE 2 A RRIHE A&
Company for the year dealt with in the financial statements of the 1R F [E 4R A 518 5 E5186,038,000/8 7T (=
Company is loss of HK$6,038,000 (2012: loss of HK$99,955,000). T — 4 @ [551899,955,000/8 7T ) °
11.Dividend 1M1.RE
The directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend for the BEFUITEBRNBEEZE-ZTE—=FINH
year ended 30 April 2013 (2012: Nil). =THIEFEZRE (ZE—=F &)
12.Loss per share 12. BREE
The calculation of basic loss per share is based on the loss attributable BRERNBEDZAQRRER AR
to owners of the Company of HK$8,601,000 (2012: HK$41,220,000) {5 /& 188,601,000 T (= & — = F :
and the number of 5,859,860,900 (2012: 5,859,860,900) ordinary 41,220,000 7T) REANE ETE AR
shares in issue during the year. Z B H5,859,860,900% (= & — — F:
5,859,860,900% ) &t & °
Diluted loss per share is equal to basic loss per share as there were no HRMEZRFEEHEEL LR  HE
potential ordinary shares in existence in both years presented. RESEEBEESNERERERE -
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13.Property, plant and equipment 13. 1% - MENREE
The Group rEE
Leasehold
land and Furniture,
huildings held fixtures Utensils
for own use Leasehold and Motor and
carried at cost  improvements  equipment vehicles supplies Total
DN
SlfEfE
BRZHEE HE KA %E #AR
IHEBE  NERE EL RE ftrEm @3t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAL TAL TAL TAL TAL TAL
Cost R
At 1 May 2011 RZE—FhnA-H 457 5532 1328 4203 507 16,162
Additions NE 13,936 99 303 361 36 14,735
Transfer from deposit paid for ERARENE BER
acquisition of property, BTN R
plant and equipment (note 19) (Wi5E19) 1990 53 % - - 2,067
Disposals e (4,572 (14) (20) (204) = (4.810)
Exchange adjustment [ A% - 178 3 5 17 32
At 30 April 2012 and 1 May 2012 RZE-—FMWA=1H
k=E-—F1A-H 15,926 5,848 1,667 4,385 560 28,386
Additions NE - 306 128 - 4 476
Disposals HE - - - - - =
Exchange adjustment [ - - - - - -
At 30 April 2013 RZE-—=FNA=1H 15,926 6,154 1,795 4385 602 28,862
Accumulated depreciation and ZRNERAERR
impairment losses
At 1 May 2011 RZE—FH[—H 574 4459 925 2113 413 8,484
Charge for the year AEEYH 392 295 182 858 39 1,766
Written back on disposals HERED (597) 2) (1) (187) - (797)
Exchange adjustment [ & = 146 26 5 14 191
At 30 April 2012 and 1 May 2012 RZE-—#MA=1H
k=E——Fff-H 369 4898 1,122 2789 466 9,644
Charge for the year REETH 442 592 229 822 40 2,125
Written back on disposals HERED = = = = = =
Exchange adjustment £ R - - - - - -
AL30 April 2013 R-E-=£MA=+A 811 5490 1351 3,611 506 11,769 =
1
. . E
Carrying amount REFE |
At 30 April 2013 R-Z-=4MA=1H 15,115 664 444 774 9% 17,093 R
A
|
At 30 April 2012 RZE-——#MA=1H 15,557 950 545 1596 9% 18,742 é
#H
S
@

At the end of the reporting period, the carrying amount of motor
vehicles held under finance leases of the Group was approximately

HK$263,000 (2012: HK$331,000).

£F 1 331,000/ 7C) ©

RIEHR AEERERERNFE
2 SEEREEL 45263,0008 7L (2 ——
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13.Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

The carrying amount of the Group’s leasehold land and buildings held
for own use carried at cost, which is held under medium term lease,
is analysed as follows:

13. 9% - MERRE (&

RNEERERHABEOFFE 2 AKARFER
EERZHE T RIEF 2 BRE{ED TR
I

2013 2012
—E—= —_F—
HK$’000 HK$'000
F&T THT
Situated in: T
Hong Kong B 15,115 15,557

14.Lease premium for land

The Group’s interests in lease premium for land represent prepaid
operating lease payments and their carrying amount are analysed as

14. Tt S

AEER TS 2 ERERMEERO
MR EEREEDSHAT

follows:
Group
REH
2013 2012
—E—= —F——
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET TET
Cost 5%
Brought forward 7 1,654 1,602
Exchange adjustment bE H, 35 B - 52
Carried forward AL EE 1,654 1,654
Accumulated amortisation and ZEBERBEER
impairment loss
Brought forward 7 194 155
Amortisation for the year N S SE 34 33
Exchange adjustment bE H, 5 B - 6
Carried forward e 228 194
Net carrying amount REFE 1,426 1,460
Leases of not less than 10 years but less than birdanl=lp e o) NS =)
50 years which is held under medium NORI10FEET B505F 2
term lease, held in PRC TR 1,426 1,460
Analysed for reporting purposes as: MMEMS ZOMAT -
Current assets MBEE 34 34
Non-current assets ERBEE 1,392 1,426

1,426 1,460




&

15. Investment properties 15. REY =
Group
rEE
2013 2012
—E-=F —E——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Balance at beginning of year T2 &85 119,541 99,720
Additions =T
— transfer from deposit paid for acquisition —EREREEYE
of property, plant and equipment and = NGB DA MR &
investment properties (note 19) MESN2IRE
(M45E19) - 2,763
—acquisitions — U BE 7,843 16,981
— capitalised subsequent expenditure —HXEERER 2 237
— through acquisition of a subsidiary (note 37) — FRWE—EHEA R
(MH7E37) 51,980 12,374
59,825 32,355
Disposals HeE (10,340) (16,170)
Increase in fair value NYEE I 13,725 3,636
Balance at end of year FEZ & 182,751 119,541

Amounts recognised in profit and loss for investment IREYERIERER L

properties
Group
rEE
2013 2012
—E2—= —_E—=
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Rental income Ml A 3,915 2,118
Direct operating expenses from property that EERSWAZMHEZ
generated rental income EREERX (79) (68)
Direct operating expenses from property that TEEHRAZYEZ
did not generated rental income HEEEERX - (34)
3,836 2,016
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15.Investment properties (Continued)

Thefairvalue of the Group’sinvestment propertiesat 30 April 2013 have
been arrived at on the basis of a valuation carried out on that date by
Asset Appraisal Limited, an independent firm of qualified professional
valuers not connected with the Group. Asset Appraisal Limited have,
among their staff, members of the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors
with recent experience in the valuation of similar properties. The
valuation was mainly arrived at by reference to comparable market
transactions for similar properties.

All of the Group’s properties interests held under operating leases to
earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation purposes are measured
using the fair value model and are classified and accounted for as
investment properties.

Thirteen (2012: Ten) investment properties are leased to third parties
under operating lease, further details of which are included in note

38(a) to the financial statements.

The fair values of investment properties shown above comprises:

15. REWXE (&)

AEEREVEN _T—=FNWHA=1H
Z N HETIR IR BN ER (B 3 R B 2 B 5L
EERBEXRMGHEMTEENEERERA
BlRLax A AT 2 M EES - BEFEREE
ﬁ@“ﬁ251%¢%ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂ§%§

28 FEUBUMERETHHEEL
B o %%@EI% PR & R
TSGR HEE °

AEERBELEHOFAARRES R,
SAEEARNIBER T2 PIB Y FERIGHRA
NHERAGE XOBERREMERR
N

+=ZB (ZE——F: +18) KEDETIR
BEREHNHEETE=  #—FFEH
RIS R 5E38() ©

EXFIRIEEMFEZ AFHERRE

Group
REE
2013 2012
—E—= —E——4F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Land in Hong Kong: REB 2 L
Medium-term lease FEIE 158,540 98,030
Land outside Hong Kong: REB AN i
Medium-term lease FRERE 24,211 21,511
182,751 119,541




16.Goodwill 16. &
Group
AEE
2013 2012
—ZE2—= —_EF—=
HK$’000 HK$’000
TExT TFABTT
Cost 2R
Brought forward and carried forward PN 11,383 11,383
Accumulated impairment losses EZRBEERE
Brought forward 7RI 5,171 2,395
Impairment loss recognised EERREEE 1,581 2,776
Carried forward e 6,752 5,171
Net carrying value BREFE 4,631 6,212

Impairment test for cash-generating unit containing

BEHECHeELENZHER

goodwill 2
Goodwill is allocated to the Group’s cash-generating unit (“CGU”) EE DI FREGE DM 2 A&
identified according to operating segment as follows: ERSEEEN ([ReEASBM]) BT :
Group
REE
2013 2012
—E—= =4
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET
Financial services businesses & Bl AR 7S S 4,631 6,212
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16.Goodwill (Continued)

Impairment test for cash-generating unit containing
goodwill (Continued)

The recoverable amount of the CGU represents the value-in-use at 30
April 2013 based on a business valuation report on the CGU prepared by
an independent qualified professional valuer, Peak Vision Appraisals
Limited. The valuation used the discount cash flow approach and the
value-in-use calculations based on financial budgets approved by
management covering a ten-year period. Cash flows beyond the ten-
year period are extrapolated using the estimated growth rate stated
below. The growth rate does not exceed the long-term average growth
rate for the business in which the CGU operates. A ten-year period
budget has been prepared by management because they considered a
plan for the operation of the CGU for a duration of ten years matches
with their business development strategy. The discount rates used are
pre-tax and reflects specific risks relating to the relevant operating
segments.

Key assumptions for financial services businesses used for value-in-use
calculations:

16. & (&)

BEBECHEeELENZBIER
# (&)

ReEL B2 AT KE S B EREBL
é?%%%ﬁfﬁﬁﬁifﬁ%aﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁAﬂ?ﬁ%zz
FRRESELSBM 2 HEMERS N
T-=FHA=tHZHEREE -HER
RBRESREE  MEREBEFEE

RAREREHE TRV BAEEREE

AEGE BB TFHIBEERERTX
Ffm‘\Zﬁaﬁ*ﬁfTﬁ o MERTSHB
ReELBENEE 2 X RPFHER
R ERECHRETFHMMBEE - BS
RERRTFHzReELEMELFE
MEME 2 EHEERRE - FIEMAZITR
ERERTAT - YRR EAREE D AR
ZFEERER

ERERBEFEZERRBEH 2 EE
EELUNNE

Group
rEE
2013 2012
—E—= —FT—
% %
Growth rate #HRE 3% 3%
Discount rate BhIH & 15% 14%

Based on the impairment test performed, impairment loss of
HK$1,581,000 (2012: HK$2,776,000) is recognised for the year as the
recoverable amount of the CGU is lower than its carrying amount
based on value-in-use calculation.

The recognitions of impairment losses for both years were due to
the decline in the business relating to financial services. The decline
in business was mainly due to the structural changes of customers’
behaviour in response to the change in the general economic
environment.

RIBEFTET 2 RENR  ANFERR
BB B 18 51,581,000 7T (ZF — —4F
2776000,mz) HAREEEEMN 2K

CHRERERTEABETESLH ZER
Tﬁ o

R A 2 A EAE TS S
W5 L - £ T TEREA
BE2(TAEREBEERERE LR
K -
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17.Investments in subsidiaries and amounts due from 17. RMiB AT 2REREWKHE QT

subsidiaries MIE
(a) Investments in subsidiaries (a) REIB LA ZRE
Company
ARAFE
2013 2012
—E—=F —E—_F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTERx TAT
Unlisted shares, at cost FEETRD - TEA 136,072 136,072
Less: Impairment loss recognised in respect & : EFRAHB AR Z
of the investments in subsidiaries REER REFE (136,072) (136,072)
As determined by the directors of the Company, as at 30 April HINARREZESRAVAE  R=ZE—=
2013, no reversal of impairment loss was made for investments FNA=1THITERNREENE AR
in wholly-owned subsidiaries. During 2012, HK$32,090,000 ZIEROREEE - R ——
impairment loss was made for investment in certain wholly-owned F ENEFEZBBTABMEEM
subsidiaries of which the carrying amount was considered as non- LETEREMBAR 2 EEEE RN
recoverable in view of unsatisfactory operating performance of B HERRBEMB AR ZIRE
relevant subsidiaries due to change in customers’ consumption (BREE#HKRATAILE) ELRE
behaviour. [E51832,090,00075 7T °
(b) Amounts due from subsidiaries (b) FEH TS 2 Bl s H
Company
¥ /N
2013 2012
—E—=fF —EF——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx FTAT
B
?E'
At 30 April RIMA=+H 384,741 384,400 i
Less: Impairment loss recognised in respect & : BBt ELKHK B A E
of the amounts due from subsidiaries FIEBRREESE (143,190) (142,251) 2
2
241,551 242,149 g&
N
=
w
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17.Investments in subsidiaries and amounts due from
subsidiaries (Continued)

(b) Amounts due from subsidiaries (Continued)

The movements in the allowance for amounts due from

17. RMB AR 2 REREWHE AR

M| (&)
(b) FEWETE L Az E (48)

FAB BB AR RIBRE &

subsidiaries during the year is as follows: R
2013 2012
—E-—=F —E——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
TERT FAET
At beginning of year F4] (142,251) (89,501)
Impairment loss recognised BRI EEE (939) (52,750)
At end of year FIEK (143,190) (142,251)

As determined by the directors of the Company, in view of
persistently loss making of certain wholly-owned subsidiaries,
additional impairment loss of HK$939,000 (2012: HK$52,750,000)
was recognised for amounts due from subsidiaries to the extent
that the amounts were considered not fully recoverable.

The amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free
and have no fixed terms of repayment.

WA RREZEZFATE  ARBETZE
EMBARIRIBSEXEE  WBLE
W B BB 2 &) SR IB M SR RR AN B B 18
939,000/ 7T (== — =4 : 52,750,000
AETT) - MELAREAR A ] 2 E U B KRR
R o

B ATIZEAERR 28K
EETEERS -
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17. R B AR 2 REREWHE AT
FIE (&)

17.Investments in subsidiaries and amounts due from
subsidiaries (Continued)

TREFINEZBZEARTERE  EEX

The following list contains only the particulars of subsidiaries which

principally affected the results, assets or liabilities of the Group: BEZHMBARZHE
Place of Percentage
incorporation/ Nominal of equity
registration value of attributable to
and operations issued the Company Principal
Name HMAEY share capital KATER activities
a8 AR EE LM ERITRAEE REBDL IEEH
Direct  Indirect
E& &
E-Rapid Developments Limited BVI Ordinary 100 - Investment holding
RERUES US$6,950,526 RERKR
E1B%6,950,5263 T
Vongroup Investment Assets Holdings BVI Ordinary US$1 100 - Investment holding
Incorporated (‘VGI’) RERAHE ERRIET RAER
Max Wide Finance Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 100 - Securities &
RmERA R AR BB LRERIET Corporate Treasury
Management
HBER
Vongroup Consumer Finance BVI Ordinary US$1 100 - Investment holding
Corporation EBRZHE TERIET REER
Honning Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 - 100 Property business
RERRAF £33 L@RIBT MEFS
Golden Throne Holdings Limited BVI Ordinary US$1 - 100 Investment holding
RERAHE ERRIET REZK
Kamboat Chinese Cuisine Company BVI/Hong Kong Ordinary - 100  Food & beverage =
Limited EERZES/ US$6,950,523 businesses A
B Non-voting BHEH =
deferred E
US$101 (note (i) ’%
T iAik6,950,523% 7T .
EREBRERA &
1017 (M) S
w
Win Investment Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10 - 100 Property business

B

EBE0ET
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subsidiaries (Continued)

17.Investments in subsidiaries and amounts due from

I (&)

17. RMB AR 2 REREWHE AR

Place of Percentage
incorporation/ Nominal of equity
registration value of attributable to
and operations issued the Company Principal
Name HEmmRL, share capital KA E activities
%1 AMREEMEY CEROTRAEE REB D FEXK
Direct Indirect
= 4%
tRIEREEAREEATA PRC Registered capital - 100 Financial services
([EZIESE | ) (note (ii)) (KTE(I) h RMB10,000,000 businesses
ABRAARE SRRBEES
10,000,0007C
BERIERH (7)) AR AT PRC Registered capital = 100 Financial services
(IERRE]) th HK$23,000,000 businesses
(note (ii) & (iif)) B 5E(ii) K i) AR AR23,000,0007% 7T PRRBES
Easy Credit Limited Hong Kong Ordinary = 100  Financial services
BB HK$100,000 businesses
T38A%100,0004 7T SRREES
Centrix Properties Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 - 100 Property business
REEXERAA BB LERIAT EES)S
Unitech Properties Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 - 100 Property business
BMEEXARAA BB ETERET EE
Win Harbour Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 - 100 Property business
ALERER AR B TERET EE I
Champmark Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 - 100 Property business
ZBRERAR B L@ERET MEZS
Allex Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 - 100 Property business
B LRI MERS
Mica Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 - 100 Property business
B TERET MERS
Twinway Industries Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 = 100  Property business
B LERIET MEES
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17. Investments in subsidiaries and amounts due from 17. RB AR ZREREWHE AR
subsidiaries (Continued) MHE (&)
Place of Percentage
incorporation/ Nominal of equity
registration value of attributable to
and operations issued the Company Principal
Name MR, share capital KD T EM activities
2% IMREERYE CERTRAEE REBDL TEXHR
Direct Indirect
E# &
United Luck Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 - 100 Property business
BB AR Bt ERRIBT EE S
Maxfine Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 - 100  Property business
RERRAA Bt LRk T ES IS
New Image Holdings Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 - 100  Property business
RElREBRAR &t TR MEEH
House2buy Properties Limited BVI Ordinary US$1 - 100 Property business
(‘House2buy’) EBRLHE L@RIET EE S
EXFNFEARRA ( [EXZ] )
Jet Victory Corporation Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 - 100  Property business
EBAERAT Bt ERRIBT ES IS
EREEMERERAR PRC Registered capital - 100 Food & beverage
([EREEM]) H HK$8,000,000 businesses
(note (ii) & (iii)) (BT &E(ii) B iii)) A% 258,000,000/ 7T ZEEH
Dynasty Kingdom Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 - 100 Property business
30 LRk WEEB
Golden Throne Holdings Limited BVI Ordinary US$1 - 100  Technology & media and
EBRLEHE LTimiRIET related activities
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17.Investments in subsidiaries and amounts due from
subsidiaries (Continued)

Notes:

(i)  The non-voting deferred shares carry no rights to dividends, no rights to attend or
vote at general meetings and no rights to receive any surplus assets in a return of
capital in a winding up (other than the nominal amount paid up or credited as fully

paid on such shares, after the sum of US$100,000,000,000,000 has been distributed
to the holders of the ordinary shares of the Company in such winding-up).

(iy AbFRIBEE, EEBILE and EER S EEM are limited liability companies established
in the PRC.

(iii)  Registered as a wholly-foreign owned enterprise under the PRC Law.
18.Interest in a jointly-controlled entity

Details of the jointly-controlled entity are as follows:

17. RMB AR 2 REREWHE AR

18.

M (&)

Pi%E

() ERZEZECRMHERZERE B
FERRAEHRE LEE - URRNEREE
BWEGREE AR 2 T ARBHREE (BRIEES
100,000,000,000,0003% 7T 7£ )5 & B 7 )& T A A
AIEBREE AR - BERMD BRI ARS
BER 2 EEAIBRIN) ©

(i) JERIEE - ERRERERSEMBNPEK
MNZERAF]

(i) AR EEEEM A EHE LK -
RARZEHER 2 &

HFEEFIERZFBNT

Place of Particulars of
incorporation/ issued and Percentage of
Name of registration paid up Bat
jointly-controlled Business and operations capital  Ownership Voting Profit  Principal
entity structure HMAY Mk ERTRER interest power sharing  activity
AEEHERER ES EY EENH RAER  BEER g EiEER FEER
HEERMERER AR Corporation  PRC Registered 50 50 50  Food &
(=) AF] HE capital beverage
US$500,000 husinesses
MR A EHER
500,000 7C

The Group’s jointly-controlled entity is a Sino-foreign joint equity
enterprise established in the PRC and is indirectly held by the Group.
/g2 FEM was disregistered on 29 November 2012.

AEE 2 AREF B R — RN T BK L
ZHNRERE  YHAKREREERSS -
PEeEMER - ZE——Ft+—HA-TNh
B B A -

Group

rEE
2013 2012
—_E—= —E——4F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHERT FHET

Share of net assets JEIEEEFE
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18.Interest in a jointly-controlled entity (Continued) 18. REEEFHIER 2R (Z)

Summary financial information of the jointly-controlled entity is as HEIEHIE R B ER AT
follows:
2013 2012
—E-=F —T-CF
Equivalent to Equivalent to
BHER BER
RMB’000 HK$’000 RMB’000 HK$'000
AR TR TEr ARBTT FET
Non-current assets FRBEE - - ~ ]
Current assets mMBEE - - 1,397 1,725
Current liabilities mBaE - - (1,419) (1,752)
Non-current liabilities ERBERE - - (38) (47)
Capital deficiency BAEAL - - (60) (73)
Income LON = - 9,557 11,654
Expenses Fx% - - (12,786) (15,572)
Profit for the year REZ R A - - (3,229) (3,918)
19. Deposits paid for acquisition of property, plant 19. RBEYX - BERZEUARRKRE
and equipment and investment properties MELTNZIRS
Group
rEE
2013 2012
—_E—= —E——4F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHT
Balance at beginning of year FHEH 255 2,224
Additions NE "
— others — Hfl 19 98 =
— through acquisition of a subsidiary - BRKE—HEAR - 2,763 i
Transfer to investment properties (note 15) BREEREME (izE15) - (2,763) E
Transfer to property, plant and equipment (note 13) BREEYZE - W& LR #E N
(B=E13) - (2,067) "
f&
F3
Balance at end of year FRAESR 274 255 N
>
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20.Available-for-sale investments

20 A HERE

Group
rEEH
2013 2012
—E—= —F——
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET THT
Unlisted investments: FELEMEE :
Club memberships, at cost (note (i)) TS LKA
(PR EE()) 1,532 1,532
Unlisted equity investments, at cost JEEMBEHIEE TR
(note (i)&(ii)) (PR & () B (i) 34,732 34,732
36,264 36,264
Less: Impairment loss recognised (note (iii)) o BREREEE
GEAID)) (19,382) (19,382)
16,882 16,882
Notes: BiaE
(i)  As at 30 April 2013, the Group’s available-for-sale investments with net carrying () RZZFE—=FWA=+H ' @EMFES

amount in aggregate of HK$16,882,000 (2012: HK$16,882,000) were stated at cost
less impairment because they did not have a quoted market price in an active

16,882,000/ 7T (=T — =4 : 16,882,000/ 7T)
ZAEE A SR E TR AN HIBRIREA
B AARSYENERTSNRE  BAE
AFEGTZHBERKN - MEERATREN S
ATEREZATE -

market and the range of reasonable fair value estimates was so significant that the
directors are of the opinion that their fair value cannot be measured reliably.
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Notes: (Continued)

20.Available-for-sale investments (Continued)

20. T HERE (&

MieE : (&)

Honest Pro is a company incorporated in BVI with limited liability. The Group has
20% equity interest in ordinary share capital in Honest Pro through its subsidiary.

The Group does not actively participate in policy-making processes, including
participation in decisions about dividends or other distributions of Honest Pro.

Tian Da is a company incorporated in BVI with limited liability. The Group had
20.54% equity interest in ordinary share capital in Tian Da through its subsidiary
as at 30 April 2012 (For details, refer to note (iii)). The investment in Tian Da is
derecognised during the year ended 30 April 2013 (For details, refer to note 27).

The Group did not have any representation on the board of directors or any
equivalent governing body in Tian Da. The Group did not actively participate in
policy-making processes, including participation in decisions about dividends or
other distributions of Tian Da.

Newport is a company incorporated in BVI with limited liability. The Group has
19.09% equity interest in ordinary share capital in Newport through its subsidiary.

(i) Unlisted equity investments: (i) FEMIHFRE :
Carrying
At cost Impairment amount
R A WE BRTE (B
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
2013 —E—=F THET FTHET FTHERT
Honest Pro (Holdings) Limited (“Honest Pro”) 920 - 920
Newport Sterling Investments Limited (“Newport”) 14,430 - 14,430
15,350 - 15,350
Carrying
At cost Impairment amount
AR RE ARTEE
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
2012 —T—=F FHET FHET THETT
Honest Pro (Holdings) Limited (“Honest Pro”) 920 - 920
Tian Da Energy Holdings Limited (“Tian Da”) ARBREBAR AR ([KKX]) 19,382 (19,382) -
Newport Sterling Investments Limited (“Newport”) 14,430 - 14,430
34,732 (19,382) 15,350

Honest Pro BN B R Z S EMK L2 B8R
NA] o NEEFEBEWE A 7R Honest ProZ
LBAR AP A 20%A% o

AEEKREBEHRESEE BHonest Pro) KRS
SEHEH M DR ZIRTE ZEBUR HIRT B2 ©

AREBREBEZHESHMKLZ BRAF]
R-F——FMA=1+H  AEEEBENE
RAIRRRA Z BRI R 520 54%0 7 (FF
& B EE(i) - RBE-_T—=FmWA=1+H
IEFE - RRAZZEHBUEER (FEiE R M
F$27) °

REBRRRZ EF AT MER 2 EEBE
hIFERR - AEBRAREB2EFEAKRD
R BB B AR At 20 IR 2 R TE S KSR 5T 38

=

Newport B B i Z B Sk 2 2 R A
7] o AN EFEBENE A 7 B Newport Z 38
AR AR5 5 19.09% R 12 ©
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20.Available-for-sale investments (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(i)

The Group does not have any representation on the board of directors or any
equivalent governing body in Newport. The Group does not actively participate in
policy-making processes, including participation in decisions about dividends or
other distributions of Newport.

The directors of the Group are of opinion that the Group does not exercise
significant influence in Honest Pro, Tian Da or Newport. The investments are
therefore accounted for under HKAS 39 as “Available-for-sale Financial Assets”.

With respect to the investment in Tian Da through the wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Group, Vongroup Financial Holdings Corporation (“VFHC”), in accordance
with the share purchase and subscription agreement dated 3 July 2009 and the
shareholders’ agreement dated 4 August 2009 and as amended and supplemented
by various supplemental extension letters dated 18 October 2010, 18 April 2011
and 18 October 2011 (the “Tian Da Agreements), has the right to elect to terminate
the investment in Tian Da if the counterparties to the Tian Da Agreements (the
“Counterparties”) do not meet certain eligibility requirements in respect of the sales
order documentation target aggregating not less than RMB600 million as stipulated
in the Tian Da Agreements.

As at the Long Stop Date of 18 March 2012 with respect to the supplemental
extension letter dated 18 October 2011 (the “Latest Supplemental Extension Letter”)
and date of approval of the financial statements for the year ended 30 April 2012,
the Counterparties had not fulfilled certain conditions relating to delivering certain
sales order documentation up to the amount as set out in the Tian Da Agreements.
The Company recognised the full impairment of the available-for-sale investment
in Tian Da as at 30 April 2012. VFHC is entitled to receive from the Counterparties
the payment of the entire investment amount paid for the Tian Da Acquisition
plus interest as stipulated in the supplemental extension letter dated 18 October
2010 (the “First Supplemental Extension Letter”). The Company then recognised a
derivative financial asset as fully described in note 27 during the year ended 30
April 2012.

AHHERE (&)

BT - (&)

(i)

REBMNewport Z EEE KA MERZEE
BRI EAK $§I5K*ﬁ_7fiﬁ//\ﬁﬁﬁ
Newport7 /& i% 8. sk 15 H Efth 5 R Z IR E
RHIETBIZ o

REBZEERR - NEE ¥ Honest Pro + X
K‘XNewportIﬁEﬁwsﬁ BIRERIEER

BEEREIRARA [AIMEEEHBEE
Bl

ERERAEEZEMBARIRAAZIRE
BREARR-ZETNFLA=ZAZRMNEER
REHBERABRAZZZTNF N\ANA ZRR
W (KZEEPSNAZZE—ZF AT
H ZZ2——FMOA+N\BER=ZE——F+
R+N\BZ# 78 i prEa] Rz ([%
% X K # %) * Vongroup Financial Holdings
Corporation ([VFHC]) BEEZ SR K=

RGEF ([RHHTF ) WAREBRZFERAKM

FETHAREESTEXHEESETLIRAR
#600,000,0007C 2 & EIE AR E R « BB IER
RARZIEE o

RZZE——F=A+ /7B BEHA-ZT——
i+ﬂ+ﬂ5ﬁﬁﬁ%u#ﬂ?%ﬁﬁﬁ%
D) 2HREBERBEHARIERE= =
i@ﬂ:+ﬂ¢¢§%%ﬁﬁzaﬁvx%ﬂ
FUAREREBRNETHETEXHEaE
B (MZERNBHAE) 26T &S AR

AR ——FHA=+HERNARZ AT

HEREZMEME - VIHCE KRR 5% F
EHRERBHA—ZT—ZF+AT/\AZERLE
Bt (B mAEH RG] FEZERAK
A2 2B EeBERFSZHIE - 1
HE_Z——FMA=1THILFE ' AAFHE
R—IALTEMTGERE - #FIBNMEE27F7



21.Inventories/forfeited collateral held for sale 21. FE /SFEHFCR UK T &
(a) Inventories in the consolidated statement of @ "EHMBERREETIZFE
financial position comprise: 2
Group
rEE
2013 2012
—F—= —E——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FER FAET
Inventories — food & beverage products FE — BHER 6,979 7,711
Forfeited collateral held for sale HFERLWIK R M 493 280
Note: Forfeited collateral held for sale include gold and jewellery. Mzt : FER KRN LAEIEES RIKE o
(b) The analysis of the amount of inventories b) BREHZRIALZEDH
recognised as an expense and included in the U kAZFEFBEZ T
consolidated statement of comprehensive income wmr
is as follows:
Group
rEE
2013 2012
—EF—= —E——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx FHT
Carrying amount of inventories consumed KOHERFE 2 BREE 9,728 13,972
Carrying amount of forfeited collateral sold £ S S WG &
Z BREE - 254
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22.Accounts receivable 22. FEURERTK
Group
AEE
2013 2012
—E—= —_F—=
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHIT
Accounts receivable JE Y BR 3R 273 471
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts B RERE A - =
273 471
The general credit terms granted by the Group to its customers range REBGKTEEP 2 —REEHAIE
from 30 to 90 days. The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its 908 o 7S5 B ¥ R (5 38 FE YU ER B A 35 R
outstanding receivables. Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by BEYE - Bl EEETHE
senior management. Further details on the Group’s credit policy are B AEEFEERRZE—TFBERR
set out in note 41(a)(i). B 5E41(a)(i) ©
An aging analysis of accounts receivable as at the end of the reporting RBERAR - RUERRZ BRI :
period is as follows:
Group
AEE
2013 2012
—_E—= —E——4F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FE&ET THT
Within 30 days R30B R 22 160
31 -90 days 31290H 41 41
91 — 180 days 91£180H 3 28
Over 180 days HBiE180H 207 242
273 471
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22.Accounts receivable (Continued) 22. EWARR (&
The aging analysis of accounts receivable that are not considered to be RIEZRFBEZERERZERE DN
impaired is as follows: R
Group
TEE
2013 2012
—E—=F —F—=
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Neither past due nor impaired N £ 780 B oY R E 66 201
Past due but not impaired B EH B I R E
1 to 3 months past due BENE31E A - 28
Over 3 months to 6 months past due B HARE A3 E6fE A - -
Over 6 months, but less than 1 year past due wHBEEA - BELE 207 242
207 270
273 471
Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a wide N7 £ 80 B 73 A8 O (B 2 JE W BR 5k T BR A AR
range of customers for whom there was no recent history of default. HEANRSc TREAEFEE -
Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a number of B BB SR E 2 FE R T B A& E
independent customers that have a good track record with the Group. ZEBARITHZBYRFAER - RIR
Based on past experience, management believes that no impairment MRS BEEEGEHAMRZSAERE
allowance is necessary in respect of these balances as there has not HREREE RERAEEERUESENE
been a significant change in credit quality and the balances are still B) - MZSESRDER R AEEUYE o
considered fully recoverable. The Group does not hold any collateral KB ER I E AR A AR o

over these balances.
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23.Moneylending loan receivables 23. EWREER
Group
AEE
2013 2012
—E—= —_F—=
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHIT
Balance at beginning of year FHER 23,026 14,655
Loans advanced BNER 970 13,983
Repayment during the year FHEE (19,212) (5,685)
Exchange adjustment ME H, 58 B - 73
Balance at end of year RS 4,784 23,026
The loans bear interest rate ranging from 5.25% to 50.4% (2012: 5.25% ZEBE R BFHNEN TS, 25%?;50 4% (=
to 50.4%) per annum and are repayable according to the respective T — — & 1 525%%2504%) 0 WABIESH
loan agreements which usually cover periods not more than one year. ERaERE  E—RERTBE—F -
(a) Maturity profile (a) ZIRFIER
The maturity profile of moneylending loan receivables at the end PR HA R FE W E B R 2 B BR1S )
of the reporting period, based on the maturity dates, is as follows: ZEEAR ST ¢
2013 2012
—E-c=f “EF
Unsecured Unsecured
short- short-
Pawn loans  term loans Pawn loans  term loans
receivahle  receivahle Total  receivable receivable Total
BEER EUEER REER  EhEER

BUEE  RHER a  EUWRR  RHER 85t
HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKSO00  HKS000  HK$000
TER TER TERL AT TATL AL

Due within 1 month or on demand 1fEARE SR ER(ER 1,001 3,351 4,352 542 = 542
Due after 1 month but within 3 months 118 A& {E3(8 A 12 68 - 68 446 300 746
Due after 3 months 3HA%EE - 364 364 309 21,429 21,738

1,069 3,715 4,784 1297 21,729 23,026
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23.Moneylending loan receivables (Continued) 23. B EER (&

(a) Maturity profile (Continued)

As at 30 April 2013, no moneylending loan receivables were
individually determined to be impaired (2012: Nil).

(b) Moneylending loan receivables that are not
considered to be impaired are as follows:

2013
“g-=F
Unsecured
short-
Pawn loans  term loans
receivable  receivahle
HEER  EUEEAR
EhEE  EHEX
HK$’000 HK$’000

(a) E/RIEX (&)

RZTE-—=FMA=+H" HERE

WHEEFREERNEER/RE (ZF
——F:fE)
(b) FEZEHEZERKEER
g/
2012
“E-—F
Unsecured
short-
Pawn loans  term loans
Total  receivable receivable Total

REEN  EhEAR
R BUWRR  REER it
HK$'000  HK$000  HKS000  HK$000

T T T i T b
Neither past due nor impaired ERHMERE 478 3,351 3,829 683 21,624 22,307
Past due but not impaired EASEYERE
Less than 1 month past due BEENEA 282 - 282 301 - 301
1t0 3 months past due jal e - - - 313 105 418
Over 3 months past due BB A A 309 364 673 - - =
1,069 3,715 4,784 1297 21,729 23,026

Moneylending loan receivables that were neither past due nor
impaired relate to recognised and creditworthy borrowers for
whom there was no recent history of default.

As at 30 April 2013, the Group held collaterals, mainly land
and buildings, gold and jewellery, with value of approximately
HK$1,702,000 (2012: HK$1,673,000) in total over the pawn loans
receivable.

&AM R E 2 ERWREE RIS
RIEBBEZNBERA  BEFLH
I #EHB R ACER ©

R-ZE—=FWNA=+H A£E
HEEREREREEREEEBRFL
1,702,0007% 70 (=Z — =4 : 1,673,000
Bm) cERGR EERTHEE

=
o
B
¥
=l
R
A
G|
&
#
N
S
@



T

A

! 4
I

|

F i

e __-h " L . -/)_.-l &
fcf %\ ya

<
(=)
S
(']
-
(=]
=
-
=
=
=
o
o
.
>
5
>
o
S
~
%)
S
)
=3
N
(=)
=
w

24.Deposits, prepayments and other receivables

24. 2% - ANERRREHERERR

Group Company
AEE RAT
2013 2012 2013 2012
—F—= —F—— —EBE—=F —FT—=
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TExT FET FET FHTT
Prepayments TERTER X 2,856 6,299 21 3,000
Rental and other deposits HekEMize 1,357 7,528 - 6,200
Credit card receivables = AR EWFIE 109 108 - -
Loan interest receivables FEWE SR F & 131 882 - -
Rental receivables el A & 667 — - =
Staff advances (Note(i)) BT8R (FIE)) 150 90 - -
Other receivables (Note(ii))  EHfthEUBR X
(B &EGi)) 22,150 5,344 - -
Less: Impairment B ORE (2,720) (2,720) - =
Other receivables, net H bW AR FOF B 19,430 2,624 - -
24,700 17,531 21 9,200
Notes: BsE
i) The Group’s staff advances represent advances to the non-director employees. The i) AEBZETHEFIERNIESEEREZS

advances are unsecured, non-interest bearing and are repayable in accordance
with the repayment schedules agreed by the staff and the Group.

ii) Included in other receivables isan amount of HK$16,962,000 which represents the

termination right arising from termination of the available-for-sale investment in
relation to Tian Da (note 27).

The movements in the allowance for other receivables during the year

o WWEBRRSEMEI  RERAREBET
RAEEHEESHRER -

ii) B E A FE UAR SRR 2 € 5816,962,00075
THEERIEERRRZAIHHEREMES
2R 1R (BiEE27) ©

is as follows:
2013 2012
—=E—= —EF——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FH&T
At beginning of year F1) (2,720) (2,500)
Impairment loss recognised EERREREE - (220)
At end of year FK (2,720) (2,720

Theimpairment loss recognised wasa provision forthe longoutstanding
receivables for debtors and the receivables were considered doubtful.
The Group did not hold any collateral or other credit enhancement
over these balances.

Except for rental and other deposits, all of the deposits, prepayments
and other receivables are expected to be recovered or recognised as
expense within one year.

EER B EEERMLEBANRIRE
BRWFREL RS - B RUGIAERSR
RRER - AEBIARBZL S ERFTE T
s EL A= FIRAR

B kEMESI  MAERSE  BNEK
TR E A FEUR R TE R R 0 — F A i = =%
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25.Amount due from a jointly-controlled entity 25. B EIZESIE R IR
The amount due from a jointly-controlled entity as at 30 April 2012 is RZZT—=—FWA=+H " EEH&#\IEE il
unsecured, interest free and has no fixed terms of repayment. ERFELAEER 28RV EETEN

26. Fquity investments at fair value through profit or 26. BATFEUBHIIRZHFFRE
oss

Trading securities =§-F-2
Group
rEE
2013 2012
—_E—= —F—-
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
At fair value: BAFE :
Listed equity investments in Hong Kong EB FHEAFEE 26,804 29,843
Listed equity investments outside Hong Kong EEAIMIE Y ETH
BHERE 73 200
26,877 30,043
Changes in fair values of equity investments at fair value through profit BEAFEAERIEZEFSEE 2 ATE
or loss are recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive BENGE T ER S R PIER o
income.
27.Derivative financial instrument 27.9TERMBIA
Termination right ARIFE
With respect to the Tian Da Agreements as detailed in note 20(iii), B BB E200i) 2 32 F X K Hhas
the Group has the right to elect to terminate the acquisition of Tian AEFEFEEER FWBRK  WZEX
Da, and the Counterparties shall pay the entire investment amount KB 2B TIREREERK - 5%
already paid by VFHC plus interest, in the event that certain conditions FAZNVFHCTT 2 PR ESEERFIE
stipulated in the Tian Da Agreements are not fulfilled (the “Termination ([#RIEHE]) o ZEE TIEHERSZETKE
Right”). These certain conditions had not been fulfilled as of the Long H-T——F=A+N\BRIELREEE
Stop Date of 18 March 2012 and date of approval of these financial —E——FNA=THIEFEZVERE
statements for the year ended 30 April 2012. The Company recognised ZBINERERK - ARFIR_ZE—_FWMA
the full impairment of the available-for-sale investment in Tian Da as ZTHERRARZAJHEEREETER
at 30 April 2012. The fair value of the Termination Right is accounted B RIFEZATFETIZEZERKN =
for by reference to the amount of the entire investment amount paid FrE st AR A EE P2 (S 2 2P B 2R A
for the Tian Da Acquisition plus interest as specified in the Tian Da FMEMmerE - -
Agreements. %
=5
As at the date of the First Supplemental Extension letter and as at 30 RENHEREREGARR - ——FY §
April 2011, the Company had not elected to terminate the acquisition A=+H K  ARaIEBEZLEWERXR ]
of Tian Da. As at those respective dates, such investment in Tian Da KN -HEZEBHE ZSRRAZEE a
was recognised as available-for-sale investment (note 20(iii). TR AT EIRE (FIFE20(i) ?
&
On 27 July 2012, the Company elected to terminate the acquisition R-ZE——F+tA=-+tH KAAREE *i,f
of Tian Da and the Termination Right which represent the amount of IRIEWEER R » R IEREFR B ABRSIEE AD S
the entire investment amount paid for the Tian Da Acquisition plus BRI Z ZEZE RN EE LR A ®
interest as specified in the Tian Da Agreements is accounted for as WMtz 2SR E S BERF S (K

other receivables (note 24). 5124) °
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28.Cash and cash equivalents 28. R RBAELEMEER
Group
rEEH
2013 2012
—_=E—= — =
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET THT
Cash and bank balances NG NMIRTT4E R 78,443 120,338
Time deposits T HTFER 8,988 5,309
Cash and cash equivalents in the consolidated A AR R
statement financial position and the kiZEHRERER
consolidated statement of cash flows 25| z2R e
RIE4ZEIER 87,431 125,647
Company
¥INUNE|
2013 2012
—E2—= —_EF—=
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET TATT
Cash and bank balances e RIRTTHER 17,022 13,584
Time deposits TEHTFR - =
Cash and cash equivalents in the statement AR R EF 2R S
of financial position MRS EEIER 17,022 13,584

The interest rates on the cash at bank and deposits with banks ranged

from 0% to 1.7% (2012: 0% to 0.65%) per annum.

FRNRITZHE RIFFRIR%EL7% (=

T— 4 0%E0.65%) 2 FRIRTE o
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29.Accounts payable 29. FE{FERRX
The aging of the Group’s accounts payable is analysed as follows: AEE 2 BNERRZREDTAT ¢
Group
rEE
2013 2012
—E—= —E——4F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET
0 — 30 days 0230H 443 648
31 -90 days 31290H 691 104
91 — 180 days 91£180H 90 -
181 — 360 days 181E360H 35 -
Over 360 days B 3E360 H 445 443
1,704 1,195
The accounts payable is non-interest bearing and are normally settled E R AR B R EEE AR — & 2908 °
on 90-day terms. The carrying amounts of the accounts payable at the FEATBR AP FR S BAK 2 BRI (B B2 A (B 48
end of the reporting period approximates to the fair values. Ei
30.Accruals and deposits received 30. Bt RIEREWRZE
Group Company
rEE b NYNE]
2013 2012 2013 2012
—EB-=F T ZEB-=F ZT—=

HK$’000 HK$'000  HK$’000 HK$'000
FTET TABT TET TAT

Accruals et RRIA 5,621 6,650 2,696 2,997
Accrued staff benefits fEEtE Tia A 4,949 3,613 - -
Rental and other deposits received =W FH S R EMIZ4E 2,370 1,476 - -
VAT and other tax payables FE IS AR &
Hn | 66 91 - =
Other payables H A FE - 58 66 138 27 27
13,072 11,968 2,723 3,024
=
Included in accruals of the Group and the Company are amounts REERARAREFFIERERNARRT %
of approximately HK$850,000 (2012: HK$850,000) and HK$350,000 BEE 2 BT B 49850,0008 T (=T — = §
(2012: HK$350,000) respectively representing accrued remuneration F : 850,000 7T) }%350,0008 T (ZE—= fR
due to the Company’s directors. F 1 350,000/57T) ° %
Except for rental and other deposits received, all of the accruals and BREWH S REMIREIN - FTE BT RIB &
deposits received are expected to be settled or recognised as income kB Wiz B RN —FAEEERA ?f
within one year or are repayable on demand. WA SR ZRKEE - 3
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The above finance lease is in respect of the Group’s motor vehicles. The
lease term is 32 months. For the year ended 30 April 2013, the average
effective borrowing rate was 5.9% (2012: 5.9%) per annum. Interest
rates is fixed at the contract date. The lease is on a fixed repayment
basis and no arrangement has been entered into for contingent
rental payments. The net carrying amount of the motor vehicle was

approximately HK$263,000 (2012: HK$331,000).

HEREEER

31.Finance lease payable 31. B REHREORIE
Group
rEE
Minimum lease Present value of
payments minimum lease payments
RERHTR RERNNRZEE
2013 2012 2013 2012
B 2§ CZB-=f —T—_F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
THER T FET FET
Amount payable: PE{TRRIE -
Within one year —FNRN 132 133 125 118
After 1 year but within 2 years —FRERFENRN 72 123 70 115
After 2 years but within 5 years MERERFNA - 71 - 70
Less: Future finance charges B RRBREERA (9) (24) - -
Present value of finance lease FER B BB A IE
payable BE 195 303 195 303
Less: Portion classified as HW o EDBEARE
current liabilities BEHD (125) (118)
Non-current portion FEMEN L D 70 185

EimEROEAEETEHE -
EREAF HNEE-_Z—=FN0A=+
BIEFE @ FHEREERREF5.9% (=

T—ZF :59%) c FIERAEHBHET -
W EFL AR SR

I BE - 95 2 BRTE 5 {8 /3263,00075 7T
—FT— 4 :331,00087T) °
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32.Bank borrowings

The analysis of the carrying amount of bank borrowings is as follows:

32. RITEE

RITEEREEZOTWAT

Group
REE
2013 2012
—E2—= —EF——4F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHETT
Current liabilities REBEE
Portion of term loans from banks due for —FREHEEMESPHE
repayment within one year which contain REERGRRZERIT
a repayment on demand clause FHIE I H 1,918 1,872
Portion of term loans from banks due for —FRIBEEMETHE
repayment after one year which contain B ESRERIGRZ BT
a repayment on demand clause THE =D 35,986 37,922
Total 4B =t 37,904 39,794

RZZ—=FMA=+H" JHEE
BRITEERRNT ¢

As at 30 April 2013, total interest-bearing bank borrowings were due
for repayment as follows:

Group
AEE
2013 2012
—E—=F —=F—=
HK$’000 HK$’000
TExT TATT
Portion of term loans from banks due for —FRIEAERE ZEIT
repayment within one year TEHIE I 2 1,918 1,872
Term loans due for repayment after —FRIMEBEZCHER
one year (note) (Bfi=E)
After 1 year but within 2 years —FRERMFERN 1,918 1,882
After 2 years but within 5 years MERBRERAFENA 5,755 5,691 1
After 5 years AFE% 28,313 30,349 =
£
g
35,986 37,922 iR
72N
A
37,904 39,794 &
R
N
2
Note:  The amounts due are based on scheduled repayment dates as stipulated in MizE - Y @

ZE RIS MARBR BN IBEM]
HpE

ERASEileE

g

1
.

#Z
the respective loan agreements. Z
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32.Bank borrowings (Continued)

Bank borrowings of HK$18,334,000 as at 30 April 2013 and
HK$19,311,000 as at 30 April 2012 were secured by certain
investment properties with fair value amount of HK$46,700,000
and HK$42,200,000 respectively. The interest is charged at 0.7% per
annum over 1-month HIBOR, and capped at 2.5% per annum below
prime rate for both years 2012 and 2013.

Bank borrowings of HK$5,558,000 as at 30 April 2013 and HK$5,823,000
as at 30 April 2012 were secured by certain investment properties with
fair value amount of HK$13,000,000 and HK$12,700,000 respectively.
Interest is charged at 1.25% per annum over 3-month HIBOR, and
capped at 2.75% per annum below prime rate for both years 2012
and 2013.

Bank borrowings of HK$7,240,000 as at 30 April 2013 and HK$7,571,000
as at 30 April 2012 were secured by certain investment properties with
fair value amount of HK$19,400,000 and HK$18,200,000 respectively.
The interest is charged at 1.5% per annum over 3-months HIBOR, and
capped at 2.5% per annum below prime rate for both years 2012 and
2013.

The balance of bank borrowing of HK$6,772,000 as at 30 April 2013
and HK$7,089,000 as at 30 April 2012 was secured by the Group's
leasehold land and buildings held for own use carried at cost (note
13) with net carrying amount of HK$15,115,000 and HK$15,557,000
respectively. The interest is charged at 1.25% per annum over 3-month
HIBOR, and capped at 2.75% per annum below prime rate for both
years 2012 and 2013.

32. RITEE (&

R_E—=FNONA=1+HE T ——
WA=+ B 2 5l #18,334,000% 7T &
19,311,000/ 7T Z RITEE T BIA R FE
46,700,000/ JT }%42,200,00078 It 2 & T %
BYEERH — T ——FEN T =
ME 2 M EHE—(ERABBRITAZERE
h00.7/2 2 S F R UGER + M FF) R LR AR
BEFZFH2.5E -

R-E—=FNA=THERE =T N
A =+ B % 5l A5,558,0007% 7T 55,823,000
BT Z IRITEE T BILA A F{E13,000,000
P8 7T 512,700,00078 7T 2 B T IR B VIS (EE
o —FE——FPH _FT——FREZFNE
HiE=@AEBRTEERS M 2BEZ
FRNEUE - MENE R AREERE
2758 °

R-E—=FNA=THEHE-ZT——FMN
B =+ B % Bl A7,240,0005% 7T 7,571,000
BT Z IRITEE T BILA A F{E19,400,000
77T 518,200,000/ 7T 2 & T E MEAEIR
o —BE——FER-_FT—="EMEZFE
HiR= (A B BRITEZEFSINSEZF
FRUER - T FE LR ARERF R
25

RZE—=FWOA=FTHERZ=ZFT—Z—F0H
A =+ B % 5l 56,772,0007 T }7,089,000
BT ZBITIEBEEHRTIAREERAFE
2 Bl 415,115,000 7T &.15,557,0007 T 2
A AR SIMERFEB A2 HE + i RIEFE
R (HEB) T —FR-_T—=F
MEZF B8R = ABBBRITRERE
MM25E 2 FRERGE - MEMELRA
1B EAEF2.75F °
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33. RIERIBEEE

33.Deferred tax liabilities

(a) XEER  FEHEREZE

(a) The movement in deferred tax liabilities during

(b)

the year is as follows: ¥ 721l
Group
rEH
2013 2012
—ET—=F —EE—=—%E
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx FHETT
Depreciation allowance in excess of related #BBERITE
depreciation ZITERE
At beginning of the year REA]) 591 591
Credit to profit or loss FFAE=E (591) -
At end of the year G - 591

Deferred tax assets are to be recognised for the carryforward of
unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that future
taxable profits will be available against which the unused tax
losses can be utilised.

The Group has not recognised deferred tax assets in respect
of tax losses of HK$149,154,000 (2012: HK$138,172,000). The
unrecognised tax losses, mainly attributable to Hong Kong
companies, can be carried forward indefinitely.

Withholding tax

Under the EIT Law of the PRC, withholding tax is imposed on
dividends declared in respect of profits earned by the PRC
subsidiaries from 1 January 2008 onwards. Deferred taxation has
not been provided for in the consolidated financial statements
in respect of temporary differences attributable to the profits
earned by the PRC subsidiaries amounting to HK$944,000 (2012:
HK$1,572,000) as the Group is able to control the timing of the
reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable that the
temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

BIEFIABEETIRA A8 2 RE AT
TR R T PARER - LA AT BE A R R
ARBE M AERE AR AN AR IEE
R -

7N £ [B 37 oK 7E 52 45 [8149,154,0007% 7T
MEBECBEEREBEEE (ZT—=
F 1 138,172,000/ 70) ° KRR Z T IE
BEEEREEELF 0 AJERIE
i

(b) FEHIH

BIBRBEMREMERE  BZZTEEN
F—H—Hi FENERRZATE
B A 9 K AR BB BN TR - AR
7N 55 [ O] 47 ) 988 1 T A A EE 2 PR
BERZENA RERE D -
T 7 4% T P B BT B R BT Bk U 1 E
1l 2 B B 22 58944,0008 70 (= — =
1,572,000 7T ) AR E I SRR 1E
IRAERE TERE A o
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34.Share capital 34, A<
Group and Company
AEERAAT
2013 2012
“T-=F —EF
Number of Number of
shares HK$’000 shares HK$'000
RO #E THET kingE TAT
Authorised: ETE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.001 each BRAE0TETL
Lk 200,000,000,000 200,000 200,000,000,000 200,000
Issued and fully paid: BETRER
At beginning and end of the year RENRER 5,859,860,900 5,860 5,859,860,900 5,860
The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as LTEREEABRBUDNRE RS -
declared from time to time and are entitled to one vote per share at WHBERARARIRREAE LSRN
meetings of the Company. All ordinary shares rank equally with regard — R FAEEERERAFFBREEZS
to the Company’s residual assets. RZEHNL -
35.Share option scheme 35. ig iR Mot &l
The Company adopted a new a share option scheme (the “New AABHRZZT——FNA =+ HRERHH
Scheme”) effective from 30 September 2011 for the purpose of providing FERREET Sl ([3r5T8l)) - BEREAEE
incentives and rewards to eligible participants who contribute to the EBIEL ARG BB EEEDL RE K
success of the Group’s operations. Eligible participants of the New B3R o FETEl v & BB EEBIERAF
Scheme include the Company’s directors, including non-executive ZEE (BIEENTES)  AEEES -
directors, employees of the Group, any other groups or classes of ARE B EME AR SR 2 HFER - B
suppliers, customers, subcontractors or agents of the Group and B DHENREN  UREFRATLK
the Company’s shareholders determined by the directors as having H A e AR EEBERRIERE AR
contributed or who may contribute to the development and growth ZARRFEIRER o BRIEW BITHEESIEET -
of the Group. The Scheme unless otherwise cancelled or amended, BAGEIE B £ BB tERN—ESF
remains in force for 10 years from that effective date. B o
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35. BT & (2)

35.Share option scheme (Continued)

The maximum number of unexercised share options currently
permitted to be granted under the New Scheme is an amount
equivalent, upon their exercise, to 10% of the shares of the Company
in issue at any time. The maximum number of shares issuable under
share options to each eligible participant in the New Scheme within
any 12-month period, is limited to 1% of the shares of the Company in
issue at any time. Any further grant of share options in excess of this
limit is subject to shareholder’s approval in a general meeting.

Share options granted to any director, chief executive or substantial
shareholder of the Company, or to any of their associates, are
subject to approval in advance by the independent non-executive
directors of the Company. In addition, any share options granted to
a substantial shareholder or an independent non-executive director
of the Company, or to any of their associates, in excess of 0.1% of the
shares of the Company in issue at any time or with an aggregate value
(based on the official closing price of the Company’s shares at the date
of the grant) in excess of HK$5 million, within any 12-month period,
are subject to shareholders’ approval in advance in a general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within 21 days
from the date of offer, upon the payment of a nominal consideration
of HK$1 in total by the grantee. An option may be exercised in
accordance with the terms of the New Scheme at any time during the
period commencing from the date on which the option is deemed
to be granted and accepted and expiring on a date to be notified
by the directors to each grantee, which shall not be more than 10
years from the date on which the option is deemed to be granted and
accepted. There is no minimum holding period before an option may
be exercised.

The exercise price of the share options is determinable by the
directors, but may not be less than the higher of (i) the Stock Exchange
closing price of the Company’s shares on the date of grant of the share
options; (ii) the average Stock Exchange closing price of the Company’s
shares for the five trading days immediately preceding the date of
grant; and (iii) the nominal value of the Company’s shares.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends or to
vote at shareholders’ meetings.

No share options under the New Scheme were granted and outstanding
during the years ended 30 April 2012 and 2013.

BIEFEE - BREEREMERITEZ
BB TTERRFT S R 2 B (5 _ERAHE R
A BFE R B FE B B8 T AN 2 10%  FEE
M+ @R HE - FrESEERDHEE
TR 2 IR N 2 A B 1TIR (0 ER AR
N RE IR AR BTN 21% © FBINE
LB REE 2 BN BERRAE £
TERR ERHLIE ©

BRTEMES  TRAHKIEARAREEZR
R NEEZEMBBEAL ZERE  ©
BESEARRRZ BN IFRITESRE -
RN o i EMER =8 A B T A A A
F 2R IE L IERITEE R EF 2
BB AT ZBREZ BERBRBARNRIEE
A EE 1T 20.1%8AE (RIBEAR
AIRHBREE AARARRMG ZEH KT
{B1E) #B185,000,000/8 7T © BB ATERR
KRG FRERREALE -

EREARNBEROBEREZEZZE BER
“tBAXNEE/ETZEZENE
BEMARES BREIRBEEARER
EMEZERR (AEFAEZARA) H
e B8 By AR BB 5T & IR KT T - 1E B AR
TReEAHBRERRARE MERE R
R T - BRETEN Y EKESEH
fR o

BREZITEERHESEE  ETEE
RTIRSE  (REBREEBARF
BB R P2 T E ¢ (i) AN R BB R
ERREBRES AT RAR S BEBR
Pz WS E RN RFRMDZE
& o

BREYEETHAEAZTEREINBIR
RE LIRBZHEN -

REBEE-_ZT——FR_ZT—=FNA=1+
BIEFE @ EBEREEREFEET
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36.Reserves 36. e
Group ZrEH

Capital Statutory
Share  redemption surplus Exchange
premium reserve reserve  translation Accumulated Total
g A A reserve losses
wBk RORE BHEE EXRE  ERER @t
(note a) (note ) (note c) (note d)
(Mzra) (MzEb) (M) (Mfzkd)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THEL THEL THEL THEL THEL THEL

At 1 May 2011 R-E——FRA—H 533,020 262 255 1,151 (191,621) 343,067
Loss for the year AEEER - - - - (41,220) (41,220)
Exchange adjustment [ % - - - 498 - 498
Share of reserve movement of BiEEREHER

jointly-controlled entity HEEY - - - 37 - 37
Total comprehensive expense AEER AL LER

for the year - - - 535 (41,220) (40,685)
Transfer e - - 15 - (15) -

At 30 April 2012 and 1 May 2012 RZE-—FWA=1H

—E-—FRA-H 533,020 262 270 1,686 (232,856) 302,382

Loss for the year AEEER = = = = (8,601) (8,601)

Exchange adjustment fE 5 % - - - (1) - (1)
Total comprehensive expense AEEREL LERE

for the year - - - (1) (8,601) (8,602)

At 30 April 2013 R-E-=£NA=1H 533,020 262 270 1,685 (241,457) 293,780
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36.Reserves (Continued) 36. ffE (&)
Company ¥ YT
Capital
Share redemption
premium reserve Accumulated
iz 12 [N losses Total
i ER BE e ZEFE &5t
(note a) (note b)
(PfsEa) (P 5ED)
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT T FHET T
At 1 May 2011 R-ZZE——FHH—H 540,586 262 (184,844) 356,004
Loss for the year REZEE - - (99,955) (99,955)
At 30 April 2012 and R-—ZE——&pmA=+H
1 May 2012 ;rE—ZE——FHA—H 540,586 262 (284,799) 256,049
Loss for the year REFEEEE - - (6,038) (6,038)
At 30 April 2013 R-B—=FWA=+H 540,586 262 (290,837) 250,011
The Company’s reserves as at 30 April 2013 available for distribution ARARIRZZE—=FHA=THREHRS
to owners of the Company as calculated under the provision of the BHERARIEZHREMFEAHSIRTAR
Companies Law of Cayman Islands are approximately HK$250,011,000 RIEEE A Z i 4)/5250,011,0008 7T (==
(2012: approximately HK$256,049,000). — 4 ¢ #9256,049,000/87T) °
Nature and purpose of reserves AEMERAZE
(a) Share premium @) Ri7mEHR
The application of the share premium account is governed by B RERZERXASHSARA
the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands. Under the Companies g - RERSHESARNE - BH %
Law of the Cayman Islands, the funds in share premium account HERZESADIRTARARE - =
are distributable to shareholders of the Company provided AR EREREEREREREH §
that immediately following the date on which the dividend is BANA L NEEE B &5 5 B EL-E\\
proposed to be distributed, the Company will be in a position to N2 & - ?
pay off its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of business. L=
o
K
w
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36. % (&

36.Reserves (Continued)

REMER S (&)

Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)

(b) RAE LR

(b) Capital redemption reserve
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The capital redemption reserve represents the amount by which
the Company’s issued share capital has been diminished on the
cancellation of the shares purchased. Under the Companies Law
of the Cayman Islands, the capital redemption reserve may be
applied by the Company in paying up its unissued shares to be
allocated to shareholders of the Company as fully-paid bonus
shares.

RATE R FEE T AR RIS EHITRAR
EESHECBERO MBI 2 2% - 1R
BERESHSQRE  AAFAHRA
BEFEAR N ARRBIREDE
ZARBEITRD - EREBE AL -

(c) Statutory surplus reserve (0 JEEEFE
According to the Company’s PRC subsidiaries articles of REBERRR 2B BEARCABE
association, the PRC company is required to transfer 10% of its 2R FRIARIMARBEFES
net profit after tax, as determined in accordance with the PRC 518 Bl K AR 51 78 7E 2 10% P 756 1% 4 ) #8%
accounting rules and regulations, to the statutory surplus reserve. FEERGBGEE BEEATCERREES
When the balance of the statutory surplus reserve reaches 50% of FRE B Bl A Bl FE & A8 2 50%F - Al
the PRC company’s registered capital, any further appropriation BERGELE —DER - BEZ
is optional. The transfer to this reserve must be made before N AERD IR E TR 2 BI#EST ©
distribution of a dividend to the shareholders.
Statutory surplus reserve can be used to make up previous years’ AERGREEAERBUETEEZ
losses, if any, and may be converted into capital in proportion to B8 (B ) » M Al #IR A FFAR L 1
their existing shareholdings, provided that the balance after such EERKRFEEE R RBIRA - EERE
conversion is not less than 25% of the registered capital. ZEERTBDREME AR 225%

(d) Exchange translation reserve (d) B

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange differences
arising from the translation of the financial statements of
operations outside Hong Kong. The reserve is dealt with in
accordance with the accounting policy set out in note 2(p).

ERREREAREBUINES 2/
BHRERMELEZFIBINEZER - %f#
IR 2(0) AT BN E ST BUR IR



37.Acquisition of assets and liabilities 3V.WBEERAE
(a) Acquisition of assets and liabilities through (a) BAEEEXZITBEAZEE

purchase of House2buy REmE

In February 2012, Kingsmake Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary RZZE—ZF_H ARRIZZEE

of the Company, entered into an agreement with an independent Fff /B /2 ElKingsmake LimitedEd 58 37 55

third party to acquire assets and liabilities through the acquisition =hENHE NERUNBARER

of 100% equity interest in House2buy for a total consideration of 12,337,000 T EEE X% 5 = IEM

approximately HK$12,337,000. House2buy is engaged in property WHEERBE BEXSHNEYWFEE

investment. BET -

The assets and liabilities acquired in the transaction are as follows: RGFBAZEENAEBNT :
HK$'000
FHT

Assets and liabilities acquired: FIBACEERAERE:

Investment property WEMZ 12,374

Utility deposits AREBRAXZS 39

Rental deposit received BWRE S ES (76)

Net asset value of House2buy upon acquisition — WHEEEX¥ 5 2 EE % E 12,337

Total consideration, satisfied by cash BB UREXf 12,337

Net cash outflow arising on acquisition WREECZHESRHFEE

Cash consideration REKE (12,337)
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37.Acquisition of assets and liabilities (Continued) 37.WBEEREE (&)
(b) Acquisition of an asset through purchase of Best b) ZEBEEEEBAZEE
Profit
In May 2011, VGI entered into an agreement with an independent RZE—FHA  VGIEBILE=T
third party to acquire an asset through the acquisition of 100% Rl WEBKEBER (—HEY
equity interest in Best Profit, a property investment holding XREERRAR) 2HBREMBAE
company, at a consideration of approximately HK$2,763,000. B+ R{E4)/52,763,0008 7T °
The assets acquired in the transaction are as follows: RGFIBAZEENT ¢
HK$'000
THT
Assets acquired: FIBAZEE :
Deposit paid for acquisition of WIE—TBREWES [ 2iEe
an investment property (note 19) (F=E19) 2,763
Total consideration, satisfied by cash HERE - URE T 2,763
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition: WEELECZHSREFE:
Cash consideration RERE (2,763)
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37.Acquisition of assets and liabilities (Continued)

(c) Acquisition of an asset through purchase

of Freemantle Capital Investments Limited

(“Freemantle”)

In July 2012, VGI acquired assets through the acquisition of 100%
equity interest in Freemantle (together with its wholly-owned
subsidiary, Dynasty Kingdom Limited, the “Acquired Group”), at a

consideration of approximately HK$52 million.

37. WREEREE (&)

(c) ZEiBfE EFreemantle
Capital Investments Limited

( “Freemantle” )FTiEA 2 & E

RZT—Z—F+t A VGIAE B K
fEFreemantle GERI E 2 & It B & &
Dynasty Kingdom Limited * #7% 78 [ # U&
BEE]) 2XREMBAEE  KE
#952,000,0007 7T °

The assets acquired in the transaction are as follows: RGFBAZEERNT :
HK$'000
FHT
Assets acquired: FIBAZEE :
Investment property (note 15) wEYZE (F7E15) 51,980
Utility deposits UNGES SRR 20
Total consideration BRE 52,000
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition: WEEL 2BSREFE:
Cash consideration BHERE (52,000)
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38.0perating lease arrangements 38. REMNZHE
(a) As lessor (a) FERHFEA
The Group leases out its investment properties (note 15) under REERBEEAOLHELAERE
operating lease arrangements, typically with leases negotiated for Yz (BtsE15) - —REHAmSE - 1
terms of two years. The terms of the leases generally also require AV — MR TN Z SR A 2 TR 4R
the lessee to pay security deposit. % o
At 30 April 2013, the Group had total future minimum lease RZZE—=FMA=1+H ' AEER
receivables under non-cancellable operating leases with lessees B R GE LR TSI EIA A A
falling due as follows: B R 2R FE M S (R A A9 SR IB 4858
Group
AEE
2013 2012
—E—= —_F—=
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Within one year —F R 4,861 2,152
In the second to fifth years, inclusive WERAF (BIEEEME) 1,985 1,025
6,846 3,177
(b) As lessee (b) fERAFEA
At 30 April 2013, the Group had commitments for future minimum RZZE—=FWA=+H" rxEER
lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases falling NAHELEHO 2 RRKEBRO
due as follows: FAGER T %I BARR 21 8 -
Group
AEE
2013 2012
=F—= —E——4F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
s
2 Within one year —F R 6,535 6,574
£ In the second to fifth years, inclusive WERF (BREEEMSE) 20,614 26,026
c After the fifth year AF& - 1,121
=
%: 27,149 33,721
5
;Pj The Group leases restaurant premises and offices under non- REBIRBE DA HEE A EH A% HEE
~ cancellable operating lease arrangements with lease terms EREYERPAE  HEANTMRE
> ranging from two to six years. JNEE o




39.Related party transactions 39. AEALIRE

(@) %R ZEE T REE AT R B
R B REEBI - REBNAFEE R R
BBATHRITIA TR 5 REH

(a) In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed elsewhere
in these financial statements, the Group had the following
transactions and balances with its related parties during the year:

Related expenses/(income)

ARMAx (KA)

As at 30 April

Year ended 30 April

RMUA=+H BEZUA=1THLEE
2013 2012 2013 2012
—_=E—= —B——F —T—= —E——4F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET FTHET FET
Legal fees and corporate EEBRARATIWE
secretarial fees (note (i)) R (MaEd) 346 266 551 468
Rental income (note (i&(iii) A& UA
(B & (i) Bz (i) (445) - (445) (292)
Notes: BisE

(i)  The legal fees were charged for legal services rendered by a law firm, a
partner of which is a close relative of a director, Mr. Vong Tat leong, David.
The corporate secretarial service fees were charged for services rendered
by corporate secretarial firm which is controlled by a close relative of a
director, Mr. Vong Tat leong, David.

The amount is unsecured, interest free and due on presentation.

(i) The rental income was received from a company, of which is controlled by
a close relative of a director, Mr. Vong Tat leong, David.

The amount is unsecured, interest free and due on presentation.
(iii) The Group leases out an investment property to a related party under an
operating lease arrangement for a term of three years. The terms of the

lease require the lessee to pay a security deposit.

At 30 April 2013, the Group had total future minimum lease receivables
under non-cancellable operating lease with lessee falling due as follows:

(i) AEEEH-FEEELH (Eh—fus
BARESEEHRE AR REUCE
RRBZNEMER - ARMERBZ
BRI AESREGEE ORME
2 A EME R R R AR S A -

ZHRAREER - 28 RAVEESN o

(i) HEEABEBEEEELEEZERM
2 RA]

ZHREER - R B RAVRRELR -

(i) AEBERBEEHOLZHRBEALL
H—BREYER  HHES=F - HOMK
RESFMAXZHERRS -

R-ZT—=FWNA=+H  KEERE
AT S A & T 49 T 51 B HA B AT Uk ER
IR B SRAR AR LB 4R %R

Group
AEE
2013 2012
=B =F —E—4F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHT
Within one year —FR 390 390
In the second to fifth years MEAF (BIEERME) - 390

390 780
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39.Related party transactions (Continued) 39. AEALRS (&)
(b) Compensation of key management personnel (b) TEEENSZHIE
The remuneration of directors and key management during the FRNEERETEEBEABZH 2
year is as follows: i
Group
AEE
2013 2012
—E—=F —EF——
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Short term employee benefits HHEBER
Fees e 6,250 6,250
Salaries and other benefits e MEHMER 600 600
6,850 6,850
40.Critical accounting estimates and judgments 40. E R EFHETHR A
(a) Key sources of estimation uncertainty (a) THHEA1E AT 2 EEKIR
In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies which REMAREBSEBUR (F5 R M
are described in note 2, management has made certain key 2) 2B EEEEMREHRN
assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of NEABRAEET 2 AR 2R R HAth = Z 2R IE
estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that TETEEZERRK  BEBERTETE
may have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to BN T —HTBFREHEERBRE
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next ZHEMEENERAR 2ENRR -
financial year, as discussed below. EEY N
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40.Critical accounting estimates and judgments
(Continued)

(a) Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(1)

(i)

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

The Group’s management determines the estimated useful
lives and related depreciation charges for its property, plant
and equipment. This estimate is based on the historical
experience of the actual useful lives of property, plant
and equipment of similar nature and functions. It could
change significantly as a result of technical innovations and
competitor actions in response to severe industry cycles.
Management will increase the depreciation charge where
useful lives are less than previously estimated lives, or it will
write-off or write-down technically obsolete or non-strategic
assets that have been abandoned or sold.

The carrying amount of property, plant and equipment as
at 30 April 2013 were HK$17,093,000 (2012: HK$18,742,000).

Impairment of property, plant and equipment and lease
premium for land

The recoverable amount of an asset is the higher of its fair
value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset, which requires significant
judgment relatingto level of revenue and amount of operating
costs. The Group uses all readily available information in
determining an amount that is a reasonable approximation
of the recoverable amount, including estimates based on
reasonable and supportable assumptions and projections
of revenue and operating costs. Changes in these estimates
could have a significant impact on the carrying value of the
assets and could result in additional impairment charge or
reversal of impairment in future periods.

40. EREHAST R HE (&)

(a) THEET ZEEFHIR (&)

(1)

(1)

YR - Bbs Rakie. 2 Al & FR]

AEEEEEETENE  BE
M@ bt a EAFH AR
FEEM - b HRBBEER
B MERDEERETZYE
5 Mo st 2 BER A A A B i
B - AR ER RBFHF
HAERIKRITEAYMIELTTS
ZfAETABEMIRERES - fi 7]
ERFREREAGEZFE
EEERRESTEER I
REE & 2 BB S IR AR
B E M SH SMORL ©

M= BELRZEBR-_T—=F
M A=+ Az REE 717,093,000
BT (ZF — — £ : 18,742,000/
JT) °

YR - BERREAR L2

BEMNKEERESHE A FERHE
ERAEFEREEMET 2ES
- whHEREER - Dl
AARKREREAEEREE
B ERZRRRER DA R
MG ERRERZEER
ERREZHMEREE  YHFE
HPAKER L ERARERER
HEf - NREBFBAAERE AR
HAKESEESEMGEE - 821
RIFAIE R A 5 Z REA R
AMBERRNZ EEETHE -
Mt eBc B Y EERT
EELAEATE LA EERE
AREERE RN 2 BB i3k
BECFRZRE -
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40.Critical accounting estimates and judgments
(Continued)

(a) Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(11)

(iii)

Impairment of property, plant and equipment and lease
premium for land (Continued)

The carrying amount of property, plant and equipment
and lease premium for land as at 30 April 2013 were
HK$17,093,000 (2012: HK$18,742,000) and HK$1,426,000
(2012: HK$1,460,000) respectively.

Estimate fair value of investment properties

The investment properties were revalued at the end of
the reporting period by reference to comparable market
transaction by Such
valuations were based on certain assumptions, which are

independent qualified valuers.
subject to uncertainty and might materially differ from the
actual results. In making the judgment, the Group considers
information from current prices in an active market for
similar properties and uses assumptions that are mainly
based on market conditions existing at the end of each

reporting period.

The carrying amount of investment properties as at 30 April
2013 were HK$182,751,000 (2012: HK$119,541,000).

40. EREFHEFTRAE (&

(a) THHRAtE A2 E BRI (&)

(1)

(i)

Y% -~ B R AR L%
H1E (&)

ME - BERRBER-_ZE—=F
MA=+HZEEENRTH
i € 9 Bl A17,093,000% 7T (=
T — = £ 118,742,000/ JT) &
1,426,000/ T (= & — = & :
1,460,000/ 7T ) °

KEYRZ 1G5 A FE

BREMERBRERRBBILAE
RIAEME2EZAELRHER
S&EMH - REHEDREETR
RETT > BEBRRIZRNAERE
RER - EEHHER - AEE
EERRBHEENERNEEMS
BEMNER YEEAXERE
BEREMRERTRAIEL 2R

REWER-_T—=FMA=+
B 2 BRI {8 4182,751,00058 7 (=
T — £ : 119,541,000 7T) °
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40.Critical accounting estimates and judgments
(Continued)

(a) Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(iv) Impairment of receivables and moneylending loan receivables

v)

The Group maintains impairment allowance for doubtful
accounts based upon evaluation of the recoverability of
the accounts receivable, moneylending loan receivables
and other receivables, where applicable, at each end of the
reporting period. The estimates are based on the aging of
the accounts receivable, moneylending loan receivables
and others receivable balances and the historical write-off
experience, net of recoveries. If the financial condition of
the debtors were to deteriorate, additional impairment
allowance may be required.

The carrying amount of accounts receivable, moneylending
loan receivables and other receivables as at 30 April 2013
were HK$273,000 (2012: HK$471,000), HK$4,784,000 (2012:
HK$23,026,000) and HK$20,487,000 (2012: HK$3,704,000)
respectively.

Estimated impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an
estimation of the value in use of the cash-generating units
to which goodwill has been allocated. The value in use
calculation requires the Group to estimate the future cash
flows expected to arise from the cash-generating unit and a
suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value.

The carrying amount of goodwill as at 30 April 2013 were
HK$4,631,000 (2012: HK$6,212,000).

40. EREHAST R HE (&)

(a) TEHBETHZEERKR (&)

(iv) FENARIERIE R I (E B fE WAL

(v)

H

RERERR - AERERBERYK
RRAK PR IE & R R H A U
R (REM) 2 AR 7 {4

At R RERORERE - ARG

AHORBEYERR - BUREE

TR N EL A B WO TR A 4 2 BR R B

ﬁj‘i%ﬁﬁ%ﬂﬁ?ﬂﬁ%ﬂ%@i%ﬁﬁr
o fid RIEAZ F AR BAE -

REZARELBIN IR ERLS -

J‘&“Hﬂzﬁ%‘% : FM&ZE&Z%’:%E’(&E@
JE s BR 5K —=FmA=+
HZEE ﬁ E 5 EIJ /%273,00078 7T
(= ZF — = £ :471,000% JT) °
4,784,000 T (= T — — £F:
23,026,000/ 7T) }220,487,0007%5 7T
—ZT— 4 :3704,00087T) °

1aaT BB E

ErHERSHRRER Al
Aty "@Eﬁﬁziﬁéigiﬁﬁz
EREE - AEEREER &
SEAGENEReESEN
EEXZARRREREREE 28
HE R -

BEN-_ZE—=FNA=+H2Z
BRI (B 54,631,000 7T (=T ——
£ 1 6,212,000/87T) °
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40. EREFHEFTRAE (&

40.Critical accounting estimates and judgments
(Continued)

(a) THHRAtE A2 E BRI (&)

(a) Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

i) FZE#E

(vi) Allowance for inventories
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The management of the Group reviews its inventories at the
end of the each reporting period and make allowance for
obsolete and slow-moving inventory items identified that
are no longer marketable or suitable for use in production.
Management estimates the net realisable value for such
items based primarily on the latest invoice prices and current
market conditions. The Group carries out an inventory review
on a product-by-product basis at each end of the reporting
period and make allowance for obsolete items.

The carrying amount of inventories as at 30 April 2013 were
HK$6,979,000 (2012: HK$7,711,000).

(vii) Income taxes

As at 30 April 2013, no deferred tax asset (2012: Nil) in relation
to unused tax losses HK$149,154,000 (2012: HK$138,172,000)
has been recognised in the Group’s consolidated statement of
financial position due to the unpredictability of future profit
streams. The realisability of the deferred tax asset mainly
depends on whether sufficient future profits or taxable
temporary differences will be available in the future.

The current taxation for the year ended 2013 was income
tax credit HK$475,000 (2012: income tax charge HK$69,000).
The carrying amount of deferred tax liabilities, tax payables
and tax recoverable as at 30 April 2013 were HK$Nil (2012:
HK$591,000), HK$22,101,000 (2012: HK$22,101,000) and
HK$22,000 (2012: HK$Nil) respectively.

(vii)

AEBEEBNEREMREE
HEFE  Ur#h R TBARM
LHENERNEEZRE RF
HEEHBFLEE - EEEX
EREBEFMPERERRBRTH
o BEFAEBEE 2R #RF
B NREEREHEHRRER
EmEERETE  UHMKRER
BFH B -

EER-_ZE—=FmWA=1+AHZ
BRTEI{E 46,979,000 ¢ (=T ——
£ 7,711,000 7T) °

Va2

R-ZE—=FMA=+H8" AR
REETART B2 & PR - B £
RAEE 26 W BRI TR AT
2K {2 A3 7% 18 /&5 $8149,154,0007% JT
(=& — — £ : 138,172,000 JT)
RIELERBEE (ZT——F
)  RIETIEEE 2] #H EE
ZERANBRERATESRHAR
Hom A AR R =R o

BE-_ZT—-FILtFEZHH
I8 & FT 15 B 4K 9475,0007 7T (=
T — ZF: {5 X 69,0007
) BEMBEEE - BNBIEA
RalREIHER - —=F
A=THZEEES NBZEHE
JC (== — = 4F : 591,000/ JT) *
22,101,000/ 7T (= & — = 4 -
22,101,000/ 7T) 22,000 7T (=
T——F  TEL) °



s

o V7

P - o

.

40. EREHAST R HE (&)

40.Critical accounting estimates and judgments
(Continued)

(b) Critical accounting judgments in applying the (b) 7£5| A EBE B E 2B

Group’s accounting policies

In determining the carryingamounts of some assets and liabilities,
the Group makes assumptions for the effects of uncertain future
events on those assets and liabilities at the end of the reporting
period. These estimates involve assumptions about such items as
cash flows and discount rates used. The Group’s estimates and
assumptions are based on historical experience and expectations
of future events and are reviewed periodically. In addition to
assumptions and estimations of future events, judgments are
also made during the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies.

Available-for-sale investments are stated at cost less impairment.
Judgment is required when determining whether an impairment
existed. In making this judgment, historical data and factors such
as industry and sector performance and financial information
regarding the investee and certain specific conditions surrounding
the transactions giving rise to the investments are taken into
account.

41.Financial risk management objectives and policies

(a) Financial risk factors

The Group’s major financial instruments include equity
investments, borrowings, accounts and other receivables,
moneylending loan receivables, derivative financial instrument,
cash and cash equivalents, and accounts and other payables.
Details of the financial instruments are disclosed in respective
notes. The risks associated with these financial instruments
include credit risk, liquidity risk, currency risk, interest rate risk
and equity price risk. The policies on how to mitigate these
risks are set out below. The Group’s management manages and
monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner.

R H e

EEEREEENBEREER -
AEERZFEERRBERREHR
ZTHEARRERZZEIEHMRR -
ZEMBFPRREREMPIERZRE
BERZBEZ - AEEHRKRER MG
At R R R THAR IR IR 2 2 48 B S FEURI I
BegEra - REREERZMR
Kfgatoh - ESIBAKREEARERZ
BRI E ) FIE -

AR ERERAARRES I - &
EAD LR RBESZELHE - RME
HA RS - BEBIRMARITE
FRBIKRR - ARBRABRET 28
ENERREGTER -

M. BEEREEBERBER
(a) BIBE B A&

AEBZTEUBIABREESR
B B BWERR R A AL R WO
R BEBEER TEMBTA -
RekReFEEBAREBNERR
HMEMNFR - ¥ TAZHBERE
RERKE ERFHMBETAEEL
RReEEERR RBEEER -
B R M= R R E SR
B o AP R R F R 2 R E N T
X AREEREEEREEZER
B - DARECR RSB REMEE 256
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41.Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

(a) Financial risk factors (Continued)

(i)  Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that counterparty will default
on its contractual obligation resulting in financial loss to
the Group. The Group has adopted a policy of only dealing
with creditworthy counterparties and obtaining sufficient
collateral, where appropriate, as a means of mitigating the
risk of financial loss from defaults.

In respect of accounts receivable, other receivables,
moneylending loan receivables and derivative financial
instruments, in order to minimise risk, the management has
a credit policy in place and the exposures to these credit risks
are monitored on an ongoing basis. With respect to accounts
receivables, other receivables and moneylending loan
receivables, credit evaluations of its debtors’ financial position
and condition are performed on each and every major debtor
periodically. These evaluations focus on the debtors’ past
history of making payments when due and currently ability to
pay, and take into account information specific to the debtor
as well as pertaining to the economic environment in which
the debtor operates. For the derivative financial instruments,
credit evaluation of the counterparty’s financial liability is
performed periodically. The evaluation emphasise on the
assets held by the counterparty for meeting his obligation
and the valuation of the relevant assets. The Group does not
require collateral in respect of accounts receivable, other
receivables, unsecured short-term loans receivable included
in moneylending loan receivables and derivative financial
instruments. In respect of pawn loans receivable included in
moneylending loan receivables, the Group held collateral,
mainly land and building, gold and jewellery, for securing the
debts. Debts are usually due within 30 to 90 days from the date
of billing or as agreed in the respective agreement. In addition,
the management of the Group reviews the recoverable
amount of each individual debt at the end of the reporting
period to ensure that adequate impairment losses are made
for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the directors of the
Company consider that the Group and the Company’s credit
risk is significantly reduced.
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41.Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

(a) MBEBREE ()

(a) Financial risk factors (Continued)

(i) Credit risk (Continued) () 1EEREfE (&)

(i)

In respect of accounts receivable, other receivables and
moneylendingloan receivables, the Group’s exposure to credit
risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of
each debtor. The default risk of the industry and country
in which debtors operate also has an influence on credit
risk. At the end of the reporting period, the Group has no
significant concentrations of credit risk which individual
balance exceeds 10% of the total accounts receivables, other
receivables and moneylending loan receivables at the end of
the reporting period.

The credit risk on cash and cash equivalents is limited
because the counterparties are banks with high credit ratings
assigned by international credit-rating agencies.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group’s
exposure to credit risk arising from accounts receivable,
moneylending loan receivables and other receivables are set
out in notes 22, 23 and 24 respectively.

The Company’s credit risk is primarily attributable to
amounts due from subsidiaries. The Company reviews the
recoverable amounts of individual debts at the end of each
reporting period to ensure that adequate impairment losses
are made for irrecoverable amounts.

Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group are responsible
for its own cash management, including the short term
investment of cash surpluses and the raising of loans to
cover expected cash demand, subject to board approval. The
Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current and expected
liquidity requirements and its compliance with lending
covenants to ensure that it maintains sufficient amount of
cash and adequate committed lines of funding from major
financial institutions to meet its liquidity requirements in the
short and longer term. The Group relies on bank borrowings
as a significant source of liquidity.
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41.Financial risk management objectives and policies 41. ¥R EE B ERBEK (&)

(Continued)
(a) Financial risk factors (Continued) (a) BIBEEEZE (&)
(ii) Liquidity risk (Continued) (i) FEEZELR (&)
The following liquidity risk tables set out the remaining KTz REBERBRRSEENUE
contractual maturities at the end of the reporting period HARUBFZHEEREREEZAR
of the Group’s and Company’s financial liabilities based SBERARNRTFEEERREH
on contractual undiscounted cash flows (including interest RZHATEHER (BIERE O
payments computed using contractual rates or, if floating, K (AZFENFR) RNIEER
based on rates current at the end of the reporting period) and LR EFE 2 FENMR) - K
the earliest date the Group and Company can be required to AEERARR A ERKNGRZ
pay: =FHEE:
Group AEE
More than More than Total
Within 1yearbut  2yearshut  contractual
1 year or less than less than undiscounted Carrying
on demand 2 years 5 years cash flow amount
—FRE  BA-FE BERFE SHRER
REX RWER REFR RERELE BEE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET TER TER TER TER
2013 —E-=%
Accounts payable FEERIE 1,704 - - 1,704 1,704
Accruals fEt 2B 5,621 - - 5,621 5,621
Accrued staff benefits fE:t 8 487 4,949 - - 4,949 4,949
Other payables H i ERZIE 66 - - 66 66
Bank borrowings BITEE 37,904 - - 37,904 37,904
Finance lease payable R AT AR 132 72 - 204 195

50,376 72 - 50,448 50,439
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41.Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

(a) Financial risk factors (Continued)
(i) Liquidity risk (Continued)

Group (Continued)

M. BERREEEEREEK (&)

(a) FIEEREEZE (&)

(i) TEEzREE (&)

FEME (&)

More than More than Total
Within 1 year but 2 years but contractual
1 year or less than less than  undiscounted Carrying
on demand 2 years 5 years cash flow amount
—ERNyg  BRE-FE BERFE AORER
BREX RRER RAFR ReR2LE REE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT TAT TAT FAT TET
2012 “E-_F
Accounts payable ERERIE 1,195 - - 1,195 1,195
Accruals FEztTE 6,650 - - 6,650 6,650
Accrued staff henefits FEztE THaF 3,613 - - 3,613 3,613
Other payables H i IE 138 - - 138 138
Bank borrowings RITEE 39,794 — - 39,794 39,794
Finance lease payable TR ERAIE 133 123 7 327 303
51,523 123 71 51,717 51,693
Company KA E]
More than More than Total
Within 1yearbut  2yearshut contractual
1 year or less than less than undiscounted Carrying
on demand 2 years 5 years cash flow amount
-FRE  HBE-FE BEWFE SHRER
REX RWER REFR RERELE REE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TER TAR TER ThR TER
2013 “E-=F
Accruals [zt 7 2,696 - - 2,696 2,696
Other payables H M TIB 27 - - 27 27
2,723 - - 2,723 2,723
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41.Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

(a) HBEEEE (&)

(a) Financial risk factors (Continued)

(i) Liquidity risk (Continued) (i) REEzREE (&)
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Company (Continued) KAT (&)
More than More than Total
Within 1 year but 2 years but contractual
1 year or less than less than  undiscounted (arrying
on demand 2 years 5 years cash flow amount
—FRy  BBE-FE BERERE AORER
BEX NG ROFR RERERR FREE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAET TAT TAT TAT TAT
2012 —E-—C_F
Accruals g 2,997 - - 2,997 2,997
Other payahles H e 58 2 - - 27 27
3,024 - - 3,024 3,024

Bank borrowings with a repayment on demand clause are
included in the “within 1 year or on demand” time band
in the above maturity analysis. As at 30 April 2013 and 30
April 2012, the aggregate carrying amounts of these bank
borrowings amounted to approximately HK$37,904,000 and
HK$39,794,000 respectively. Taking into account the Group’s
financial position, the directors of the Company do not
believe that it is probable that the banks will exercise their
discretionary rights to demand immediate repayment. The
directors of the Company believe that such bank borrowings
will be fully repaid in accordance with the scheduled
repayment dates set out in the loan agreements, as follows.
However, in accordance with Hong Kong Interpretation 5
Presentation of Financial Statements Classification by the
Borrower of a Term Loan that Contains a Repayment on
Demand Clause, all such bank loans have been classified as
current liabilities.

B A5 R BSRGB FUIR R Z IRTT1E
BB BEONTFAAT—
FRSIZENK | ZBREER - R
E—=—FUNA=t+BEER=_ZT—=
FHA=+H' ' ZZERIBEZ
#BERTE1E 2 5149 /&37,904,00078 7T
$239,794,0007% 7T ° #&aT R AL E
2R - KRREER AR
IR TIE R IBHE E KRR
e RRAIEZBRE  ZFHR1T
BEEBREER G HTEATE
EERBHBEEE - A 1B
BEERBEEFU BRI 2
#H—EAANHEZAEFEKE
EBEAZTHEAZ7E  E
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41.Financial risk management objectives and policies 41. AR EEEERBEK (&)
(Continued)

(a) Financial risk factors (Continued) (a) BIBEBEZE (&)
(i) Liquidity risk (Continued) (i) TEEZEE (&)
Maturity analysis — Term loans subject to a repayment on B - ARERGERRER
demand clause based on scheduled repayments EERHBRZEHER
The Group REE
More than More than
1year but 2 years hut Total
Within less than less than More than undiscounted
1 year 2 years 5 years 5 years cash flow
BB-F BBMF KRR E
-FR  ERWMER EREFR BBREF et X
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

THET TET THET TR TET

30 April 2013 —E-=F
A=1AH 2,414 2,414 7,243 30,531 42,602
30 April 2012 —E—F
mA=1H 2,426 2,426 7,277 33,097 45,226
(iii) Interest-rate risk e
Except for certain interest-bearing bank deposits and bank BRETEERITER - RITEE
borrowings and finance lease payable, the Group has REMNBEMLRIEBIN  AEHE
no significant interest-bearing assets and liabilities. The WEERFGFEEERBE A%
Group’s income and operating cash flows are substantially Bz WM ARKEERSMEARNR L
independent of changes in market interest rates. Bank BT 5 A 5 2 B &) - IR1TTF
deposits and bank borrowings issued at variable rates expose RREESFEREL ZRITEE
the Group to cash flow interest-rate risk. Finance lease FAEEBYERESREFEER
payable at fixed rate exposes the Group to fair value interest % o MEENMEAE 2 ENHE
rate risk. Details of the Group’s finance lease payables and TRAFRIBFE RS B A FEFR
bank borrowings have been disclosed in notes 31 and 32 LRk BEASBEENRER
respectively to the financial statements. HRBERBITEEZFBED =
PABF T SRR P33 S BT 5324 B8 o il
=5
The Group has not entered into any interest rate swaps to 7R &= BN 4 5T 57 4 {r] 1) 2= $2 HA LA §
hedge its exposure to interest risks. $ AT M R R o E,;E\\
|
The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk is mainly concentrated ArEBEZHeREMNERBRES é
on the fluctuation of Hong Kong Interbank Offer Rate arising STRAKEZAETIEEMES f'i,f
from the Group’s Hong Kong dollar borrowings. ZBBRITREFEMNEKE - 2
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41.Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)

(a) Financial risk factors (Continued)

(i) Interest-rate risk (Continued)

(i) Interest rate profile

The following table details the interest rate profile of the

M. BERREEEEREEK (&)

(a) BIBEEEZE (&)
(i) FIEEfE (&)
(i) FI=BER

TRFAIAKEEEN RS

Group’s borrowings at the end of the reporting period: AR 2 I =R
Group
X&E
2013 2012
—E—= g
Effective Effective
interest interest
rates rates
BRAI= BBRAM®
% HK$’000 % HK$'000
TET BT
Fixed rate horrowings: EEFREE .

Finance lease payable e R AR HIE 5.9 195 5.9 303
Variable rate borrowings: BEHFEEE !

Bank borrowings RITHEE 0.9-2.75 37,904 1-2.5 39,794
Total horrowings BEE 38,099 40,097
Net fixed rate borrowings EEFIREEF

as a percentage of total HREETFE

net borrowings ZBDL 0.51% 0.76%
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41.Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

(a) Financial risk factors (Continued)

(iii) Interest-rate risk (Continued)

0

Interest rate profile (Continued)

Finance lease payable of the Group which is fixed-rate
instruments is insensitive to any change in interest rates.
A change in interest rate at the end of the reporting
period would not affect profit or loss.

At 30 April 2013, it is estimated that a general increase/
decrease of 100 basis points in interest rates would
increase/decrease the Group’s loss after tax and
accumulated losses by approximately HK$317,000
(2012: HK$332,000).

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined
assuming that the change in interest rates had occurred
at the end of the reporting period and had been applied
to the exposure to interest rate risk for non-derivative
financial instruments in existence at that date. The
100 basis points increase or decrease represents
management’s assessment of a reasonably possible
change in interest rates over the period until the end of
the next annual reporting period.

(iv) Currency risk

The Group’s operations are mainly in Hong Kong and PRC.

Entities within the Group are exposed to foreign exchange

risk from future commercial transactions and monetary

assets and liabilities that are denominated in a currency that

is not the entity’s functional currency.

The Group currently does not have a foreign currency

hedging policy. It manages its foreign currency risk by closely

monitoring the movement of the foreign currency rates

and will consider entering into forward foreign contracts to

reduce the exposure should the need arise.

M. BERREEEEREEK (&)

(a) MBEBEEE ()

(iti) U2

(iv) &

(%)
(i) F=ER &)
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41.Financial risk management objectives and policies 41. I EMREE B ERBEE (&)

(Continued)
(a) Financial risk factors (Continued) (a) BIBEEEZE (&)
(iv) Currency risk (Continued) (v) B (&)
(i) Exposure to currency risk () AXEERER

The following table details the Group’s exposure at TRFMRANE BN ®EHR
the end of the reporting period to currency risk arising LZEBRBEBNEB NG
from recognised assets or liabilities denominated in a BB ERREESAE
currency other than the functional currency of the entity FTEEZEBR R - E4&
to which they relate. The currencies giving rise to this R sEBEEEXFZRAR
risk are primarily Renminbi (“RMB”) and United States B TARK] kEx(xE
Dollars (“US$”). The Company is not expose to material Jo)) o ARR BRI & H R

currency risk at the end of the reporting period. A EAEERR -

Exposure to foreign currencies
(expressed in HK$’000)
EHzMNERER (UATFETIIR)
Group
r&E
2013 2012

2= —E——F
RMB Us$ RMB Us$
AR E Y AR e
Cash and cash equivalents Re kAL EFEER 4,288 13,882 4,084 46,503

Overall exposure arising from ERREEREE

recognised assets and liabilities P4 7 2R 4,288 13,882 4,084 46,503
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41.Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

(a) Financial risk factors (Continued)

(iv) Currency risk (Continued)

M. BERREEEEREEK (&)

(a) MBEBEEE ()

(iv) E¥/EL (&)

(i) Sensitivity analysis (i) BUREEDHT
The following table indicates the approximate change TRETRREARAEH
in the Group’s loss after tax (and accumulated losses) P % & AR\ 2 1N e &
in response to reasonably possible changes in the ZEENREE MRS
foreign exchange rate to which the Group has significant BREiEEE (REEER)
exposure at the end of the reporting period. IR 2 A ) -
2013 2012

—¥-=F —F-F
Decrease/ Decrease/
Increase/ (increase) on Increase/ (increase) on
(decrease) loss after (decrease) loss after
in foreign tax and in foreign tax and
exchange accumulated exchange accumulated
rate losses rate losses
HMEEE BB &ER I B BREiE AR
t#/ KEBEE tH/ REBER
(TF&) WD/ (%m) (TF&) B /(s8m)
HK$’000 HK$'000
TET TR
RMB ARE 5% 179 5% 170
(5%) (179) (5%) (170)

The sensitivity analysis has been determined assuming
that the change in foreign exchange rates had occurred
at the end of the reporting period and had been
applied to the Group’s exposure to currency risk for
non-derivative financial instruments in existence at that
date, and that all other variables, in particular interest
rates, remain constant.
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41.Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

(a) Financial risk factors (Continued)
(iv) Currency risk (Continued)
(i) Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

The stated changes represent management’s assessment
of reasonably possible changes in foreign exchange rate
over the period until the end of the next annual reporting
period. In this respect, it is assumed that the pegged rate
between the Hong Kong dollar and the United States
dollar would be materially unaffected by any changes
in movement in value of the United States dollar against
other currencies. Results of the analysis as presented in
the above table represent an aggregation of the effects
on each of the Group’s entities profit/loss after tax and
equity measured in the respective functional currencies,
translated into Hong Kong dollar at the exchange rate
ruling at the end of the reporting period for presentation
purposes. The analysis is performed on the same basis
for 2012.

(v) Equity price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price changes arising from
equity investments classified as trading securities (see note
26).

The Group’s listed equity investments are listed on the Stock
Exchange and Canadian Stock Exchange. Decisions to buy or
sell trading securities are based on daily monitoring of the
performance of individual securities compared to that of the
stock market index and other industry indicators, as well as
the Group’s liquidity needs.

M. BERREEEEREEK (&)

(a) HBEEEE (&)

(iv) &

)

Bk (F)
(i) BREDH (&)
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41.Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)
(a) IBEBREZE (&)

(a) Financial risk factors (Continued)

(v) Equity price risk (Continued) ) BRIEEEREE (&)
RZZE—=FWA=+H" &M
BlRTEE (Bt EWIREMmMES) Lk
HATH % (ZT — = F:
5%) M FTA H i HCNE R - g
AR BRBEEE (RREE
18) EEWTRATRD /3N :

At 30 April 2013, it is estimated that an increase/(decrease)
of 5% (2012: 5%) in the relevant stock market index (for listed
investments), with all other variables held constant, would
have decreased/increased the Group’s loss after tax (and
accumulated losses) as follows:

Group

A%

2013

—EBE-=F —F

Decrease/
(increase) on
loss after
tax and
accumulated

2012
——f&

Decrease/
(increase) on
loss after
tax and
accumulated

losses losses
BB EESR BREi & BB
REEEE SELT
HD/(8n) md /()
HK$’000 HK$'000
TET TR
Change in the relevant equity AR ERRE
price risk variable: 2E
Increase & 5% 1,122 5% 1,254
Decrease B (5%) (1,122) (5%) (1,254)
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41.Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

(a) HBEEEE (&)

(a) Financial risk factors (Continued)

(v) Equity price risk (Continued) V) BRIEEERERE (&)
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The sensitivity analysis indicates the instantaneous change in
the Group’s loss after tax (and accumulated losses) that would
arise assuming that the changes in the stock market index had
occurred at the end of reporting period and had been applied
to re-measure those financial instruments held by the Group
which expose the Group to equity price risk at the end of the
reporting period. It is also assumed that the fair values of the
Group’s equity investments would change in accordance with
the historical correlation with the relevant stock market index
and that all other variables remain constant. The analysis is
preformed on the same basis for 2012.

(vi) Fair values

(i)  Financial instruments carried at fair value

The following table presents the carrying value of
financial instruments measured at fair value at the
end of the reporting period across the three levels of
the fair value hierarchy defined in HKFRS 7, Financial
Instruments: Disclosures, with the fair value of each
financial instruments categorised in its entirety based
on the lowest level of input that is significant to that fair
value measurement. The levels are defined as follows:

—  Level 1 (highest level): fair values measured using
quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical financial instruments

(vi)

BRENNTET - BRRIRME
ZEBHERMERREL WD
ERREFAEAKERFEZ
MBETE MaxEFIASAEHE
RIEPREAZRERR 4
AEBEZHRBREER (RREE
1B) BEEKZARTZE - TMRR
AREREFREZ R FHEBRIE
BB ZERBEREM
e MAEEMBEIRERT
o T F 2 HMIMAERE

(i) BHAVEIRZYVETA

TREJIRNBERRRES
MG mEERE7S - BT
B WEMARAEZ AFEER
P —EEH - mAFER
BUKITAKEE B8
BYB TRz A ETZEE
REBRATFEAERERY
87 XEBARRDE - B
FRIEATRE

- FR(ESEFER:E
AR ERER 2 5T R
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41.Financial risk management objectives and policies 41. AR EEEERBEK (&)
(Continued)

(a) Financial risk factors (Continued) (a) IBEBREZE (&)
(vi) Fair values (Continued) vi) 2F1E (&)
(i) Financial instruments carried at fair value (Continued) () BAFEIEZVBHIA
(%)

—  Level 2: fair values measured using quoted prices in — FIR:FARKRERZ
active markets for similar financial instruments, or MSHREUTET AR
using valuation techniques in which all significant B IFMEEZE@AIER
inputs are directly or indirectly based on observable B EZ KR A ERT
market data SR BIRIE 2 AR

ERATEZ

—  Level 3 (lowest level): fair values measured using — E=4 (HEER) - £/8
valuation techniques in which any significant input FREZ#H AEB BTN
is not based on observable market data A ERTISEIRARE 2

HERMESAFENE

2013 —F—=
The Group
A%
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
£ ot 1 F=R a3t

HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TRT TET

Assets EE
Equity investments at fair BATENERTR

value through profit or loss LBRRE 30,043 - - 30,043
Derivative financial PTHEBBIA -

instrument — Termination Right R EHE - - - -

Total act 30,043 - - 30,043
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41.Financial risk management objectives and policies 41. ¥R EE B ERBEK (&)

(Continued)
(a) Financial risk factors (Continued) (a) BIBEEHEZE ()
(vi) Fair values (Continued) Vi) 22FE (&)
(i) Financial instruments carried at fair value (Continued) () BRAFEINEZHBILA
(#&)
2012 —E—_F
The Group
AEHE
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F—8 FH EZH Bat
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR THEL TR THL
Assets EE
Equity investments at fair BRATENERSE
value through profit or loss BHLRE 30,043 - - 30,043
Derivative financial TEMBIA -
instrument — Termination Right Sl = = 16,159 16,159
Total @t 30,043 - 16,159 46,202
During the year there were no significant transfers FAE—REE R T A ZHEWEF
between instruments in Level 1 and Level 2. AT RER o
Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements of BB EE = R FEE 2R
financial assets
Group
rEE
2013 2012
—E—=F —=E=2—=
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET THT
Derivative financial instrument PTHEBEITE —
< — Termination Right R IERE
=3
(']
S Balance at beginning of year FHEEER 16,159 -
= Fair value gain NS - 16,159
% Disposal (note 27) e (FEE27) (16,159) -
o
§ Balance at end of year ERGER - 16,159
S
z
3 Fair value gain on derivative financial instrument is MEMBITAZ A FEREFTATE
; included in “other gains”. U | o
oy
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41.Financial risk management objectives and policies 41. AR EEEERBEK (&)
(Continued)

(a) Financial risk factors (Continued) (a) BIBEBEZE (&

(vi) Fair values (Continued)

(i) Fair value of financial instruments carried at other than
fair value

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial
instruments carried at cost or amortised cost, except for
those available-for-sale investments of which the fair
value cannot be measured reliably as detailed in note
20 note (i), are not materially different from their fair
values as at 30 April 2012 and 2013.

(b) Capital risk management

The Group’s objective when managing capital are to safeguard the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide
returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and
to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of
capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group
may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return
capital to shareholders or issue new shares.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio,
which is calculated as total borrowings divided by total equity as
shown in the consolidated statement of financial position. The
gearing ratios as at 30 April 2013 and 2012 were as follows:

Vi) 2FE (&

i) JFEATEFIE B TA
2 ATE

7N 5 B 4% P AN 3 8 5 K AN B
fR2 B T ARRE(E (MBI
B EE 208 & () T e 2 B &
TR SEFTE 2 AT &R
BRN) BR T ——FR=
Z—=FMA=1+HZRYF
BEYEBERER -

(b) B m R EE

AEEEEEAZ BNRRELEH
FERE 2N ARBRREH-E R
N HER R A AREMNE - Wi
FREBRRBARMEERKE

REE ] LARIB A E SN TR 2 R
B2 BEEATRRIETHE

AEERBABHRERELN  BF
R R A MR KRR 2 B8
R AR E N _F—=F
RZZ-——_FWA=+HZA/BLE
W

Group

AKEE
2013 2012

—F—= —Eg—=

HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET
Bank borrowings RITEE 37,904 39,794
Finance lease payable FEt R A FH A FIE 195 303
Total borrowings EEHzm 38,099 40,097
Total equity B 299,640 308,242
Gearing ratio BE R 0.13 0.13
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41.Financial risk management objectives and policies 41. ¥R EE B ERBEK (&)

(Continued)
(c) Estimation of fair values (c) 2\-FlEZ155
The following summarises the major methods and assumptions TXBMAR GG AT B ITAEZ R
used in estimating the fair values of the following financial TE2EERERBFK
instruments.
(i) Securities () #FH
The fair value is based on quoted market prices at the end NEETIEREHRRABME
of the reporting period. The quoted market price used for FE o AKEFSESMACT
securities held by the Group is the closing bid price at the end BHRELRERRZWTEANE °

of the reporting period.

(i) Bank borrowings (i) RITIER
The fair value is estimated as the present value of future cash RNEERGFTRARBEEREL
flows, discounted at current market interest rates for similar WEEE X WRENUMKEIAEZ
financial instruments. B Rl 5 2R o
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42.Summary of financial assets and liabilities by

category

The carrying amounts of the Group’s and the Company’s financial
assets and liabilities recognised at the end of the reporting period may

also be categorised as follows.

2. 2R cMBEERAGEHRE

RBERARCHERBZAEE R AR
BELKBEREEIIRATERZSD -

Group Company
REH AT
2013 2012 2013 2012
—B2—=F —E——-%F B—=% —T——-F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FAET FET FBT
Financial Assets BREE
Financial assets through profit BiBERSIR
or loss: MBEE
— Held for trading: - RHEEERE
— Equity investments at fair — A EAER
value through profit or loss SIBR 2 AR E 26,877 30,043 - -
— Derivative financial instrument —{TEFKIA - 16,159 - -
26,877 46,202 - -
Available-for-sale investments A ERE 16,882 16,882 - =
Loan and receivables: Bk e W RE
— Accounts receivable — FEURBR TR 273 471 - =
— Amounts due from subsidiaries — UL A B RIA - = 241,551 242,149
— Moneylending loan receivables ~ — FEUAIEE X 4,784 23,026 - -
— Loan interest receivables — RUERF & 131 882 - =
— Rental income receivables — RS A 667 - - =
— Other receivables — HAbpEUER R 19,430 2,624 - =
— Amount due from — FEUT HE E ) A
a jointly-controlled entity EQ] - 234 - =
— Staff advance —BI8X 150 90 - =
— Credit card receivables — SR REMFIE 109 108 - =
— Cash and cash equivalents -HekReFEE
I8 H 87,431 125,647 17,022 13,584
112,975 153,082 258,573 255,733
156,734 216,166 258,573 255,733
Financial Liabilities g 3=k
Financial liabilities measured at R HR AT 2
amortised cost: ZHEEE
— Accounts payable — FEFERR 1,704 1,195 - =
— Accruals — JEETRIA 5,621 6,650 2,696 2,997
— Accrued staff benefits — [EETE T&7 4,949 3,613 - =
— Other payables — Hit R IR 66 138 27 27
— Finance lease payable — R ERLOFIE 195 303 - =
— Bank borrowings —RITIEE 37,904 39,794 - =
50,439 51,693 2,723 3,024
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43.Major non-cash transaction 3. TEFRERS
a) During 2012, deposit paid for acquisition of investment properties Q) RZZE——F REEREWESM

Z ¥ %2,763,0008 T E RN AN EBE R
FiB BRI E Y% -

of HK$2,763,000 were transferred to investment properties upon
acceptance of the title of ownership by the Group.

b R=ZT——F mEEVE BEX
28 S N 2 12 42,067,000 7T 2 R AR
SEBRNTBEREBREEEYE - BE

A o

b) During 2012, deposit paid for acquisition of property, plant and
equipment of HK$2,067,000 was transferred to property, plant
and equipment upon acceptance of the title of ownership by the
Group.

R-ZT——F AEBRERERY
0% B B {E /4303,0008 T2 /3%E © A3k

¢) During 2012, the Group purchased a motor vehicle under financial 0
lease in the amount of HK$303,000 and is a non-cash transaction.

44.Possible impact of new and revised standards M. CHEMBEERRBE=-Z— =N
amendments or and interpretations issued but not A=+ HLEFEERZIHTREE
yet effective for the year ended 30 April 2013 TR~ 8RR BRBZEBE

E/
=

BENEPBHRRTIHAY  BE G
RECEMREBE_T—=FMA=1+H
L2 1 R AR B R U 5 BA 75 SRR BR A

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the HKICPA has
issued the following amendments, new standards and Interpretations
which are not yet effective for the year ended 30 April 2013 and which
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have not been adopted in these financial statements.

ZIATMERT ~ #AT 2RI M2 kg -

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2009-2011 Cycle! ARYREEED 53] ARYEGEEN _EENER
“T—EER EEYE
Amendments to HKFRS 7 Disclosures - Offsetting Financial Assets s e 55 - REREERETE
and Finandial Liabilites’ B3 B
Amendments to HKFRS 9 Mandatory Effective Date of HKFRS 9 FABE RS Fof FABITRAp | Bodesa
and HKFRS 7 and Transition Disclosures’ RER RS E HRERBRER
ETRET
Amendments to HKFRS 10, Consolidated Financial Statements, DENRREEAE0R BE  GAVERR  ZRTUREE
HKFRS 11 and HKFRS 12 Joint Arrangements and Disclosure of Interests BB aLER SRR EE REMER /1
in Other Entities: Transition Guidance’ SBREEAEDR 2B B
Amendments to HKFRS 10, Investment Entities? EROBRLENE05 BF  RARR
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27 HHREEAEORRER

SHERIZTE 26
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44.Possible impact of new and revised standards
amendments or and interpretations issued but
not yet effective for the year ended 30 April 2013
(Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments®

HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements'
HKFRS 11 Joint Arrangements'

HKFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities'
HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement'

HKAS 19 (as revised in 2011)  Employee Benefits'
HKAS 27 (as revised in 2011)  Separate Financial Statements'
HKAS 28 (as revised in 2011)  Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures'

Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of Items of Other Comprehensive Income*
Amendments to HKAS 32 Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities’
Amendments to HKAS 36 Recoverable amount disclosures for non-financial assets®
Amendments to HKAS 39 Novation of Derivatives and Continuation of Hedge Accounting?
HK (IFRIC) - Int 20 Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of a Surface Mine'

HK (IFRIC) - Int 21 Levies?

L Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013.
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014.
8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2015.

& Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2012.

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what the
impact of these new and revised HKFRSs is expected to be in the
period of initial application. So far it has concluded that the adoption
of them is unlikely to have a significant impact on the consolidated
financial statements.

45.COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform with
the current year’s presentation.

4. BHEBERARRBE-ZT-—=FNO

A=THIESEEERZHTRER
TR BT R RB BT
8 (B

ERAUBRERASR  HEIR
BANBRERAZ0E RAUBHER
|£115%
|

BAMBESER REZH
BAMBRERAZNE RENEAERZES
BEMRREEAAGE  ATEHE

BR G EAE 05 ERBH
(ZF——5EE)

BRETENEIHR BUNHER
(ZF——FEE5T)

BAGTENR.HR REELARRAREERE
(ZF——FEE5T)

BRGHENS KT A2EUhaER 23
BRGHENENR L] FEMFEERMBAR
BRGHENSERL LT FUBEEL AN BNE
BRGENENR BT ATARRRUNGHEL TS
Bk (AREBREEE BRARLERRZHFNA
Z88)-2RA%

BE (ERMBGSRE AR

RE2)-REENR

T RIE=F-H-BHzRRARFEE
e
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e
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SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION ™~
B EEE /

A summary of the published consolidated results and assets and liabilities ~ SA F7I|EER R 7 AN & B 530 A G BFEE 2
of the Group for the last five financial years prepared on the basis as BERMGREFEUREERBEZHMESNT ¢
hereunder stated is as set out below:

Consolidated Results e

i

Consolidated for the year ended 30 April
HABZENA=tTHILEE
2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
= T —T——F T-TF _TTNF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
THET FETT FET FET FHET

Revenue Wz 34,216 27,650 52,112 102,784 156,178
Loss before taxation MR ET IR (9,076) (41,151) (10,283) (7,183) (49,979)
Income tax FriSHi 475 (69) (280) (757) (304)
Loss for the year REEEE (8,601) (41,220) (10,563) (7,940) (50,283)
Attributable to: TIN5 L -
Owners of the Company PAN/NCIEZ SN (8,601) (41,220) (7,674) (6,507) (45,229)
Non-controlling interests FEERRAE - = (2,889) (1,433) (5,054)
(8,601) (41,220) (10,563) (7,940) (50,283)
Consolidated Assets and Liabilities mEeEERAEE

Consolidated as at 30 April
FERMA=1H

2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
—B-=f T ZFT—F ZFT-FTF Z_TTNF
n HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT T T TET TET TBT
s
@ TOTAL ASSETS 485 EE 374,616 384,194 427,635 425,266 421,745
£
§j TOTAL LIABILITIES BEE (74,976) (75,952) (78,708) (60,058) (48,115)
g
z 299,640 308,242 348,927 365,208 373,630
g
z
E
N
=




LIST OF PROPERTIES
M=%

&

Locations Existing use Term of lease
i B B A®E AEHR
Investment properties
REWE

1. Flat E, 9/F., Tower 1, StarCrest, Residential Medium term
9 Star Street, Wanchai, Hong Kong F= A
BB BT EFRESE 1 EIEEE

2. Flat H, 6/F., Tower 5, Harbour Place, Residential Medium term
8 0i King Street, Hung Hom, Kowloon = B8R
NBEAME =H8% /8 EMFSEEHE

3. Flat B, 10/F., Tower 7, Harbour Place, Residential Medium term
8 0i King Street, Hung Hom, Kowloon F=E HHR
NBEAWE SEHSH BB F7E10ERE

4. Flat C, 10/F., Tower 7, Harbour Place, Residential Medium term
8 0i King Street, Hung Hom, Kowloon *= R EA
NBRAIE =485 /8 B mE/ A I10ECE

5, Flat D, 43/F., Tower | and Car Parking Space Residential Medium term
No. 2-083, 2/F., The Harbourside, x= R B
No. 1 Austin Road West, Kowloon
NBER BRI ARR T 1E43EDE
K 552-08357 B {7

6. Unit A, 25/F., Le Royal Arc, Residential Medium term
Avenida Sir Anders Ljungstedt, Macau F= B
BP mHT R R B B S HE P 2512 A BE

7. Flat A&B, 2/F., Queen’s Centre, Commercial Medium term
58-64 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong S R HR
BT ERRERS-645 AR EFR L2MEAKBE

8. Residential car parking space 604 on 6th Floor Residential Medium term
of Harbour Place, 8 Oi King Street, Hung Hom, Kowloon x= B

NBEAHE SE85R /8 B m 76126045 (X EEL

=
o
B
¥
=l
R
A
G|
&
#
N
S
@




2 e
= =
f e,
. e,

w

<
)
S
[T]
=
©
=
°
=
3
=
)
%
5
>
=]
>
o
S
Pl
)
o
)
=1
N
S
=
w

10.

11.

12.

13.

Locations Existing use Term of lease

il 25 REFAR THEHR

Residential car parking space 602 on 6th Floor Residential Medium term

of Harbour Place, 8 Oi King Street, Hung Hom, Kowloon = R B

NEAWE = H85% /8 8 F 6126025k (T B

Residential car parking space 637 on 6th Floor Residential Medium term

of Harbour Place, 8 Oi King Street, Hung Hom, Kowloon F= B

NBEAME =H85 /B EmFE37RITEEN

Office E, 22nd Floor, EGL Tower, Commercial Medium term

83 Hung To Road Kwun Tong, Kowloon EES B

BB NEBEBEESREREES2IEEE

FE M T R0 [ RO A B& 2335536065 Commercial Medium term
[GES H Hf

Shop 4, Ground Floor, King Palace Plaza, Commercial Medium term

No. 55 King Yip Street Kwun Tong, Kowloon. S H HA

NEEER BN AT555% 2E RIS 458 4

Leasehold land and building held for own use carried at cost

UEASIEREBAZEEL HRETF

Office A, 17th Floor, EGL Tower, 83 Hung To Road, Commercial Medium term

Kwun Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong SES H Hf

BERNEEEBEES3IT R ES17EAE

Car parking space No. P25 on 1st Floor, EGL Tower, Commercial Medium term

83 Hung To Road, Kwun Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong 5 A A

R NEBIERE B3 RREE S 1B FEP255RE L

Lease premium for land

T e

BIEEAG IR (FRAAK) Commercial Medium term
[GES H Hf
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